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Financial Highlights
MBHEE

Revenue was approximately RMB740.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 6.9% from

last year.

Gross profit was approximately RMB209.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 4.5% from

last year.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent was
approximately RMB120.7 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 13.0% from last year.

Basic earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.14.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of
RMBO0.028 per share for the year ended 31 December
2016, which will be subject to shareholders’ approval
at the annual general meeting. This represented a total
distribution of RMB24.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (“Suchuang Gas” or
the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively
refer to as the “Group”), | am pleased to present to you
the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016
(“during the year”) of Suchuang Gas. During the year,
the Group’s business maintained steady development,
and achieved the revenue of RMB740.9 million and the
integrated gross profit margin of 28.3%, with the profit
attributable to the owners of the Parent decreased by
13.0% from approximately RMB138.6 million in 2015
to approximately RMB120.7 million in 2016. The overall
results of the Group was mainly affected by slowdown
of domestic macro-economic growth, particularly the
reduction of total value of export trade, which resulted in
the decline in natural gas consumption of industrial users.
However, as the Group implemented strict cost control
measures and the increase of completed buildings enlarged
the natural gas consumption of residential users, the Group’s
business performance recovered in the second half of 2016.
Moreover, the net operating cash inflow as recorded by
the Group during the year was RMB133.1 million and the
gearing ratio (total borrowing/total assets) was approximately
5.8%.

MARKET REVIEW AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, global economy was confronted with lots of
challenges and “Black Swan” occurred frequently on the
market, which increased tremendous pressure to micro
business environment in China and the world. Along
with the drastic fluctuation in international oil price, the
referendum on Brexit, the increase in interest rate by the
U.S. Federal Reserve and the surprising result of the U.S.
presidential election, the global market stumbled through
fluctuations. Meanwhile, Chinese government continuously
carried out prudent fiscal and monetary measures, and
continued implementing macro-control policies to inhibit
the speculative and overheated real estate market, being a
critical guarantee for stable economic growth in China as
a whole. In 2016, China’s gross domestic product (“GDP”)
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

maintained the steady growth of 6.7%, of which the growth
rate in Q4 reached 6.8%, reflecting China’s overall economy
still maintained relatively favorable development vitality
under the new normal situation, and promoted the national
natural gas consumption to keep positive development
momentum. According to the statistics of the National
Development and Reform Committee of the People’s
Republic of China (“NDRC”), the natural gas consumption
was 205.8 billion cubic meters in 2016, increased by 6.6%
on year-on-year basis. In 2016, China continued promoting
the construction of natural gas long-distance pipelines,
and completed 1500 km of trunk and branch natural gas
pipelines throughout the year. By the end of 2016, the total
length of natural gas long-distance pipelines has reached
nearly 70,000 km. This will further deepen the layout of
national natural gas pipeline network, and lay a more solid
foundation for comprehensive supply of natural gas in all
cities and provinces.

The main business operating region of Suchuang Gas also
maintained steady economic growth. According to verified
data of the National Bureau of Statistics, the GDP of Jiangsu
Province exceeded RMB7.6 trillion in 2016,
by 7.8% as compared to that in 2015, and consecutively

increasing

ranking the second in China. Taicang Port, where the Group
is headquartered, continued to maintain robust development
momentum, and achieved the container throughput, cargo
throughput and cargo throughput for foreign trade of 4.081
million TEU, 230 million tons and 74.72 million tons
respectively, up by 10.1%, 13.8% and 12.7% on a year-
on-year basis, with the growth rate ranking the first among
major ports nationwide.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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National Policy Benefits the Development of
Natural Gas Industry

As Chinese economy experiences the new normal
development, Chinese government has implemented and
deepened eco-friendly energy structure reform within the
year, continued to execute favorable policies in the natural
gas industry, and continually advanced the reform and
marketization progress of natural gas pricing mechanism.
In early 2017, the National Energy Administration of China
issued the 13th Five-Year Plan for Energy Development (the
“Plan”), explicitly stating the energy structure adjustment
targets, and proposing to increase the proportion of non-
fossil energy consumption to over 15% and that of natural
gas consumption up to 10%, and decrease the proportion
of coal consumption to less than 58% during the 13th
Five-Year Plan period. As estimated according to relevant
planning targets, the non-fossil energy and natural gas
consumption increment will be more than triple times of
coal increment, accounting for over 68% of the total energy
consumption increment. Clean and low-carbon energy
will be undoubtedly the main subject of energy supply
increments during the 13th Five-Year Plan period.

Moreover, the Department of Petroleum and Natural Gas
under the National Energy Administration of China, the
Institute for Energy and Environmental Research under the
Development Research Center of the State Council, and the
Strategic Research Center for Oil and Gas Resources under
the Ministry of Land and Resources jointly issued the White
Paper for Natural Gas Development Report in China (2016)
(“the Report”) at the end of 2016. The Report states that the
natural gas is a kind of low-carbon and clean energy with
rich resources and lots of developed countries currently
regard natural gas as an important option of clean energy.
The Reports also reaffirms the development strategy of “For
Revolutions and One Cooperation” put forward by President
Xi Jinping in 2015, which points out the direction of energy
revolution in China, and serves as the basic principle for
China to develop natural gas and promote reform in natural
gas industry.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

Natural Gas Pricing Mechanism Subject to Market-
Oriented Advancement

Ever since 2016, reform policies for natural gas industry
have been issued intensively in China, the largest concern of
which is the steady advancement of market-oriented reform
of natural gas price. In 2015, the Chinese government
reduced the maximum gateway station price of natural gas
for non-residential usage by RMBO0.7/m? and proposed to
further allow the supplier and purchaser to raise the price
by 20% based on the standard gateway station price after
20 November 2016, thus adjusting the market supply and
demand by means of price. On 15 November 2016, Fujian
Province formally carried out the market-oriented reform
pilot for gateway station price of natural gas, stipulating that
the gateway station price of natural gas would be determined
through negotiation by the supplier and purchaser, rather
than priced under the guidance of the government, which
opened up a new chapter for price marketization and
realized the open and transparent pricing mechanism.

At present, except for the natural gas for residential usage
concerning the people’s livelihood, gateway station price for
over 80% of the total natural gas consumption nationwide
for non-residential usage was mainly self-determined
by enterprises themselves, making a great stride for the
comprehensive market-oriented reform of natural gas

industry in China.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Business Expansion Accumulates Scale Effect

As affected by the great fluctuation of first falling then rising
international oil price, and the reduction in gateway station
price of natural gas for residential usage, China’s natural gas
consumption maintained growth, but the Group’s revenue
from natural gas operating business decreased accordingly,
imposing significant pressure on the Group’s profitability
level throughout the year. However, as seen in the long run,
the Group also extended business into the cities or regions
outside Taicang City via strategic acquisition, and expanded
the business of compressed natural gas (“CNG”) refueling
stations last year. Although our natural gas refueling station
business in Guangyuan (Sichuan), Taicang and Suzhou
still undergoes the initial development period, yet our
scale effect is gradually accumulating and expanding, and
it is estimated that remarkable operating efficiency and
scale effect will be achieved as early as in the first half of
2017, so as to enhance the profitability of this business;
together with the natural gas sales and distribution business
positively developed by the Group this year in Qiandeng
Town, Kunshan City, Jiangsu Province, greater contributions
will be made to further revenues.

PROSPECTS

Being a leading energy consumption country, China is
endeavoring to establish the modern clean, safe and
efficient lower-carbon energy system, of which natural gas
development represents an important step for achieving
strategic transformation for energy development. At the G20
Summit held in Hangzhou last year, the Chinese government
signed Paris Accord, committed to peak its CO2 emissions
by about 2030. China will certainly follow up the eco-
friendly, clean and lower-carbon energy development
path in future, which is not only a powerful guarantee for
sustainable development of Chinese economy and society,
but also an action of China as the largest developing country
to fulfill its solemn commitment to the world. It is estimated
that the large-scale development of natural gas will be

imperative.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

Looking into the future, for the purpose of strengthening
domestic air pollution control, catering for the unceasingly
rising public awareness of environmental protection,
and creating the habitable environment, the Chinese
Government will gradually increase the proportion of
natural gas consumption as one of the overall targets for
energy development during the 13th Five-Year Plan period.
By 2020, the liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) will reach
over 10% of the total energy consumption by inland river
transport ships in China. In particular, Jiangsu Province
intends to increase the natural gas usage to one-tenth of
the national consumption during the 13th Five-Year Plan
period, and increase the natural gas proportion to 10% in
local primary energy structure. During the year, Taicang
City will also promote the construction of urban energy
facilities, improve the natural gas pipelines, and actively
advance the eco-friendly lifestyle transformation, including
implementing the “Oil to Gas” and “Oil To Electricity”
Projects and popularizing electric, natural gas and hybrid
electric vehicles.

Benefited from the high-efficiency utilization of natural
gas, the continued reform of China’s energy structure, the
market-oriented progressing of natural gas price promoted
actively by the governments at various levels, the Group
believes that China’s natural gas industry will have a long-
term stable development prospect. As for Suchuang Gas, the
Group will also continue benefiting from the accelerated
implementation of “One Belt, One Road”, “Yangtze River
Economic Zone” and “Made in China 2025” strategies, the
profound integrated development of the Yangtze River Delta
region, and the fast-growing advancement of the new type
urbanization construction, which will create new business
opportunities for industrial cities of Jiangsu Province, and
provide new business opportunities for the Group.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Located at the intersection of the Yangtze River Economic
Zone and the Coastal Economic Belt, Taicang Port enjoys
considerable geographic advantages connecting both
rivers and seas. The rapid development of Taicang Port
will contribute to the increasing logistics demands, which
will further promote the Group’s layout of gas refueling
stations in port areas and enable the Group to grasp the
business development opportunities of gas refueling stations.
Meanwhile, three high-speed railway lines will intersect in
Taicang. The Shanghai-Nantong Railway Phase | Project,
which is under construction, stretches from Nantong to
Taicang Anting and extends to Shanghai Honggiao Station
via Anting, while the Shanghai-Nantong Railway Phase
Il Project, which is to be built soon, will lead to Pudong
District Shanghai via the intersection Taicang. Shanghai-
Nanjing Intercity Railway, which runs through the most
dynamic economic zone of Southern Jiangsu Province,
has entered the construction preparation stage, and will
be completed before 2020 as estimated. Shanghai-Nanjing
Intercity Railway will start from Nanjing and end with
Shanghai via Zhenjiang (Jurong City), Changzhou (Jintan
District and Wujin District), Wuxi (Huishan District and
Jiangyin District) and Suzhou (Zhangjiagang, Changshu
and Taicang City), which will further deepen the layout of
one-hour economic circle in Shanghai. As an industrial
city adjacent to Shanghai, Taicang will be expected to
benefit from the connection of Shanghai-Nanjing Intercity
Railway, which may promote sustainable development of the
industry and resident pollution, and bring about tremendous
development space for local leading piped natural gas

operators.

In 2017, the Group will make positive efforts to accelerate
business development of the existing 6 gas refueling stations
located in Sichuan Province, Taicang City and Suzhou
City respectively, and further expand the business growth
of natural gas refueling stations by means of M&A, joint

venture, etc.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

Based on our sustainable regional leading position as well
as the high-efficiency business operation and management
capability, and under the leadership of the energetic young
management including Ms. Su Yi (Executive Vice Chairman
of the Group), the Group will continue to focus on the fields
of piped natural gas operation and natural gas refueling
stations, explore and expand the customer structure to
natural gas power plant and natural gas distributed energy
operation companies, expand the service targets of natural
gas refueling stations towards vehicles, ships and other
means of transport powered by natural gas, thus increase the
gas consumption level on the basis of the currently stable
natural gas consumption. Moreover, in order to promote the
long-term stable development of our business, the Group
will positively discuss how to develop from piped natural
gas operator to integrated energy service provider, based
on the long-term strategic planning and led by Ms. Su Yi,
Executive Vice Chairman of the Group, thus to grasp the
tremendous opportunities arising from the reform in energy
structure of China.

Furthermore, the Group will continue paying attention to
the equity acquisition opportunities of natural gas operators
surrounding Taicang City and outside of Jiangsu Province,
so as to expand our business scale and coverage, increase
our earning base and enhance the overall profitability.
Along with the integration of our piped natural gas business
resources and the favorable policy support, Suchuang Gas
will make unremitted efforts to enhance the operation
efficiency and scale effect, further accelerate business
development, and lay a solid foundation for achieving the
long-term steady business development.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE
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further sound business development and generate greater

returns for our investors.

Su Aping e
Chairman & [
Hong Kong, 31 March 2017 &% 2017F3A31H
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESkSREEEERE

DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of nine Directors, comprising
four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The following
table sets out certain information about our Directors as at

the date of this annual report:

=X
BPNESSRKHNLRESEN B8N
FRTESF  —RAERTESR=RBUIF
WITES - TRIBEBEARBESTNAF
HEHNEOER

Name Age Roles and responsibilities

e Fie BULEE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman) 68 Overall strategic planning and business direction and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group's strategy

ERPF AL () BRERE S LR T7 A A N BB AN S B SR A Y
ERENITHER

Ms. Su Yi (Executive Vice Chairman) 44 Assisting the chairman in formulating the overall strategic

planning and business direction of the Group and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group’s strategy

gt (BBREIER) BB EEHIE AR B BB R R LEB W
AR BB RSB RMEEEBRHITER

Ms. Zhu Yaying 70 Implementation and monitoring of the Group’s strategic
plans and inter-departmental coordination within
our Group

ENCHE S g BETRERAKRENREG S R AS BB A

Mr. Du Shaozhou 64 Managing the day-to-day operations of the Group

HARRATE EEAEENRREER

Non-executive Directors

FHUTES

Mr. Xu Lei 48 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

AFESEE BITIEMITE SR

Mr. Zhuang Jianhao 55 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

HEESLLE [BITIEAITEF RS

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFBITES

Mr. Zhou Qingzu 84 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

AEEEE JEITB EMITEE TS

Mr. He Junjie 60 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

& EERE [BITEIFITE R AR

Mr. Luk Wai Keung 52 Performing roles as an independent non-executive

PERIR L
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Executive Directors

Mr. Su Aping (3% M%), aged 68, was appointed as a Director
on 26 February 2014 and was re-designated as the chairman
and an executive Director on 12 September 2014 and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
direction of the Group and overseeing the overall execution
of the Group’s strategy. Mr. Su has approximately 30 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Su has
been the director and general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas Co., Ltd. (“Taicang Natural Gas”) since its incorporation
in May 2002, responsible for its business development
and operation, strategic planning and investment. Mr. Su
has been the chairman and general manager of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (8 /N T & &I E ¥ & E A
A]) (now known as Suzhou City Suchuang Group Company
Limited (“Suchuang Group”)) since its incorporation in 1992
and is responsible for its overall management and business
development. From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Su worked at Taicang
Enterprise Liquified Gas Institute (KB ZEBRILEFT) under
Taicang Fabric Factory (KEHJE) (later renamed as Taicang
County Liquified Gas Company (K& & &{LR A F]), Taicang
County Gas Company (KEHHERAF]) and Taicang City
Gas Company (KETHERAA]) and held various positions
including manager and legal representative, responsible for
sales and development of business and overall management.

Mr. Su is also the chairman and legal representative of each
of Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Gas Company
Limited (“Kunlun Suchuang Gas”) and Suzhou PetroChina
Kunlun Suchuang Natural Gas Usage Company Limited. Mr.
Su is the spouse of Ms. Zhu Yaying and a parent of Ms. Su
Yi, both executive Directors of the Company.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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BRP 54 - 6858 0 1E2014F2H26HESE
TAEENN2014F9A12BATAEFH
HMITES  BREFIEARAEENEE RS
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BRAR]) 7200257 7 M AL A K —
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%
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EEREREEEREE

Ms. Zhu Yaying ((RE33), aged 70, was appointed as a Director
on 4 July 2013 and was redesignated as an executive
Director on 12 September 2014. In addition to assisting the
Board and our chairman to formulate the Group’s strategic
plans, Ms. Zhu is also responsible for the implementation
and monitoring of those plans as well as inter-departmental
coordination within the Group. Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Ms. Zhu
joined Taicang Natural Gas since its incorporation in May
2002 where she was appointed as a director since December
2004, responsible for managing the financial resources
of the Company. Ms. Zhu joined Suzhou City Suchuang
Industrial Group Company (#RMTEFEIEZEEE LR (now
known as Suchuang Group) as deputy general manager on
its incorporation in December 1992, responsible for the
financial operations and human resources management.
Prior to joining Suchuang Group, Ms. Zhu was the head of
the labour department of Taicang County Gas Company (A
BBE R E]) (later renamed as Taicang City Gas Company
(KETE R AA)) from March 1988 to December 1992,
responsible for supervising and managing human resources.

Ms. Zhu is a director of Kunlun Suchuang Gas and a director
of Fung Yu Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Ms. Zhu is the spouse of Mr. Su Aping
and a parent of Ms. Su Yi, both executive Directors of the
Company.

Mr. Du Shaozhou (#:#8/8), aged 64, is the general manager
of the Company and was appointed as an executive Director
on 12 September 2014. Mr. Du is responsible for managing
the day-to-day operations of the Group. He has over 45
years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Du has
been a director of Taicang Natural Gas since 12 February
2015, responsible for the management of its operation.
From September 2008 to August 2012, Mr. Du served at
PetroChina Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited
(FAREERRARMNABRAF) as deputy general manager,
deputy secretary to the Communist Party Committee,
secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and chairman of
the labour union. From April 1995 to September 2008, Mr.
Du held various senior positions in Shenzhen Petroleum
Industrial Co., Ltd. (GRYIEHEZEBRAF]) such as deputy
general manager, deputy secretary to the Communist Party

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Committee, secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and
chairman of the labour union. From June 1978 to April 1995,
he worked at the Ministry of Petroleum Industry of the PRC
(FEIER T %E0) (later known as China National Petroleum
Company and China National Petroleum Corporation) where
he held various positions including secretary and secretary
(deputy division chief level) (BIEEA&ME). From December
1975 to June 1978, Mr. Du worked at the Locomotive Team
of Daqging Oilfield Construction Headquarter (X B &1 H
1518 S0 B B [X). From October 1969 to December
1975, Mr. Du worked at the Liaohe Oilfield Geophysical
Exploration (B AMEYIRE). Mr. Du obtained a diploma
in Public Administration from Staff University of Continuing
Education of the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC (FHARERB TEHKZE) in the PRC in July
1990.

Ms. Su Yi (88Z), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director on 30 June 2016 and the Executive Vice Chairman
of the Board on 21 February 2017. Ms. Su joined the Group
in May 2015 as the assistant to the chairman of the board of
directors of Taicang Natural Gas. Ms. Su is responsible for
assisting the Chairman in formulating the business strategies
of the Group, and enhancing and implementing the internal
procedures of the Group. Ms. Su has more than 10 years’
experience in computer software and project management.
She worked at the New York City Housing Authority of
the United States of America (the “US”) from May 2005 to
May 2015 and served various positions including computer
specialist (software). She worked on human resources
administration for the City of New York of the US from
November 2002 to May 2005.

Ms. Su obtained a master degree in science from Pace
University in January 2003. She has been certified as a
Project Management Professional (PMP) by the Project
Management Institute since July 2006. She also obtained a
certification for people program at the TOGAF 9 certified
level in December 2015. Ms. Su is a daughter of Mr. Su
Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying, both executive Directors of the
Company.
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EEREREEEREE

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Lei (FF&), aged 48, was appointed as a Director on
27 February 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 12 September 2014. He has over 11 years of
experience in investment and business advisory in the PRC.
Mr. Xu joined Prax Capital Equity Management Co., Ltd.
(B EREEIR(EB AR AT in August 2003 and is
currently a managing partner of Prax Capital, responsible for
leading and conducting the fund’s investment activities in
the PRC.

Mr. Xu obtained a Master of Business Administration from
the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in
the United States in May 2001 and a Bachelor of Law from
Ningbo University in the PRC in July 1991.

Mr. Zhuang Jianhao (3£#3%), aged 55, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. Mr. Zhuang has
over 30 years of experience in gas industry. Since January
2002, he has been with Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd. (EBXZARAEXE(5EE) RO BRA
A]) and has served various positions including assistant to
general manager, chief technology officer, deputy general
manager and director. Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd. (L BEXBRAREE(5E) BRMHBRA
A]) is a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600635) and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 1635), and a
substantial shareholder of the Company through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Dazhong (Hong Kong) International
Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhuang has been the director
and deputy general manager of Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/BRFAREE (5E) kihA
fRA 7)) since April 2014.

Mr. Zhuang obtained a bachelor degree from East China
Chemical Industry College (ZEFR{LTEF3) (currently known
as East China University of Science and Technology (¥ 1%
T RZ)) specialising in coal chemical (Bt T %) in July
1983. Mr. Zhuang also attended a joint master program in
business administration from the University of Canberra
in Australia and the East China University of Science and
Technology and received master degrees in July and August
2004, respectively.

Mr. Zhuang was granted the title of senior engineer by
Shanghai Title Reform Leading Group (/8T EEME TIE
{83/\H) in December 1995.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Qingzu (AEEH), aged 84, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2015.
He has over 60 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. From October 1996 to October 2000, Mr. Zhou
was a member of the Senior Technical Council of Economic
Advisers (R AR EEMZEE) at China Petroleum and
Petrochemical Engineering Institute (B A B A ITE
7). From July 1994 to July 1997, he was a member of
the Advisory Committee (25XZ& B€) of China International
Engineering Consulting Corporation (FEIEEE TRZAAA
a)). From 1988 to 1993, Mr. Zhou worked at China National
Petroleum Company (F BIAHRARLLAF]) (now known as
China National Petroleum Corporation) as chief economist.
Prior to joining China National Petroleum Corporation,
Mr. Zhou was the head of the planning department of the
Ministry of Petroleum Industry of the PRC from 1979 to
1987. From 1954 to 1979, Mr. Zhou held multiple positions
within Xinjiang Petroleum Administration Bureau (7524 H
EI2/D), including chief economist and head of the planning
division and deputy head of Xinjiang Petroleum Bureau,
head of the planning division of Karamay Mining Bureau
(R AFBKTETS D), and head of Urumgi Petrochemical Plant
(BEARBA(ERE). From 1952 to 1954, Mr. Zhou worked at
Shanxi Yanchang Oil Field (BREEFERIHHE) as an accounting

clerk and secretary.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial
management from Shanghai Institute of Finance and
Economics (now known as Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics) in the PRC in August 1952 and was awarded
professor-level senior economist in September 1989 by

China National Petroleum Company.
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EEREREEEREE

Mr. He Junjie (fi] ¥ #%), aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2015.
Mr. He has over 35 years of experience in enterprise
management and 5 years of work experience in the PRC
legal system. From June 2010 to June 2013, Mr. He was the
executive director of Lanzhou City Ganglian Environmental
Development Co., Ltd. (BM &R AERIRIFERBRAR).
He served as a juror in the People’s Court in Luohu District,
Shenzhen, the PRC from March 2005 to April 2010. From
January 1995 to January 1997, Mr. He worked at Shenpu
Co., Ltd. (3 2 A)), an affiliate company of Shenzhen
Material Group Company (RIITTHELE R F]) (“Shenzhen
Material”), as general manager. From January 1993 to
January 1995, Mr. He was the deputy general manager of
Zibo Shengfei Chemical Construction Materials Co., Ltd.
CEBBRICBEMEBR AT,
Shenzhen Material. From December 1972 to July 1986,
Mr. He held various positions at Ningbo City Petroleum
Valves Factory (B2 AMBIFIER) including chief officer,
responsible for quality management.

a joint venture company of

Mr. He obtained a diploma in industrial enterprise
management (LEMZ%EI2) from Zhejiang Radio & Television
University (3T EIEER KAL) in the PRC in July 1986 and
was awarded the qualification of an assistant economist in
December 1988 by Ningbo City Personnel Bureau () A
%/3) (now known as Ningbo Municipal Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau (2R M ANERMT ERE
@)). Mr. He also obtained the Luohu District Outstanding
Volunteer (Z&/#[&{8752% T) award in December 2006.
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Mr. Luk Wai Keung (PE{Z3&), aged 52, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 16 February
2015. Mr. Luk has over 19 years of working experience
in the accounting and finance area. Mr. Luk has been the
executive director of Sun International Resources Limited,
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8029), since December
2015. Mr. Luk was the chief financial officer of Fu Shou
Yuan International Group Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1448),
from November 2013 to April 2015. Mr. Luk was the chief
financial officer of Larry Jewelry International Company
Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8351) from
July 2011 to October 2013, responsible for its overall
financial control and management. From August 2007 to
November 2010, Mr. Luk worked at SHV (China) Investment
Company Limited, where he held a number of senior
positions, including vice president, in finance, internal
audit and business development. From May 2006 to June
2007, he served as the chief financial officer of Synergis
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2340), responsible
for its overall finance, accounting and other corporate
functions. From January 1996 to January 2006, he worked at
PricewaterhouseCoopers in the corporate finance area.

Mr. Luk graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Science in Engineering in Hong Kong in
November 1986 and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Australian Graduate School of
Management of the University of New South Wales in
Australia in May 1994. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2014 and, a Chartered Financial Analyst at the Association
for Investment Management and Research since September
1999.
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ESNERERERE

The Directors’ interests in shares of the Company or any F2016F12A31H » EEN A QA s &4
of its associated corporations, if any, within the meaning 9p/£.ZHy\1ﬁEPT§EﬁE/]$§\ (mBE)(FHER
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at &% M EREIEHIEXVES) RAFHKES7E
31 December 2016 are disclosed in the “Directors’ and 59E§$@$&¢ [BEEREE fTBZ/\EUJ'AHx
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and 5 ~ HEARMD M EEENEZNAE] —
underlying shares and debentures” section of the Report of ~ #iF& ©

the Directors on pages 57 to 59 of this Annual Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT EREEE

The following table sets out certain information about our TRAFHEBA R A SAEREERAFRA
senior management personnel as at the date of this annual ~ HiFJEBHER :

report:

Name Age Current Position

e Fik AR

Mr. Xu Xihua 61 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

RIBELE RBRAREBEE

Mr. Yuan Qing 42 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

RERE KB RAREBIBERE

Mr. Lian Guangyou 65 Chief engineer of Taicang Natural Gas

BEERESE RBERAREITIZAD

Mr. Ng Chi Kit 43 Chief financial officer and company secretary of
the Company

REGERE ARBMHRERATWE

Mr. Zhou Jihui 54 Deputy general manager of the Company

[EHE R S AR BIBEE
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Senior Management

Mr. Xu Xihua (#%#5%), aged 61, joined the Group in May
2002 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for sales and marketing of our Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu gained experience in
operational management of natural gas enterprise from his
employment at Taicang Suchuang Pipeline Liquified Gas
Engineering Company Limited (K& & 8| & BRI T T2
BB 7A), where he was a manager from January 1999
to April 2002, responsible for the overall management of
operations, safety, infrastructures and the supply of piped
liquified gas. From August 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Xu
was the chief officer of the enterprise safety division and
the infrastructures division (&R & & & &} &) of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (& /I 11 & B B % &
B~ 7]) (now known as Suchuang Group), where he was
responsible for the internal management and security,
infrastructure and property maintenance of the company. Mr.
Xu was employed as a telecommunications worker and later
promoted to the foreman at Lanzhou Railway Bureau from
December 1972 to December 1986.

Mr. Xu graduated from the Correspondence Institute
Affiliated to the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC (F H P RER R K EE) in the PRC through its
distance learning programme in June 1990 specializing in
economics management. He has been a certified technician
of Suzhou Human Resources Bureau since December 2002
and a certified assistant government relations advisor (BB
T M) of the Ministry of Railway of the PRC since July 1991.
In addition, Mr. Xu received the Advanced Productivity
Worker award (50 AE(TE)%E) from the Lanzhou Railway
Bureau in March 1990 and the Taicang Outstanding
Communist Party Member award in June 1999.
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EEREREEEREE

Mr. Yuan Qing (%), aged 42, joined the Group in August
2004 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for overseeing the operation of the
production department. Mr. Yuan has extensive management
experience. He joined Taicang Natural Gas in August 2004
as a manager of the production division, responsible for gas
supply service and scheduling, manufacturing operations
and safety management, and was promoted to deputy
general manager in July 2006. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Yuan was head of general office of Suchuang Group
from January to July 2004, responsible for internal operation,
regulatory compliance and external relationships. From
1993 to 2004, Mr. Yuan served in the People’s Liberation
Army in Beijing Military Region JtRE[&) and retried from
the People’s Liberation Army with the rank of captain. He
graduated from China People’s Liberation Army International
Relations College (B A K f## i E BB @A 26 in July
1999 specialising in Optic Intelligence Terminal Processing
(HEBEREmHEIE) and from Correspondence Institute of
the Party School of the Central Committee of the CPC (# #t
PRERHZER) in the PRC specialising in law through
its distance learning programme in December 2001. He was
awarded the qualification of engineer in June 2009.

Mr. Lian Guangyou (EEZX), aged 65, joined the Group
in May 2002 and is the chief engineer of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for its general technology and engineering
work. Mr. Lian joined Taicang Natural Gas in May 2002 as
chief engineer, responsible for designing the construction
of natural gas pipeline networks. Mr. Lian has 25 years of
experience in the management and operations of large oil
and gas enterprises. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lian
was a senior engineer and later promoted to the head of
Zhongyuan Petroleum Company Ethylene Plant ({1 R
AR from January 1992 to March 2002, responsible
for managing construction projects and production. From
October 1984 to December 1991, Mr. Lian was an engineer
and later promoted to the head of Zhongyuan Oil Field
Gas Company Pucheng Gas Processing Plant (F R i
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KRR N FE R S IR BR), responsible for overseeing
the purification and compression of natural gas and
overall management of the plant. From September 1976
to September 1984, Mr. Lian was a technician and later
promoted to an assistant engineer at Chongqging Oil Field
(;REEHH), responsible for implementation of atmospheric
and vacuum distillation technology. Mr. Lian graduated from
University of Petroleum (F£J#AZ) (now known as China
University of Petroleum (F BIf2J8A&%)) in the PRC in August
1976 with a bachelor’s degree in oil refining. In addition,
he was certified as a senior engineer by China National
Petroleum Company (FEIAMRARAER

China National Petroleum Corporation) in December 1995.

al) (now known as

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (RE#), aged 43, is the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company,
responsible for the oversight of the Group’s financial and
accounting operations, as well as company secretarial
and internal control function. Mr. Ng has over 16 years of
experience in accounting and auditing. Since December
2010, Mr. Ng has been a non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee of Chaowei Power Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 951), responsible for oversight of
the financial management and reporting. From December
2010 to October 2013, Mr. Ng served as the chief financial
officer of a private company which is engaged in wholesale
agricultural produce markets in the PRC. From January
2010 to December 2010, he served as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of Chaowei Power
Holdings Limited, responsible for oversight of financial and
accounting operations, company secretarial and internal
control function. From March 2000 to December 2009, Mr.
Ng worked in the Assurance and Advisory Business Services
Department of Ernst & Young and was a senior manager of
Ernst & Young from October 2006 to November 2009.

Mr. Ng graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts in
Accountancy in November 1997. Mr. Ng has been an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2003 and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since June
2006.
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Mr. Zhou Jihui (JB#1E), aged 54, joined the Group in April
2014 and is the deputy general manager of the Company,
responsible for the Group’s strategic development planning
and managing the Group’s construction projects. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has gained extensive
experience in the field of urban gas. From July 1985 to
March 2009, Mr. Zhou worked at Southwest Municipal
Engineering Design & Research Institute of China (FEIT
R TR R @B AR A 5)) where he held various
positions including assistant engineer, engineer, senior
engineer and chief gas engineer, responsible for urban gas
design, consultation and technology management. From
March 2009 to August 2012, Mr. Zhou was at PetroChina
Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited (4 A B &
mAARFABMRAE]) where he held various positions
including CNG chief technology officer responsible for
CNG engineering and technology management, the director
of the engineering technology department responsible for
the overall management of engineering and technology
operations, and the director of the information technology
department responsible for technology and information
technology management. Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s
degree in urban gas energy supply engineering (YA
HBEMETIZ) from Chonging Institute of Architecture and
Engineering (EFEHETIZZM) (now known as Chongging
University (BB AZ)) in the PRC in July 1985. Mr. Zhou
has been a certified senior engineer from December 1997
and a member of the Subcommittee of High Pressure Fuel
Gas Cylinders for Automobile of the National Gas Cylinder
Standardisation Technical Committee (& B RIRIZ (L B ilT
ZEgEARBRHARMORMEZE®) and the Professional
Committee of Compressed Natural Gas of the China Gas
Society (FTHITATREBEMRALDEERBAAREXEZES)
since September 2011 and October 2011, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2016, the global economy was still facing a grim
situation, where significant events such as the drastic
fluctuation in international oil price, the referendum on
Brexit, the increase in interest rate by the U.S. Federal
Reserve and the U.S. presidential election had increased
market volatility worldwide. However, as the British
and American economy recovered stably, the Chinese
government continuously carried out a proactive fiscal
policy and prudent monetary policy during the year, being a
critical guarantee for stable economic growth in China and
the world and also facilitating a steady rise in natural gas
consumption all over the country. According to the statistics
of the National Development and Reform Committee of
the People’s Republic of China (“NDRC”), the natural gas
consumption was 205.8 billion cubic metres in 2016,

increased by 6.6% on year-on-year basis.

The National Energy Administration of China emphasised
to follow closely a new trend of international energy
technology revolution based on national conditions and to
boost the consumption ratio of clean energy such as non-
fossil energy and natural gas, so as to develop the green
and low-carbon modes of production and life and build an
ecologically civilized society. In early 2017, the National
Energy Administration of China issued the 13th Five-Year
Plan for Energy Development (the “Plan”), proposing to
increase the proportion of non-fossil energy consumption to
over 15% and that of natural gas consumption up to 10%,
and decrease the proportion of coal consumption to less
than 58% during the 13th Five-Year Plan period. Meanwhile,
the Guiding Opinions on Energy-related Work in 2016
explicitly state that the efficient use of natural gas shall be
critical, including the following specific steps: improving
technology standard of natural gas in the traffic field,
strengthening planning and construction of gas refueling
stations, and aggressively developing vehicles driven by
natural gas; encouraging the development of peaking plants
powered by natural gas and the co-supply system of cooling,
heating and power; expanding utilized substitution of natural
gas and superseding coal in regions like Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region, Yangtze River Delta region and Pearl River
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Delta region to orderly develop industrial boiler (furnace)
powered by natural gas; facilitating consolidated utilization
of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) cold energy and properly
developing the industrial heating by natural gas to advance
integrated development between gas and new energy power
generation.

The advance for the marketization reform of natural gas also
gave certain added momentum in realizing the establishment
of a modern energy market framework. In 2015, the Chinese
government reduced the maximum gateway station price
of natural gas for non-residential usage by RMB0.7/m’, and
proposed to further allow the supplier and purchaser to raise
the price by 20% based on the standard gateway station
price after 20 November 2016, thus adjusting the market
supply and demand by means of price. On 15 November
2016, the NDRC issued the Notice of Relevant Matters
Concerning Gateway Station Price Policy of Natural Gas
in Fujian Province, and formally carried out the market-
oriented reform pilot for gateway station price of natural
gas, stipulating that the gateway station price of natural gas
in Fujian Province would be determined through negotiation
by the supplier and purchaser, rather than priced under
the guidance of the government, which opened up a new
chapter for price marketization and realized the open and
transparent pricing mechanism. At present, except for the
natural gas for residential usage concerning the people’s
livelihood, gateway station price for over 80% of the total
natural gas consumption nationwide for non-residential
usage is mainly self-determined by enterprises themselves,
marking a great stride for the comprehensive market-
oriented reform of natural gas industry in China.

Natural gas is the inevitable road through which the global
energy transformation will be achieved, and it has been
favored by more and more countries over time. On the first
G20 Day of natural gas, China, being one of the markets
in the world with the most potential, was the consensus
among all parties. The “2016 Beijing G20 Energy Ministers’
Meeting Communique”, issued after the meeting, stated that
G20 nations agreed to adopt various kinds of energy such
as renewable energy, nuclear energy and natural gas, and to
advance cleaner fossil energy technology for all countries
to develop suitable energy structures based on their own
national conditions.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

On 31 December 2016, as the dominant piped natural gas
operator in Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, our natural gas
pipeline network totaling 574.0 km covering the major
districts in Taicang City, and which had already covered over
90% (in terms of length) of the natural gas pipeline network

in Taicang City.

During the year, the Group expanded its business coverage
to cities or regions outside Taicang City by the acquisition
of 51% equity interests in Sichuan Guangyuan Licheng
Gas Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan Guangyuan Licheng Gas”),
and expanded the business of compressed natural gas
(“CNG”) refueling stations. Sichuan Guangyuan Licheng
Gas is dominant in the CNG refuelling station business
in Guangyuan City, and currently operates three CNG
refuelling stations for sale of CNG for vehicular use in
Guangyuan City, and has one CNG refueling station under
construction in Guangyuan City. During the year, the Group
further expanded its piped natural gas business to regions
outside Taicang City by the acquisition of 80% equity
interests in Kunshan Anda Natural Gas Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Kunshan Anda”), which has strengthened the Group’s
natural gas business in Jiangsu Province, China, and laid
a solid foundation for continual expansion of its future

business.

Natural gas sale and transmission business

Taicang City, our main operating area, is a major industrial
county-level city in Jiangsu Province, and is adjacent to
affluent cities in Eastern China, such as Suzhou, Kunshan,
Changshu and Shanghai, with remarkable geographic
advantages available, creating the Shanghai-Taicang one-city
effect together with Shanghai. The dynamic economic and
industrial development has brought unceasingly increasing
industrial and commercial users of natural gas to the Group.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has 550 commercial
and industrial users, and 179,000 residential users,
increasing by 13 users and approximately 20,000 users

Management Discussion and Analysis
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respectively as compared to 31 December 2015. During the
year, revenue generated from our sale and transmission of
natural gas business decreased by 8.0% to approximately
RMB620.7 million from approximately RMB674.6 million
in 2015, which accounted for 83.8% of the Group’s total
revenue. Such decrease was mainly due to decrease in sale

of natural gas to industrial users during the year.

During the year, the Group expanded its piped natural
gas business to Kunshan City, Jiangsu Province by means
of acquisition. Kunshan City is the second largest city in
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, as well as a rising industrial and
commercial city in the Shanghai economic circle, ranking
first in the list of “Top 100 Economic Counties” in 2016.
As shown in the report by the Kunshan Economic and
Information Commission, the industrial scale of Kunshan
City soared year by year during the 12th Five-Year Plan
period, and there were more than 20,000 industrial
enterprises by the end of 2015. Data about total industrial
output value of Kunshan City was supplemented in 2016.
According to the plan, Kunshan will comprehensively
upgrade the core competence of industrial economy
during the 13th Five-Year Plan period. Along with the
steady implementation of the “One Belt, One Road”,
and “Made in China 2025” and “Internet +”strategies,
the integration of “Yangtze River Economic Zone” and
the Yangtze River Delta, as well as regional development
planning such as modernized construction demonstration
zone and independent innovation demonstration zone in
Southern Suzhou Province, Kunshan City will accelerate
the transformation of industrial economic growth mode,
adjust the industrial structure, create favorable environment
and broad space for sustainable development of industrial
economy, and also provide good growth opportunities for
the development of the Group’s piped natural gas business
in Qiandeng Town, Kunshan City.
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Natural gas pipeline construction and connection
business

The Group’s natural gas pipeline construction and
connection business includes the construction and
installation of urban gas pipeline networks, as well as the
connection of the networks to the end-user pipelines for
property developers and new industrial and commercial
users. During the year, revenue generated from natural
gas pipeline construction amounted to RMB116.0 million,
representing a decrease of 1.2% from RMB117.4 million
of as the corresponding period of 2015, which accounted
for 15.7% of the total revenue during the year. The 13th
Five-Year Plan for Urban Housing Development and
Housing Guarantee of Taicang City was completed during
the year, explicitly stating that: the newly-increased area
of commercial housing within 5 years in Taicang will be
7.98 million m?, totaling approximately 760,000 houses,
the supplying objects of which include population with
Taicang household registration, population without Taicang
household registration and population overflowing from
Shanghai. The continuous completion of newly-increased
property buildings will be expected to create new revenue
growth to the Group’s natural gas pipeline construction and

connection business.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenue

Our total revenue decreased by 6.9% from RMB795.6
million in 2015 to RMB740.9 million in 2016. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue from

transmission of natural gas business during the year.
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Gross profit

Our gross profit increased by 4.5% from RMB200.4 million
in 2015 to RMB209.3 million in 2016. The increase
was primarily due to the increase in gross profit from
construction and connection of gas pipelines businesses. The
increase in the Group’s gross profit margin from 25.2% to
28.3% was primarily due to the slight increase in gross profit
margin of construction and connection of gas pipelines
business as a result of more revenue generated from new
residential projects with a higher gross profit margin during
the year.

Other income and gains
Other income and gains decreased by 32.5% from RMB33.2
million in 2015 to RMB22.4 million in 2016, primarily
due to the decrease in government grants received and
foreign exchange gain and no disposal of prepaid land lease
payments happened in 2016.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 20.5% from
RMB40.1T million in 2015 to RMB48.3 million in 2016,
which was mainly due to the increase in staff costs, such

increase was in line with the Group’s business expansion.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by 22.2% from RMB5.8 million
in 2015 to RMB4.5 million in 2016. The decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in average borrowing balances
in 2016.

Share of profits of associates

Our share of profits of associates decreased by 67.0% from
RMB4.7 million in 2015 to RMB1.5 million in 2016. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in sales of
pipeline natural gas business of our associated companies in
2016.
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Income tax expense

Our income tax expense decreased by 3.8% from RMB46.7
million in 2015 to RMB44.9 million in 2016, primarily
attributable to our decreased taxable income for the year
2016. Our effective tax rate remained stable at 25.2% and
26.6% in 2015 and 2016 respectively.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

In 2016, profit attributable to owners of the parent amounted
to approximately RMB120.7 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 13.0% from approximately RMB138.6
million for 2015.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current assets
of approximately RMB343,424,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB279,596,000) of which cash and cash equivalents
were approximately RMB400,359,000 (31 December
2015: approximately RMB445,389,000). Total borrowings
were approximately RMB95,780,000 (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB60,000,000). The amount of bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2016 were denominated in
RMB and HK dollars and bore interest ranging from 2.87%
to 5.39% per annum. Except for RMB35.8 million which
are repayable within one year, the rest of balances are not
repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s current ratio (current
assets/current liabilities) was 2.03 (31 December 2015:
1.96) and gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets) was
approximately 5.8% (31 December 2015: approximately
4.4%). The Group has sufficient cash and available banking
facilities to meet its commitments and working capital
requirements. This strong cash position enables the Group
to explore potential investment and business development

opportunities to expand its business in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

S ERE SR

Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

As all of the Group’s businesses are situated in the PRC,
substantially all of its income and expenses are denominated
in RMB, therefore, there were no significant risk relating
to exchange fluctuation in 2016. The Group will closely
monitor the interest rate and exchange rate of the market

and make appropriate responses when necessary.

Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: nil).

Charge on assets

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
assets were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The aggregate carrying amounts of the assets
of the Group pledged at the end of each of the reporting

periods are as follows:

BE =% B LBz
EHB”:‘K%IB/:‘EP REEEMBEY  EREX
MDWARRZTIRAREINE -ﬁﬁfﬁ/\

2016@&%4&@&@@?@% I EN A
AEBBEYESMENBERER » TR
BE H—ﬁmﬁy\ B ESEIE o

HAREE

MR2016%F12A318 » KREE T E(L A E K
AR EE (2015F 128318 « ) o

BEEM

R R AEEDERETEEURE
BT AEBOBATRE - REREEFK K
EEEEAEENEEAEMT -

2016 2015

2016%F 20155

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETTT AREFTT

Property, plant and equipment W - BERHK 124,035 127,177
Prepaid land lease payments FER + 303 S RKIE 4,323 4,423
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Capital Commitments
The Group had the following capital commitments at the

end of the year:

Management Discussion and Analysis

S ERE SR

BARESE
REBRFERNEAAFENT

2016 2015
2016%F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: BETAIE K7 -
Property, plant and equipment M BB REE 11,198 -
Approved, but not contracted for: EFHIERETH -
Property, plant and equipment M~ WENEE — 98,834
Human Resources and Employees’ Remuneration ADERK & E M

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of
202 (31 December 2015: 195) staff members in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the total cost of employees
amounted to approximately RMB37.3 million. The Group
sought to further strengthen staff training by offering focused
training programmes and study tours to management and
professional technical personnel, and disseminating the
latest information of government policy on the distribution
and sale of piped natural gas business to its staff. The Group
continued to strive for the enhancement of professional
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group
also provided competitive salary packages to its staff,
encouraging them to be fully dedicated to their work and to
leverage their capabilities in serving customers.

R2016%F12 8318 AEEBEFBEES
& A& #2024 8 T (2015128318 :
1954) o

REEFERN BERFTEBRORARYE
373BBL - AREBREBAEEBERE
ERA A B REHEMENIEIIRE - AR
BT HMBRABREERIHEEERARE
BRROSHER - E—FIMNRYE T
Al e AEBBEHNIRFAHE THEREKE
MERRE AKENASEETRHARF
NHFMFE  ASBHMELCTE &R
BPRISRERT BE °
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has been in compliance with
the mandatory code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) since
the listing of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) (the
“Listing”) on the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2015 (the
“Listing Date”). The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are outlined later in this annual
report.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group to the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees,
namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.
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Board composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
nine members, consisting of four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)

Ms. Su Yi (Executive Vice Chairman)
Ms. Zhu Yaying

Mr. Du Shaozhou

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Lei
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu

Mr. He Junjie

Mr. Luk Wai Keung

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 15 to
21 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the biographies
of the Directors and that Mr. Su Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying
have jointly own and operate a number of companies, the
Board members do not have any family, financial or business
relationship among themselves, and between the chairman
and the chief executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this annual report, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement of
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board.
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The Company has received the annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors on his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Board meeting

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all
regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for

regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice will generally be given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors
or Board Committee members at least three days before the
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to
be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings are/will be recorded in sufficient detail to
include the matters considered by the Board and the Board
Committee and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the date on which the meeting is held.
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Attendance at Board and Board Committee ZEEENEEZESEEMHEBR
Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings SZEENREZE AT KA H ((ﬁﬁaﬁﬁfﬁi)
and Board Committee meetings held up to the date of this FTE{TH LS E=TCCZNEETELZE ST D:;
annual report (the “Relevant Period”) is set out as follows. HJH BHE RO - %Zi2016$12ﬂ31
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company HIFFE @ ARA BT XBRREFAE -

convened an annual general meeting.

Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee ~ Committee general
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
BExg ERZEE RHZEg HHEEe BRER
Name of director EEMA L EE L L BERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Su Aping (Chairman) EROSE A () 8/8 N/A T 22 N/A TNEH 11
Ms. Zhu Yaying RLELT 8/8 N/ATNEM NA TEA 2/2 1/1
Mr. Du Shaozhou AR L L 8/8 N/ATEM NATER NATEA 7
Ms. Su Yi RIS
(Executive Vice Chairman) (RBEEE) 44 NATER NATER NATER NATER
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Mr. Xu Lei HELE 8/8 212 N/ARER  NA TEA 7
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao HEAEE 44 N/ATNER NATNER  NATER  NATER
Independent Non-executive ~BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BB L E 8/8 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
Mr. He Junjie fAEGEE & 8/8 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PR ELE 8/8 2/2 N/A @R NATER 1n
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members, three of them
are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou
Qingzu, Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and one of
them is a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Lei. Mr.
Zhou Qingzu, the Company’s independent non-executive
Director, has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Luk Wai Keung possesses the appropriate

professional qualifications required under the Listing Rules.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board of the appointment
and removal of the external auditors, review financial
statements and review and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal control procedures of the Group. The
Audit Committee has access to independent professional
advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee held two
meetings. The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal audit function, and with the senior
management and auditors of the Company reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, the risk management and internal control
system and financial reporting matters. It also reviewed
the financial statements of the Company, the Company’s
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and
the Company’s annual report for year ended 31 December
2016.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the
above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, two
of them are independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Zhou Qingzu, and one of them is
an executive Director, namely, Ms. Zhu Yaying. Mr. He
Junjie, the Company’s independent non-executive Director,
has been appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee has access to
independent professional advice, if required, and is provided

with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board as to the Company’s
policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy.

The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman
of the Board about the remuneration proposals for the other

executive Directors.

During the Relevant Period, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings. The Remuneration Committee
reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company and the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and made

recommendation to the Board.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members
at the above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
one of them is an executive Director, namely Mr. Su Aping,
and two of them are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Zhou Qingzu. Mr. Su Aping
has been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee has access to
professional advice, if required, and is provided with

sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set
out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

During the Relevant Period, the Nomination Committee held
two meetings. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board and made recommendation to the
Board.

The attendance of the Nomination Committee members at
the above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company shall

establish comprehensive corporate governance practices and

procedures. During the Relevant Period, the Board has:

(1)

established and reviewed the corporate governance
policies and practices of the Company as well as made
relevant recommendations;

reviewed and monitored the training and continuous

development of the Directors and senior management;

reviewed and monitored the policies and practices of
the Company regarding the compliance of relevant
legal and regulatory requirements;

established, reviewed and monitored code of conduct
for Directors and employees; and

reviewed as to whether the Company has complied
with the CG Code and made necessary disclosures in
the annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the

Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

Corporate Governance Report
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As required by code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separated
and performed by different individuals. The chairman of
the Board and the general manager of the Company are
currently two separate positions held by Mr. Su Aping and
Mr. Du Shaozhou respectively with distinct responsibilities.
The chairman of the Board is responsible for overall strategic
planning and overseeing the general corporate, financial
and compliance affairs of the Group. The general manager is
primarily responsible for the strategic decision making and
the management of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - TERM OF
APPOINTMENT

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are not appointed for a specific term of

more than three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Three of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Su Aping,
Ms.
service contract with the Company for an initial term of

Zhu Yaying and Mr. Du Shaozhou entered into a

three years commencing from the Listing Date and shall
continue thereafter unless terminated by not less than six
months’ written notice. Mr. Xu Lei, a non-executive Director
and each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date unless
terminated by three months’ written notice or in certain
circumstances in accordance with the terms of the relevant
letter of appointment.

Ms. Su Yi, an executive Director, entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 30 June 2016 unless terminated by six
months’ written notice or in certain circumstances as in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement. Mr.
Zhuang Jianhao, a non-executive Director, entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 30 June 2016 unless terminated by
three months’ written notice or in certain circumstances in

accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.
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None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has any service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The rules and procedures governing the appointment,
retirement, re-election and removal of Directors are set out
in the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”). The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the Board structure, size and composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT
AND RE-ELECTION

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment at every annual general meeting provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
next annual general meeting after appointment.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer” (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of
the Company by the Directors and the Group’s senior
management who, because of his/her office or employment,
is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the Model Code during the Relevant
Period. In addition, the Company is not aware of any non-
compliance of the Model Code by the senior management
of the Group up to the date of annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. All Directors have received an
induction package covering the regulatory obligations of
a director of a listed company. During the year, we have
sent and provided a briefing session with respect to the
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory and statutory requirements to all the
Directors to ensure compliance and enhance the Directors’
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016, except for a
member of senior management whose remuneration fell
within the ranging from HK$5.0 million to HK$5.5 million,
the remuneration of the rest of the members of senior

management were below HK$1 million.

Further details of the remuneration of Directors and five
highest paid employees have been set out in notes 8 and 9
to the financial statements.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to Ernst
& Young for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out
below:
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EXATHERENERBEY S HEERE
ERBERABERNMENNS 2 NHE N6
NHEREEFEABEAEANIEAFD
BATREESFLER - 2REZCES
EERELTAREFEEERETHMNE
INER - FA - AREABNRAZEES
RHAR MR REMEREE FAEM
EZEMBRNENE  UEREFETZ
SRANTRFEFTHRILEEQAFRIR
FEZ e

SRS IR E

HE2016F12A31HEFE BR—Zak
EEEKENTMN F5.088 8 LE5.58
EETHEE) HBRSREEEXNENH
BRI BEEBTT

FREZFMM A ERSFMEENE P
BRSNS Py e e I ER

ZEE £
HZE2016F12A31BIEFE > B
FENZ KM EBEEITAINE DT a0
T:

Amount

(RMB)

Items of auditors’ services e R 1E B (ARE)
Audit services FEIZRT 2,350,000
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out
in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this

annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of
the Board to maintain an internal audit function and an
adequate risk management and internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets
and to review the effectiveness of such system on an annual

basis.

The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are to provide a clear
governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as
a reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage it
risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the senior management of the Company.
The Board determines the nature and extent of risks that
shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives,
and has the overall responsibility for monitoring design,

implementation and control of the risk management and
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internal control systems, so as to ensure the Group has set
up and maintained a suitable and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has formulated and adopted a Corporate Risk
Management Policy in providing direction in identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an
annual basis, the senior management identifies risks that
would affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to be
significant.

Risk management report and internal control report are
submitted to the audit committee and the Board at least
once a year. The Board had performed an annual review
on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the
Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality
of management’s review on risk management and internal
control systems; result of internal audit work and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are

effective.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the
Listing Rules and ensures that inside information is disclosed
to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours of the SFO.
Before inside information is fully disclosed to the public,
such information is kept strictly confidential. In addition, the
Group adopted the policy of disclosing relevant information
only to appropriate staff within the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Chi Kit, the Company Secretary, reports to the
chairman of the Board. The details of his biography is set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Mr. Ng also confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December
2016.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be
called by the Board. The written requisition must specify the
business to be transacted on the meeting, which shall be

held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
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If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene an
EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may themselves
convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to such

shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Address:  13th Floor, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway,
Hong Kong

Email: ir@taicanggas.com

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board

committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond
to the shareholder(s)’ questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward
proposals at general meetings of the Company shall
submit such proposals to the Board in writing for the
Board’s consideration not less than 7 days prior to the
date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary
whose contact details are set out in the paragraph headed
“Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board” under the section headed “Shareholders Rights”
above.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing
market confidence. The Company discloses information in
compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic
reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely,
fair, accurate and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions. Updated key information and business
development of the Group are also available on the
Company’s website to enable Shareholders and investors to
have timely access to information about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
general meetings which provide a forum for Shareholders
to provide comments and exchange views with the Board.
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available
at the annual general meetings of the Company to address

Shareholders” queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure

effective Shareholders” communication and transparency.

There has been no change to the Articles of Association
since the Listing Date and up to date version of the Articles
of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal business activities of the Group include
distribution and sale of piped natural gas, provision of
natural gas transmission and acting as the main contractor
of construction and installation of gas pipelines in the PRC.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
107 to 112.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of RMB0.028 (equivalent to HK$0.032) per
ordinary Share for shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 26
May 2017. Subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Friday, 19 May 2017, the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on Wednesday, 15 June
2016 to the shareholders of the Company. This represented a
total distribution of RMB24.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2016.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

Summary financial information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 224. This summary does not

form part of the audited financial statements.
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Property, plant and equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the

financial statements, respectively.

Share capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the law of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of
the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year 31 December 2016 to the date of this annual

report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622),
amounted to RMB706,289,000, of which RMB0.028 per
Share has been proposed as a final dividend for the year
(which represented a total distribution of RMB24.2 million).
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Major customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 27.8% of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer for the year amounted
to 8.8% of the total sales for the year. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 97.2% of the
total purchases for the year and purchase from the largest
supplier for the year amounted to 67.4% of the total
purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the five largest
customers or five largest suppliers of the Group during the
year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)

Ms. Zhu Yaying

Mr. Du Shaozhou (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Su Yi (Executive (Appointed as an executive

Vice Chairman) Director on 30 June 2016

and appointed as Executive
Vice Chairman on
21 February 2017)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Xu Lei

Mr. Zhuang Jianhao (Appointed on 30 June 2016)

Independent Non-executive
Directors:
Mr. Zhou Qingzu
Mr. Luk Wai Keung
Mr. He Junjie
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Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles of Association, Mr.
Du Shaozhou, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Mr. Xu Lei will retire
from office as Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

Further, in accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, Ms, Su Yi and Mr. Zhuang Jianhao will hold
office only until the forthcoming annual general meeting,

and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. He Junjie and
Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 15 to

26 of this annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

Three of our executive Directors, Mr. Su Aping, Ms.
Zhu Yaying and Mr. Du Shaozhou, has entered into a
service contract with us for an initial term of three years
commencing from 11 March 2015 and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than six months’

written notice.

One of our non-executive Directors, Mr. Xu Lei, and each of
our independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Qingzu,
Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Luk Wai Keung, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 11 March 2015 unless terminated
by three months’ written notice or in certain circumstances
in accordance with the terms of the relevant letter of
appointment.
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Ms. Su Yi, an executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 30 June 2016 unless terminated by six
months’ written notice or in certain circumstances as in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement. Mr.
Zhuang Jianhao, a non-executive Director, has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 30 June 2016 unless terminated by
three months’ written notice or in certain circumstances in

accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’ interests in
contracts

Save as disclosed under the headings “Connected
Transactions” below and “Related Party Transactions” in
note 36 to the financial statements, no Director, entity
connected with a director, controlling shareholders or any
of their subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

During the year, no contract of significance for the provision
of service to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any

of its subsidiaries was made.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence as at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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Notes:
(1)

185,880,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu
Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned by Mr. Su Aping.
123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly-owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
BOS Trustee Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Ms. Su Yi are two of the several eligible beneficiaries. Mr.
Su Aping is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the
Company held by Fung Yu Holdings Limited pursuant to the
SFO. Besides, Mr. Su Aping is the spouse of Ms. Zhu Yaying.
Under the SFO, Mr. Su Aping is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Ms. Zhu Yaying is
interested.

Ms. Zhu Yaying is the spouse of Mr. Su Aping. Under the
SFO, Ms. Zhu Yaying is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Su Aping is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none

of the Directors and chief executive had registered an

interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant

to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers.
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EEEWRE
Interests in underlying shares of the Company — equity RAREEERGNOEZD — NAaE
derivatives of the Company: wmOTAETH :
Number of
underlying shares
in respect of the Percentage
share options of the

granted under the ~ Company’s
Scheme issued share
REZERL capital
BRERSR EXRICHT

Name of directors EEng Capacity £ HEERGEE REANELR
Mr. Su Aping BWELE Beneficial owner ERERAA 2,200,000 0.25%
Ms. Zhu Yaying RERLL Beneficial owner ERBEBA 2,000,000 0.23%
Ms. Su Vi #HEut Beneficial owner EHEAA 2,000,000 0.23%
Mr. Du Shaozhou HBATE Beneficial owner EREBA 2,000,000 0.23%
Mr. Xu Lei AEEE Beneficial owner EREAA 200,000 0.02%
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BAEALE Beneficial owner ExEAA 200,000 0.02%
Mr. He Junjie IRt Beneficial owner ExERA 200,000 0.02%
Mr. Luk Wai Keung EREBLE Beneficial owner EREBA 200,000 0.02%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none [ L#tFT#FEE SN - BR2016F12H318 -
of the Directors and chief executive had registered an HEEFERTBTHABRANRQFSHEM
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares FEEOEE MG « HEARMH I EEZTHES
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated 1RIEZE 7 K HAGRHISE352KBE R » IR
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant IRFRESTRIZAEZR TG AR R M B P afE
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the ImIAE °

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.
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FERREEMATRRG KAEERD
MR XA

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to the

R2016F12A31H  BARBEEREE

directors or chief executive of the Company, the following 1T AEBFTA » U TIRE (TEEAARE
shareholders (excluding directors and chief executive of the FERFEBITHAER) RARQEMRHND RIEEK

1“43 %ﬁS%ﬁL‘ALj’IEﬁ(EEEAZK“*T*E%F
EHMBERIIE36IRATHFENES

Company) had interests and short positions of 5% or more
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as

60

recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by uafﬂ}lﬁ Bt KR
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
Number of capital
ordinary . YNS]
shares held — BEIRAR
Name e Nature of interest Rt igeE-salie = B
Fung Yu Holdings Fung Yu Holdings Beneficial owner EREA 185,880,000 (L) 21.54
Limited (1) Limited (1)
Dazhong (Hong Kong) KT (FE) BE Beneficial owner EXEEA 170,534,000 (L) 19.76
International BRART
Corporation
Limited
Shanghai Dazhong Public LERRRARESR Interest of a controlled ~ REEZEMN#EE 170,534,000 (L) 19.76
Utilities (Group) (5B) ROHBRAF corporation
Co., Limited
Action East International HEEE Beneficial owner EEHAA 165,540,000 (L) 19.18
Limited (2) BRAT ()
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China Interest of a controlled REEFERNER 165,540,000 (L) 19.18
Growth Fund Ill, Growth Fund IIl, corporation
L.P.(2) L.P.(2)
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China Interest of a controlled R EIEABAER 165,540,000 (L) 19.18
Growth Fund Ill Growth Fund 11l corporation
GP, Ltd. (2) GP, Ltd. (2)
Total Honest International BEEESA Beneficial owner ERBEAA 123,138,000 1427
Investment Ltd. BRAFE
Ridge Glorious Limited Ridge Glorious Limited Interest of a controlled R EEMER 123,138,000 14.27
corporation
BOS Trustee Limited BOS Trustee Limited Interest of a controlled NREEERER 123,138,000 14.27
corporation
(L denotes long position (L) RREFE
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Notes:
(1)

Fung Yu Holdings Limited is held as to 100% by Mr. Su
Aping, an executive Director.

Action East International Limited is wholly-owned by
Prax Capital China Growth Fund Ill, L.P.. Under the SFO,
Prax Capital China Growth Fund Ill, L.P. is deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Action
East International Limited is interested.

Prax Capital China Growth Fund III,L.P. is a limited
partnership established in the Cayman Islands whose sole
general partner is Prax Capital China Growth Fund Il GP,
Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

Dazhong (Hong Kong) International Corporation Limited
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Limited, a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code 600635 and
on the Stock Exchange with stock code 1635. Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Limited is deemed
to be interested in the same number of shares in which
Dazhong (Hong Kong) International Corporation Limited is
interested.

Total Honest International Investment Ltd is wholly-owned
by Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned
by BOS Trustee Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Ms. Su Yi are two of the several eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no

person, other than the Directors and chief executive of

the Company, whose interests are set out in the section

“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions

in shares and underlying shares and debentures” above,

had registered an interest or short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company that was required to be

recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

B bt P BE & SN
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Fung Yu Holdings LimitedFA¥L77E F &
B[ SE A58 100% M 4 ©

AHEEXER AT HPrax Capital China
Growth Fund Ill, LP.2EHE - REFH
KHAE & + Prax Capital China Growth
Fund Ill, LPRBEARAREXERAR
BAEEROROTEABRZKE R KE

m °

Prax Capital China Growth Fund IlI,
LP.RARMASHERINEREREE
EHME—#E@E A RPrax Capital China
Growth Fund Ill GP, Ltd. - & & RNH=
HERMXINEREERR -

AR (BR) BBRBERARAELEERER
HEX (8 BRDARRAR (EXAMK
7 R 5% - 600635 ¢ B BT A% 15 5% ¢
1635) 2 EWBERR - FBRKBRARSE
¥ (£E8) BOBERAREEARAR (B
) BBRBERAREEESHNROTES
EIGE Q= Reoli qr 2

Al Bl B4R & B R A Al @ERidge Glorious
Limited® & #% & - fRidge Glorious
LimitedJyEABOS Trustee Limited{EA%
BEANITAZRERR  MATRLZLT
REFTA  RRTDHRETRHEEZ T HE
UEERI @A ANEF WAL

MR20165F12A318 -

BEEEAAL (AAREFREBTRAR
BRON) MR EX [EEREETRA
BB  FBBE AR D TR 1B 4 4 M 26 R
B WAL R S ARRIRAD B
BRI ES RS R0 53361 BB E B
SRR -
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Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors), other employees of the Group,
consultants and advisers of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 11 March 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

Principal terms of the Scheme

A summary of the principal terms of the Scheme is set out
below pursuant to the requirements as contained in Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules:

(a) Purpose
The purposes of the Scheme are to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees, directors, consultants and
advisers of the Group and to promote the success of
the business of the Group.

(b)  Participants
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
employee (whether full-time or part-time), Director,
consultant or adviser of the Group (the “Eligible
Person”).

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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(c)

(d)

Total number of shares available for issue under the
scheme and percentage of issued share capital as at
31 March 2017

The number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme was 40,000,000 Shares, representing 4.43%
of the issued share of the Company as at 31 March
2017.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
scheme

Unless approved by the Shareholders in a general
meeting (with such Eligible Person and his close
associates (or his associates if the Eligible Person is a
connected person) abstaining from voting), the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the relevant class of securities of the Company in

issue.

(c)

(d)
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(e)

Any options granted to an Eligible Person who is
a Substantial Shareholder, or independent non-
executive Director, or their respective associates,
which will result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all the
options granted and to be granted (including options
whether exercised, cancelled or still outstanding) to
such person in the period of 12 months up to and
including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% (or such
other percentage as may from time to time be
specified by the Stock Exchange) of the issued
share capital of the Company; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000 (or such
other amount as may from time to time be
specified by the Stock Exchange).

Such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting of the Company.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

The exercise period of any option granted under the
Scheme shall be determined by the Board but such
period must not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant option.
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(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The Scheme does not specify any minimum holding
period before the option can be exercised but the
Board has the authority to determine the minimum
holding period when the options are granted.

The amount payable upon acceptance of option
HK$1.00 is payable by each eligible participant to
the Company on acceptance of options within 21

days from the date of the making of such offer.

Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price shall not be less than the greater
of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on

the date of grant of such option;

(i) the average closing prices of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of such option; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the share.
The remaining life of the scheme

The Scheme is effective for a period of 10 vyears
commencing from 11 March 2015.

(f)

g

(h)

(i)
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Movements of share options
Movements of the share options granted to the participants

BREZD

REZAIERTLEALZBREREGH

pursuant to the Scheme during the Relevant Period are as  HRfSIH9EEH AT -
follows:
Number of share options
BREYE
Cancelled/
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at
Date of Exercise  Exercise period 1 January during during during 31 December
Grantee grant price  (note) 2016 the year the year the year 2016
H2016% R20168
fiyid 1A18 Eng 128318
ERA REAH EE (W) MATE  ERCRE  EACHE HE/&N WA
Directors
EX
Mr. Su Aping 29 January 2016 HK$2.00 29 January 2016 to - 2,200,000 - - 2,200,000
28 January 2024
WL 2016%1 4298 20087 2016F1729BZ - 2,200,000 - - 2,200,000
2024514288
Ms. Zhu Yaying 29 January 2016 HK$2.00 29 January 2016 to - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
28 January 2024
REELT 2016%F1A29H 20087 2016F18298% - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
2024517288
Ms. SuYi 29 January 2016 HK$2.00 29 January 2016 to - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
28 January 2024
HIut 2016F 14298 20081 2016%F1A290% - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
2024517288
Mr. Du Shaozhou 29 January 2016 HK$2.00 29 January 2016 to - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
28 January 2024
HERARE 2016514298 20081 2016%F1A290% - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
2024517288
Mr. Xu Lei 29 January 2016 HK$2.00 29 January 2016 to - 200,000 - - 200,000
28 January 2024
HELE 2016%1A29A 2008 2016172982 - 200,000 - - 200,000
2024517288
Mr. Zhou Qingzu 29 January 2016 HK$2.00 29 January 2016 to - 200,000 - - 200,000
28 January 2024
AERRE 2016F1A298 20087 2016F1429BZ - 200,000 - - 200,000
2024517288
Mr. He Junjie 29 January 2016 HK$2.00 29 January 2016 to - 200,000 - - 200,000
28 January 2024
ks E 2016%1A29A 2008 2016182902 - 200,000 - - 200,000
2024517288
Mr. Luk Wai Keung 29 January 2016 HK$2.00 29 January 2016 to - 200,000 - - 200,000
28 January 2024
BRaLE 2016517298 20087 2016F1529E8% - 200,000 - - 200,000
2024514288
Other Employees under 29 January 2016 HK$2.00 29 January 2016 to - 11,000,000 - - 11,000,000
continuous contracts 28 January 2024
AfEENANEE 201651829 200 2016182902 - 11,000,000 - - 11,000,000
2024514288
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Note: (a) 20% of the options granted to each grantee shall vest

on 28 February 2017; (b) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 28 February 2018; (c) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2019; (d) 20% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 28 February 2020; and (e) 20% of the options
granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February 2021.

The closing price of the Shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange immediately before the date on which the options
were granted was HK$1.99.

On 24 January 2017, the Company granted a total of
20,000,000 share options to certain eligible participants of
the Group.

Connected transactions
During the year, the Group has entered into the following

continuing connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service operates gasoline and
diesel refilling stations as well as CNG and LNG refuelling
stations in Taicang City and sells diesel fuel, gasoline, CNG
and LNG to customers in the ordinary and usual course of
its business. Its customers during the year included certain
members of the Group.

Suchuang Group, as licensor, has entered into a trademark
licensing agreement with the Group, as licensee, on 1
August 2014, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to grant to the Group the right to use the trademarks “%k
&l” and @ " in the PRC in connection with the Company’s
business on a perpetual and non-exclusive basis at a
nominal consideration of RMB1.00.
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Suchuang Group, as lessee, has entered into a tenancy
agreement and a confirmation letter to the tenancy
agreement with the Group, as lessor, on 20 October 2013
and 13 September 2014 respectively (together, the “Taicang
Tenancy Agreements”). Pursuant to the Taicang Tenancy
Agreements, Suchuang Group has agreed to lease from
the Group an office premise of 1,082 square meter on 5th
Floor, No. 305 Zhenghe Middle Road, Loudong Street,
Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for an annual
rental of RMB346,500 (exclusive of tax and management
fee). The Taicang Tenancy Agreements is for a period of
three years commencing from 21 October 2013 subject to
early termination by mutual consent between the parties.
Suchuang Group further entered into a tenancy agreement
with the Group, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to lease from the Group an office premise of 1,082 square
meters on 5th Floor, 116 Loujiang South Road, Taicang City,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for an annual rental of
RMB346,500 (inclusive of tax and management fee) for a
period from 21 October 2016 to 20 October 2019. During
the year, the rental paid by Suchuang Group under the

aforesaid tenancy agreements amounted to RMB346,500.

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods Transportation Co.,
Ltd. entered into a vehicle leasing agreement with the
Group on 31 December 2015, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to lease from Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods
Ltd.
RMB650,000 (inclusive of tax) for a period from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2018.

Transportation Co., 10 vehicles for an annual fee of

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
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terms available to or from independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Details of related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business of the Group are provided under
note 36 to the financial statements.

Certain related party transactions set out in Notes 36(b)
to the financial statements (rental income received
from Suchuang Group, purchase of motor vehicle fuels
from Suzhou Suling Automobile Service, provision of
transportation services by Taicang Suchuang Dangerous
Goods Transportation Co., Ltd. and leasing of trademarks
from Suchuang Group) are regarded as exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group and were exempt from
the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements contained
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules as at 31 March 2017, being the date of this

annual report.

Directors’ interests in a competing business

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors are considered to have interests in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as

defined in the Listing Rules, as set out below:

Ms. Zhu Yaying, an executive Director, and Mr. Su Aping’s
and Ms. Zhu Yaying’s associates are indirectly interested
in Suzhou Suling Automobile Service which is principally
engaged in the operation of diesel and gasoline refuelling
stations, as well as CNG and LNG refuelling stations (the
CNG and LNG refuelling station business operated by
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service is referred to as “CNG/
LNG Business”).

On 23 February 2015, Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
and the Company entered into a deed of first offer (the
“Deed of First Offer”), pursuant to which Suzhou Suling
Automobile Service granted to the Company an irrevocable
right exercisable after rectification of the non-compliance
matters in relation to the CNG/LNG Business, for acquiring
at one or more than one time, within a period of three years
from the Deed of First Offer (extendable at the Company’s
sole discretion), all or part of the CNG/LNG Business at
the Company’s sole and absolute discretion, at the lower of
their set-up cost or fair market value to be determined by
an internationally reputable firm of accountants or valuers,
subject to the applicable governmental approvals, board
approval and shareholders’ approval of the Company (as
may be required under the Listing Rules).

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company has not
exercised its right under the Deed of First Offer.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Fung Yu Holdings
Limited has confirmed to the Company of his/her/its
compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided
to the Company under a deed of non-competition dated 23
February 2015. There has not been any opportunity in any
restricted business (being business which competes or is
likely to compete with the business of the Group from time
to time) being referred by Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Fung Yu Holdings Limited to the Company during the year.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the deed of non-competition have been complied
with by Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Fung Yu Holdings
Limited and duly enforced during the Relevant Period.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company places great emphasis on its own environmental
and social performance by increasing its support on green
economy, low-carbon economy and recycling economy
and strictly controlling high-pollution and high-energy-
consumption. We have implemented policies and procedures
to ensure compliance of the regulatory requirements and our
production safety and environmental protection. Policies and
procedures are implemented to our employees, customers
and suppliers to enhance health and safety awareness during
production.

For detailed information, please refer to the Environmental,
Social, Government Report set out from pages 76 to 96 of
this annual report.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

In order to further optimize the shareholder structure,
during the year, the Group introduced Shanghai Dazhong
Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Dazhong
Public Utilities”, Stock Code on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange: 600635.SS and Stock Code on the Stock
Exchange: 1635.HK) as a strategic shareholder by allotting
and issuing 32,288,000 new ordinary shares (“2016
Subscription Shares”) of the Company to Dazhong (Hong
Kong) International Corporation Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities, at the
price of HK$2.55 per 2016 Subscription Share (the “2016
Subscription”). The closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of subscription agreement entered into between
Dazhong (Hong Kong) International Corporation Limited
and the Company was HK$2.14. The 2016 Subscription
was completed on 29 June 2016. As of 31 December 2016,
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities indirectly held 19.76% of
the total issued shares of the Company.

Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities is a leading integrated
public utility service provider in Shanghai with significant
strategic and financial investments. Its integrated public
utility services include piped gas supply, wastewater
treatment and public infrastructure projects. By introducing
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities as a strategic shareholder,
the Group will seek to carry out more in-depth cooperation
with Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities in the future, and
the proceeds from this financing provided funds to the
Group for the acquisition of natural gas operations in China
and expansion of business, with the aim of expanding the
business into other cities or regions to achieve greater scale

effect and improve its profitability.
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On 2 June 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “2016 Placing Agreement”) with Haitong
International Securities Company Limited (“Haitong
International”). Pursuant to the 2016 Placing Agreement,
Haitong International conditionally agreed to procure, on
a best effort basis, not less than six placees to subscribe for
up to 4,400,000 new ordinary shares (the “2016 Placing
Shares”) of the Company at a price of HK$2.55 per 2016
Placing Share (the “2016 Placing”). The closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the 2016 Placing Agreement was
HK$2.29. On 29 June 2016, the 2016 Placing Shares were
placed at HK$2.55 per 2016 Placing Share to not less than
six independent third parties.

All of the net proceeds from the 2016 Subscription and
the 2016 Placing of approximately HK$89.0 million in
aggregate had been fully utilised as to approximately 10%
for the expansion of gas station business, approximately
47% for the construction of pipelines and related facilitates
and approximately 43% for the acquisition of natural gas
business in China.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 21 February 2017, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “2017 Placing Agreement”) with Caitong
International Securities Company Limited (“Caitong
International”). Pursuant to the 2017 Placing Agreement,
Caitong International conditionally agreed to procure, on a
best effort basis, not less than six placees to subscribe for
up to 40,000,000 new ordinary shares (the “2017 Placing
Shares”) of the Company at a price of HK$2.20 per 2017
Placing Share (the “2017 Placing”). The closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the 2017 Placing Agreement was
HK$2.19.

On 10 March 2017, the 2017 Placing Shares were placed
at HK$2.20 per 2017 Placing Share to not less than six
independent third parties. The net proceeds from the 2017
Placing of approximately HK$86.7 million is intended to be
utilised by the Company for the purpose of general working
capital, future business development and any possible
investment(s) as and when the opportunities arise.
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RISKS AND PROSPECTS OF THE COMPANY

The principal risk and uncertainties facing the Company and
future development of the Company’s business is set out on
pages 5 to 12 of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 11 March 2015. Net proceeds
from the global offering received by the Company were
approximately RMB347.5 million after deducting the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses. The net
proceeds have been applied for the purpose in accordance
with the future plans and use of proceeds as set out in
the Prospectus. As at 31 December 2016, the unutilised
proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong
and China.
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As at 31 December 2016
®2016F12A318

Percentage
of total Net Utilised Unutilised
Purpose amount proceeds amount amount
ERER i E#BA HARE A
& [Epi):1 TIEFER 8 gk
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBRETL AR%BEET ARBBER
Acquiring and constructing FHEERBRAA 25% 86.9 15.0 71.9
CNG and LNG refuelling R/ BICRARME
stations for the sale of REZERRAR
CNG/LNG for vehicular use RBAE RAR IR
Expanding our pipeline network  HEH MK E B4 35% 1216 35.0 86.6
and sale of piped natural gasto ~ RABKFIRETS
customers in our existing market HFHEEERAR
Acquiring controlling interests WEAR R AN 30% 104.2 104.2 -
in natural gas operators RAREER
outside Taicang obdiieday
Working capital and other LEES RAM 10% 34.8 34.8 -
general corporate purposes —REFEAR
Total it 347.5 189.0 158.5

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate
any change to the plan as to the use of proceeds.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016

WA B - EEERA AR
BTG R RS -



Report of the Directors

EEERE

Auditors 2l
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment  ZZ K @ 5B EIEATEMER - AN QA E
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the [ERFBEFAE LIRERFZREL LKA

forthcoming annual general meeting. BN BT P RN A B AZ BRAD o
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REES=E

Chairman ESi

Hong Kong E

31 March 2017 201793 A31H
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About the Report

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (“Suchuang Gas” or
the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively
refer to as the “Group” or “We”, Stock Code: 1430) is the
dominant piped natural gas supplier and operator in Taicang
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, with an exclusive right
under the concession agreement with local government to
sell and transmit piped natural gas to users in the operating
area for an initial term of 30 years ending 31 August 2043.
This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “Report”) for our Group, which summarizes
and reports our sustainable development practices in 2016,
covering the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2016 (the “Reporting Period”). Unless otherwise specified,
this report only cover one of the Group’s reportable
business segments in China, i.e., piped natural gas sales and
transmission business.

Through this report, we hope to communicate effectively
with all interested parties about environmental, social
and governance issues, so as to improve our sustainable
development management system and put our sustainable
development work into practice. While preparing this report,
we’ve made relevant disclosures in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities published by the Stock Exchange, involving
the Group’s concepts, practices and achievements in terms
of sustainable development during the Reporting Period,
and the performance of major sustainable development
indicators. However, the corporate governance content
will be described separately in the “Corporate Governance

Report” of the Group’s annual report.

Your opinions will be very important for us, so please
provide your precious opinions with respect to the Group’s
sustainable development performance and send an e-mail to
ir@taicanggas.com.
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About Suchuang Gas

Suchuang Gas has been committed to developing clean
energy of natural gas, to support the construction of
economic and residential environment subject to sustainable
development based on green energy. The Group has
joined U.S. Green Building Council (“USGBC”) in 2017,
together with which, the Group has been acting as a
member to advocate the significant role of green building in
environmental protection, and its critical role in creating the

sustainably developing future.
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Our Strategies

To further develop and strengthen our natural gas
business, we plan to expand our business by the following
approaches:

J Expand the CNG and LNG refueling station business;

J Expand and upgrade the Group’s piped natural gas
sales and transmission business in Taicang;

J Acquire controlling interests of existing natural gas
operators, and expand the business coverage to other
cities;

J Improve and upgrade the present operating efficiency
and safety.
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Communicating with Stakeholders

Our business has maintained the stable development
momentum for many years, which is indeed attributable
to the support and trust of our stakeholders. Our main
stakeholders are some groups extremely affected by the
Group or sufficient to affect the Group’s business, including
our customers, suppliers, contractors, employees, business
partners, government organs, shareholders and investors,
etc. To formulate our business strategies more appropriately
and more accurately, we deeply believe that keeping
communication with the stakeholders is an indispensable
element. On the other hand, keeping communication
can strengthen the stability for us to forecast risks and
reinforce business development. During the routine business
operation, we communicate with the stakeholders by means
of formal and informal channels. All kinds of information
can be collected through different communication channels
and be disclosed in this report.

Our Sustainable Development Policy

In face of the harsh market situation, Suchuang Gas will
continuously focus on developing the clean energy of
natural gas, and under the complicated and harsh market
environment, the Group will initiatively adapt to the new
normal economy and grasp the development opportunity,
and meanwhile the Group will coordinate with the national
policy positively, bring into fully play our operating
advantages, and continue enhancing our management level,
so as to reach the purpose of sustainable development.
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Ensuring Gas Safety

We deeply know that natural gas is a kind of inflammable
and explosive gas. Once a leakage accident occurs, natural
gas will spread in all directions, causing suffocation,
burning and explosion, etc. In view of this, we attach
tremendous importance to gas safety, and for the
purpose of implementing such laws and regulations as
Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Production Safety Regulations of Jiangsu Province, Labor
Protection Regulations of Jiangsu Province, Provisions on
the Supervision and Administration of Labor Protection
Articles, and Urban Gas Management Regulations,
further strengthening production safety supervision
and management, and intensifying production safety
responsibility, we’ve formulated the management system
related to production safety, to cover various safety
precautions and operating instructions probably involved in
our business, laying an important foundation for our safety
work. As far as the Directors know, the Group received
no major administrative sanction or punishment due to
violation of any production safety laws or regulations during
the Reporting Period.
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We regard “safety first, prevention supreme, comprehensive I [Z2FE— - B AL - K&

management” as the core values in production safety, and {EALZZ24EEHFENZOEE - R - &M
meanwhile we also establish the safety principles of “Eight  JRE]Z FHIN\ENAZ2FRE] »

Noes” and “Four Prohibitions”.

Eight Noes Principle

/\\\ JE /\J

No Death Accident

No Loss Incurred oor
Flood Preventio

BEERNREEHR

No Major Equi\Accident

No Major Traffic Accident ‘ m \hS =i '

above the Equal
Responsibility Level

Four Prohibitions Principle
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No Punishing
the Person
Liable for
Accident
Prohibited

SHWIRRE DM
NERIHE

Unclear Analysis
of Accident
Cause Prohibited
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Apart from the production safety management system, we
mainly adopt the following measures to ensure gas safety
and normal supply, thus reach the aforesaid safety principles
of “Eight Noes” and “Four Prohibitions”:

J We install safety monitoring system alongside the
pipeline network to test any leakage or other gas
accidents. By inspecting the gas processing stations,
we patrol periodically the urban branch pipeline

network to facilitate repair and maintenance

o Establish measures and systems such as safety
inspection, repair and maintenance, timely reporting
of gas facilities troubles and accidents, emergency
repair, etc.

J Establish and implement the 24-hour on-duty system
to detect any latent gas accident

J Lay down rules to carry out gas safety training
to train qualified professional management level
and technical personnel on a regular basis, to
enable employees at various levels to have a
full understanding of the Company’s rules and
procedures, and also enhance safety awareness of the
employees

J Lay down gas safety rules for users, and carry out
education promotion and guidance on general gas
knowledge to end users on a regular basis

o Establish a systematic safety management network,
headed by the safety leadership team, under which,
the experienced and qualified management personnel
will lead the employees at various levels to conduct
routine safety management work, in an effort to
ensure all safety management systems and safety
operation rules have been implemented properly
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o In order to enhance our piped gas management level
and guarantee the safe operation of gas facilities,
we've acquired professional evaluation opinions on
positive the Group’s product and service quality,
safety and operation management, as well as financial
and cost situation from a safety evaluation and
certification company during the Reporting Period, to
further strengthen our safety and operation process

J In terms of gas supply, we take numerous measures,
like adding brominated substances and integrating
purification process and pressure adjustment function
into the gas processing stations, to guarantee the
immediate discovery of leakage and steady supply of
gas

J Organize contingency plan drills regularly to
strengthen the emergency treatment and response
capability of our employees to various emergency
accidents such as terrorism or massive leakage, which
is also an important channel for us to self-evaluate
and improve the contingency plans

J Formulate the Contingency Plan for Gas Leakage in
Stations, specifying the duties of respective persons
in case of leakage, handling methods for massive

leakage of natural gas, etc.

We attach great importance to maintenance of pipeline
network and gas processing & distribution facilities. We
have a team consisting of more than 200 experienced
engineers, technicians and other personnel, responsible for
safety, maintenance and technical upgrade in the following
fields: (i) maintenance of major and urban branch pipeline
network; (ii) maintenance of natural gas transmission
substations; (iii) deployment of safety monitoring system;
and (iv) methods for enhancing operation efficiency and
safety standard.

o Organize promotion events on safe use of gas in
communities, to enhance the people’s awareness of

using natural gas safely
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Supplier Management

The raw materials for our gas pipeline construction and
connection business mainly include PE pipe, steel pipe,
valve, pipe connectors and fittings. We deeply believe that
the success of a sustainable development plan requires
the cooperation with superior suppliers, only by which
the sustainable long-term development can be attained.
Therefore, we've attached great importance to the selection
of suppliers.

We reserve a list of eligible contractors for gas pipeline
construction projects. We only purchase pipeline materials
in line with relevant safety standards from reputed suppliers,
and subcontract the pipeline construction and installation
projects to eligible contractors.

Moreover, we’ve purchased mechanical equipment made in
China or imported from oversea countries (e.g., Germany
and USA), to construct our pipeline infrastructure and install
in our gas transmission substations. As for purchase of
pipelines, machinery and equipment, we choose suppliers
by virtue of their quotation, product and service quality, as

well as business relationship with us.

In terms of purchase of natural gas, PetroChina Company
Limited (“PetroChina”) is the principal natural gas supplier
of the Group, and we’ve established joint ventures
including Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Gas Co.,
Ltd. (“PetroChina Kunlun”) as early as in 2006, to expand
our strategic cooperation with PetroChina in Taicang and
adjacent regions. The Group has been in good strategic
relation with PetroChina for more than 10 years, and put
into operation the city gateway station which is connected
with the Sichuan-East Transmission Pipeline of Sinopec in
November 2015, to further safeguard the reliable, stable and
sufficient gas-supply resources in areas where the Group
performs its main businesses. This is of vital importance
for us to operate and develop the sales and transmission
business of piped natural gas.
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If we find any supplier or contractor violate any natural
laws or fail to perform their obligations under the Contract,
we will put them into the list of ineligible suppliers and no
longer choose them, to guarantee the good quality of our
suppliers.

We expect that during the process of business operation,
each supplier will comply fully with all applicable
environmental protection laws, rules and regulations,
mitigate the impact on the ecology and reduce the resource
consumption, and unceasingly promote the sustainable

development of products and services.

We have formulated guidelines to regulate the employees’
way of selecting suppliers and summarized the standards
they must achieve and the responsibilities they must
assume, including but not limited to (i) accuracy, honesty
and fairness; (ii) prohibiting the provision or guaranteed
provision of any valuables to government officers or
employees so as to compromise them in their capacity as a
civil servant or encourage illegal behaviors; (iii) supplying
a reasonable and safe workplace; and (iv) attaching great
importance to guarantees in respect of diversification, social
responsibilities and community engagement in order to
build a better community, support human rights and combat
the employment of child and forced labors.

Green Operations

Along with the rapid development of China’s economy,
energy demand is predicted to rise continuously. China has
become the world’s biggest emitter of greenhouse gases,
placing China under tremendous domestic and international
pressure in terms of climate change, reducing emission of

contaminated gases, etc.
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We are committed to performing the social responsibility,
manage our business with positive attitude, and endeavor
to reduce the impact on environment. Environmental
protection is one of the most important missions for the
human beings worldwide, and we expect to enhance the
environmental protection awareness of people in China
by virtue of promoting the natural gas development and
promoting the use of natural gas vehicle, which undoubtedly
will be an effective approach to reduce tail gas pollution for

cities stricken by fog and haze in China.

Major Chinese laws concerning environmental protection
for the Group include the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China (“Environmental
Protection Law”), Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Environmental Impact Assessment, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution and
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. As
far as the Directors know, the Group received no major
administrative sanction or punishment due to violation of
any environmental laws or regulations during the Reporting
Period.

Low-Carbon Office and Green Life

Our natural gas sales and transmission business only
involve very little spill and leakage of natural gas, basically
imposing no adverse impact on the environment. Besides, a
small amount of residual natural gas will be discharged out
of the pipeline at time of pigging operation, but it will have
no great influence on surrounding environment due to the

low output.
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The emission of our greenhouse gases mainly originates
from electric power consumption and fuel consumption by
machinery and vehicle. Electric power is mainly used for
maintaining the routine natural gas sales and transmission
services and office affairs, including lighting and use
of office equipment. To further promote environmental
protection, we advocate the low-carbon concept positively,
encourage employees to save every kilowatt of electricity,
every sheet of paper and every drop of water via the
low-carbon lifestyle, and comprehensively reduce the
negative impact on environment. The following are the

routine low-carbon measures adopted in our office:
Reducing power consumption

o Use auto-induction lights in some offices

J Make full use of natural light and wind to reduce the
use of lights and air-conditioners

J Keep the air-conditioning temperature at 25T

in summer and 18T in winter, and ensure the
air-conditioners are closed automatically when

getting off work

J Maintain the display brightness of computer screen
between 50° and 75°and set the computer display to
shut down automatically in 10 min

o Turn off unnecessary electronic devices and lamps
when not used

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Reducing paper consumption

J Employees bring their own drinking water cup and

avoid using disposable paper cup

J Encourage employees to dry hands with handkerchief

to reduce paper consumption

J Try to execute paperless office automation and avoid

waste of considerable office supplies

. Provide collection boxes to collect and reuse

single-sided paper

Reducing water consumption

J After using the water equipment, employees must
make sure to turn off the relevant equipment and
avoid waste

o Check the water equipment carefully to avoid water
dripping and leakage, and repair immediately once
any abnormality is found, to reduce waste of water

Reuse and recycling

J Reuse office supplies, including envelopes, loose-leaf

binder, paper bag and choose alternative stationeries
o Set a waste battery recycling bin

J Entrust a professional environmental protection

company to recycle scrap paper regularly
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Sewage Management

Domestic sewage is the main pollutant from the Group’s
business, with the main sources including daily wastewater
of employees, sewage at the dining hall, water discharge
from washrooms, etc. Our daily sewage is first pre-treated in
the septic tank and oil-separating tank, then discharged into
the municipal sewage pipelines, and treated intensively by
the sewage treatment plant.

Solid Waste Management

No hazardous wastes are generated during our routine
business process. The solid wastes we discharge can be
mainly divided into two aspects, one is domestic waste,
and the other is industrial waste. Evidently, domestic
waste means the waste generated during daily life of
employees, which will be collected and transported to the
urban environmental sanitation department for uniform
treatment. In terms of industrial waste, after the natural gas
is transmitted by long-distance pipelines (steel pipes), steel
pipe scrap iron will be contained in the natural gas, so scrap
iron wastes will be generated after filtration. These industrial
solid wastes will be collected and transported to the urban
environmental sanitation department for uniform treatment
together with domestic wastes.

Apart from this, most of spoil arising from construction
is used for backfill, while only a small amount is used by
village households for backfilling their yards and ponds, so
no waste slag is generated during the construction process.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016

SSKEE

HERSKRAREEBENETR) SR - £ 2
FIRBIEE TAE EREEK - BRERFK -
SRR BENE ST HE - BIAIREIEISK -
RALEM - R IE L RIRIE - BHERET
BOS/KEB - WHSKEIEMETRHE -

& B = 2

BPMBEEXBBET T TEEEERNESE
BEY) - WP EREM TR D RM
A —RREEY —RIXEY - KE
BEY) BREEREEIHBELETME
ERREY - ZBIMEYHE R BT IRE
BEBMIS—RE - MIXLEY AKX
AREERBEDB (WME) BERE  RARA
SEAMEHERE BN BRREELHE
REY) - B TR EMEREY S REAIRN N
—HRABTRE AL R -

BRULDASH - B TEAME L ARHHBRE
B RELBELIRENEEPUARRE
HBUE - BT BB LBRETELRE -



Our Employees

We have employed more than 200 employees, including
engineers, technicians and other staff, to take charge
of safety, maintenance and technical issues concerning
pipeline networks. We are committed to providing a
working environment with great satisfaction, encourage our
employees to cooperate and offer opportunities to them for
learning, growing and succeeding in their work and life. We
invite talents and warmly welcome talents with insights to
join us. We recruit talents by virtue of online recruitment,
campus recruitment and job fair. The Company always insists
on the principle of fairness, and does not consider age
(not recruiting juveniles under the age of 16), nationality,
ethnicity, religious belief, sexual orientation, marital
status, pregnancy, disability or political conviction, etc.
when recruiting and promoting employees. All employees
recruited in China must sign labor contracts at the very
beginning of employment. The Company’s resignation and
dismissal policies comply with the provisions in the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China and Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China as well as the
Employee Handbook.

The Company has formulated the Employee Handbook
and HR management policy, to specific relevant provisions
about employment management, right to terminate the
labor relation, social security fund, remuneration, employee
welfare and vacation welfare, and safeguard the rights and

interests of employees.
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Major Chinese laws and regulations related to the Group’s
employment include Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China and Implementation Regulations for Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China. As far as the
Directors know, the Group received no major administrative
sanction or punishment due to violation of any employment

laws or regulations during the Reporting Period.

We strictly follow the laws and regulations relating to the
minimum working age, and require each department to
strictly forbid employing child labor in accordance with the

requirements of social responsibility management and laws.

The Group formulates policies about forced and imprisoned
labors management to ban forced labor behavior and
regulates the employees’ application for jobs on their own
will, and the Group guarantees:

J prohibiting any forced behaviors;

J not inducing employees to work for the Group by

fraudulent means;

. prohibiting using punishments or threats to obtain
employees’ interest or to force employees to work.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied
with the policies and relevant laws and regulations about
prevention of child labor or forced labor.
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Employee Welfare

The Group provides competitive remuneration for
employees, encouraging them to work diligently and show
their talents while serving the customers. We provide
employees with favorable welfare, which is an important
factor for maintaining our sustainable development. In
addition to the most fundamental annual leave, we also
provide employees with marriage leave, funeral leave,
maternity leave, work-related injury leave, breastfeeding

leave, etc.

Our full-time employees in China can participate in various
employee benefit plans, including pension, work-related
injury, medical care, unemployment and maternity
insurance. Generally speaking, a labor contract specifies
the duty and remuneration of an employee, and reasons for
terminating the employment. Remuneration of our full-time
employees in China usually includes basic salary, position
salary and seniority pay, and other allowances or subsidies.
Moreover, we may issue year-end bonus to employees
appropriately according to business performance. The
remuneration of employees is determined by the Company’s
management level or the remuneration committee, and is
mainly defined according to performance and experience of
employees. To keep our remuneration infrastructure fair and

competitive, we review the remuneration every year.
Working hours and vacations

As a leading piped natural gas supplier and operator in
Taicang, we provide services to customers all year round. As
a result, some of our employees need to work during out-
of-office hours and public holidays, and always stand by in
case of emergency. We provide overtime pay and additional
compensation for employees working during out-of-office
hours. As far as the Directors know, the Group received no
major administrative sanction or punishment for handling
working hours and vacations in violation of any local

employment regulations during the Reporting Period.
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Talent Training

Talent development is a significant sector in our sustainable
development strategy. We're profoundly aware that the
knowledge and skills of employees is of vital importance
for the Company’s operation and business growth, while
the favorable working development plan also makes good
preparations for the employees to face business challenges
in future, being an important factor of our sustainable

development.

We have established the employee training system, mainly
comprising pre-job training, on-the-job training and
vocational training. During the Reporting Period, we’ve
conducted the following categories of training courses:

. Management personnel training
J Safety knowledge training
o Gas equipment operating training

Apart from training, we regularly conduct employee
evaluations, and have an internal promotion procedure, to
boost employee morale and increase the Group’s overall

competitiveness.
Occupational Health and Safety

We are committed to abiding by the national labor laws
as well as other applicable laws and regulations of China,
and providing a safe and healthy working place, to protect
our employees from occupational hazards. As far as the
Directors deeply know, the Group received no major
administrative sanction or punishment due to failure in
providing the safe working environment and protecting the
employees from occupational hazards in violation of laws or

regulations during the Reporting Period.
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We emphasize on labor protection of employees, and
implement the provisions of the latest revised Labor
Protection Regulations of Jiangsu Province. The distribution
of labor protection articles refers to the Provisions on
the Supervision and Administration of Labor Protection
Articles issued by the State Administration of Work Safety
and GBT11651-2008 Selection Rules of Labor Protection
Articles.

We implement the safety responsibility system, require our
employees to fulfill relevant safety operation procedures
in line with the Company’s rules during the production
process, and prevent the occurrence of any accidents in
violation of laws or regulations. Meanwhile, we provide
employees with diversified safety education and training,
and streamline the duties of various positions, with the aim
to provide manpower guarantee for our safe operation. For
more measures about natural gas operation safety, please
refer to the paragraph “Ensuring Gas Safety” of this report.

Employment practices and Anti-corruption &
Pro-honesty

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not find or
get involved in any forced labor or child labor problem.
To make the Group’s business operation adhere to the
commitment of maintaining the highest level of fairness,
integrity and accountability standard, we’ve formulated
various policies and keep the employees well informed.
Such policies include anti-fraud management and
whistle-blowing policy, measures for preventing fraud, etc.
The Group provides a mechanism for anonymous reporting
of suspected corruption, bribery, or fraud problems, and
has also identified relevant investigation procedures. As
far as the Directors deeply know, the Group received no
complaints about corruption, bribery or other misconducts
during the Reporting Period.
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Meanwhile, during the Reporting Period, our business
operation has complied with policies on prevention of
bribery, extortion, fraud and anti-laundering and relevant

laws and regulations.
Product Liability
Maintenance service

Our major customers mainly include wholesalers (i.e.,
local gas distributors) and industrial & commercial users
from the retail business sector. Based on the gas pipeline
construction agreement entered into with customers,
we're usually responsible for maintaining the natural gas
pipelines and keeping them in good operating condition.
For non-residential users, we provide free maintenance
service for the first year, and charge annual maintenance
fees according to our maintenance contract for the following
years. We provide residential users with free maintenance

service.
Complaints and response

We've established a 24h customer service call center to
provide service information for customers, and guarantee
a quick response to customer feedback. Most calls are
made for gas connection application, business inquiry, risk

reporting, repair reporting, complaint, charging inquiry, etc.

We are committed to providing superior services and taking
active measures to improve our service quality continually.
We provide trainings about product knowledge, service
skills and complaint response skills to the customer service
call center on a regular basis, so as to make our employees
reserve sufficient knowledge to answer the customer inquiry.
During the Reporting Period, we also entrusted a safety
evaluation and certification company to check at random
the user’s satisfaction with the Group’s customer services,
thus reviewing and further enhancing our service quality.
Through the aforesaid measures, the Group was honored as
a Consumer Satisfaction Unit by Suzhou Consumer Rights
and Interests Protection Committee in 2016.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016

RIE - POREHIRE - ZMARESTEBRAN
AR - R - MEFROARBENBR R E
STRBAR RS o

EmEF
HEE IR TS

BMWEIBEFPEI2aERHERTE (Al
MRRBCAR) RKRATEXEK DA TrH%
RFE- - REREFFYMNMREERRW
& RMBFAaAEABRAREE £
HERRIFEFERE - GREERAP - #
PR EF 2 BEHERY - RRFEREM
MEEARNEIFEEEESE - RA/ER
FA PRt B 4 MRS o

AR K B

HAPIE &L — 24/ N5 P IRFAF A A 0
REPRFRBES  MEFRAEDERP
R - MARERIBHEBRMRZEARS
EBER - Wy WmE - RFLBEBAES
) e

FAPIBON R B E AR A I BR BUVAR 5 45 7 A T
e ERFINREEE - RATHEOEFR
TSR oY AR B A MR AN - ARAEIXRTT ~ RER
BRI IOEEG - AR B TR = 59H0
BAREREFPER - RANBREREITE B
LZEFNBRLEARNHERFPHAEERRF
RFEREBE - (MR S — s
MIRTSE X - @iB LilifEiE - N&EE20165
EEXREHMTEEERDREREENR
HEEMBENL -



Protecting customer privacy

To protect customer privacy, we have also established
the confidentiality management system, clarifying that all
employees have the obligation to keep the corporate secrets
confidential, and during external communication and
cooperation, special attention must be paid not to disclosing
the corporate information, including but not limited to
customer data, business and technical secrets, etc., while
the customer data we collect are used for designated

purpose only.
Advertisement marketing

Our marketing team mainly promotes the use of piped
natural gas by brochures and newspaper advertising. To
increase our customer base, we also promote the advantages
of natural gas in terms of price, convenience, safety, clean
and environmental protection by organizing promotion
activities (e.g., advertising on media and handing out user
guide). All the advertising and promotion information will
be reviewed by our deputy general manager, chief security
supervisor and legal advisor, to ensure all the promotion
information is correct and accurate before presented to the

public.

As far as the Directors know, the Group received no major
administrative sanction or punishment due to violation of
any laws or regulations concerning health and safety of
products and services, advertising, labeling and privacy
during the Reporting Period.
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Community Concern

To make Suchuang Gas develop and flourish continuously
and reach the purpose of sustainable development, the
long-term support and trust from all walks of life cannot be
separated. With the heart of gratitude, we are committed
to advancing social harmony, performing our social
responsibility carefully, endeavoring to returning the society,
and promoting the improvement of public life and the
healthy development of regional economy by positively
participating in local economic construction and applying
our clean energy knowledge.

Fee reduction and exemption for poverty-stricken
users

We understand that there are still many families failing to
install and use natural gas due to poverty, so the Group has
provided fee reductions and exemptions to 138 users during
the Reporting Period, helping them overcome the difficulties.

Marathon fundraising event

During the Reporting Period, in order to make the public
and our employees care more about patients, we organized
together with PetroChina Kunlun a Marathon fundraising
event with the theme of “Public Welfare Run-up to Pass on
Love”, to raise funds for patients. We deeply believe that
the event can not only provide financial aid to vulnerable
patients in the community, but more importantly have the
effect of gathering strength to construct an inclusive society.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R BETRE

/ Ernst & Young KGRI SR  TelE5E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower ~ FAEFRANXEIH  FaxEH: +852 2868 4432
EY 1Tim Mei Avenue S {Z A E221% ey.com
ﬁ,i Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited BEAMRRROBRIRARR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 107 to 223,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016 and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEIRE

REEREE (&)

Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ELETERRUMNEEREERER

Impairment of trade receivables

JEW B 515k 50Bi1E

The provision for impairment of trade receivables
is based on ongoing evaluation of the collectability
and ageing analysis of the outstanding receivables
and involves significant management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of those
receivables, including assessing the creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.

& 28 55 B X B R L 988 1 T AR R 1) SR (02 B U RIR
AR E R AR MR DML - W RE
BEEMEAHE - HERFREFANRRERS
BRZEHAEHE  EREFEEEFNEERE
EfEdRRER o

We focused on the provision for impairment of
trade receivables due to its materiality to the
consolidated financial statements and the high level
of management’s judgement involved.
BEEMIBWEZRFBERE - HREREHER
EUBHRAMEIIEER B REEEBNSEH
T o

Related disclosures are included in note 3
“Significant accounting judgements and estimates”
and note 22 “Trade and bills receivables” to the
consolidated financial statements.
HEAREENEN G BREMAI [T EES
H 6 R AAEE ] K22 [BIRE SRFEERE] -

We understood and evaluated management’s
controls over the assessment of impairment of trade
receivables.

BEECER LT EEHREE ZRIREN S
MIEHIRR o

We tested the ageing of the outstanding receivables
and reviewed the information prepared by the
management used to determine the impairment of
trade receivables.
BEEFCARREERYENKEK  YEEREEE
EFme AN EE R W E ZRFURERN B

We tested overdue trade receivable balances where
no provision was recognised to check that there
were no indicators of impairment on an individual
basis or collective basis. This included verifying
if payments had been received since the end of
the reporting period, reviewing historical payment
patterns and any correspondence with customers on
expected settlement dates.
BFERER kR G 2288 50 8 i R A B AR
BEENE SRR - AERLEREDR -
ABEEEZE B REWRARES WEHER
R BEBENFEAMBZFREREE R #HH
M A o
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BYZBERE

Key audit matters (Continued) BREXEE (F)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HAREZER ELETERRNTEERARERER

We selected samples of material trade receivable
balances where provision for impairment was
recognised and understood the rationale behind
management’s judgement. In order to evaluate the
appropriateness of these judgements we verified
whether balances were overdue, the customer’s
historical payment patterns and whether any post
year-end payments had been received up to the
date of completing our audit procedures. We
also obtained corroborative evidence including
correspondence supporting any disputes between
the parties involved, attempts by management to
recover the amounts outstanding and on the credit
status of significant counterparties where available.
BELERCHERDRERENE D EREKE SRR
REERE R RIEER - I AN E R B 1 I A 0 38
B RFEZFHENREN  EFERBEERE
AR FRPHNBENKRAREETKEENE
ZiEFE A RS AWIERNFEBERNR - HFT
ESREZE BRERES CAEFAFHNE
A EREEARERREESEIEZERFIHTH
ERMR (HAIER) °

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
of trade receivables in the consolidated financial

statements.

EENAETREREE IESNGEMBEREREBRNT
yav

S o
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REEREE (&)

Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ELETERRUMNEEREERER

Business combinations

EY i

In March 2016, the Group acquired 51% equity
interests in Sichuan Guangyuan Licheng Gas Co.,
Ltd. (“Licheng Gas”) at a total consideration of
RMB75,000,000. In October 2016, the Group
acquired 80% equity interests in Kunshan Anda
Natural Gas Development Co., Ltd. (“Anda Natural
Gas”) at a total consideration of RMB104,400,000.
Lichen Gas and Anda Natural Gas have been
accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group since the
respective acquisition date.

R2016F3H  EBEEBEUBOIETERMR
BREFEAR ([BREMR]) 0951%k4E - BRE
& AR #75,000,0007T ° 20165108+ &HE
BUBELZERARERERAR ([REXA
R1) B80%MHE - B (E R AKK104,400,000
T BERMARLZERARRBESAWERERED
r EEENNBARARK-

Management, assisted by the external valuation
specialists, assessed the fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
and completed the purchase price allocation,
which resulted in goodwill of RMB51,723,000 and
RMB51,453,000 respectively.

B EEIMNBEERRA B T aFE T USRI A
BENMMAZERENATE  ATKBEESR -
RN R ELREARKS1,723,000C R AR
51,453,0007T °

The process for purchase price allocation was
complex and involved various management'’s
assumptions and judgements.
BEESIBIEFFEM  WIREEBNSRER
an Ay | [

R M A -

Our audit procedures included, among others,
examining the purchase agreement, verifying the
consideration paid, assessing the competency,
independence and objectivity of the external
specialists engaged by the Group.
BEENEREFERE (ETDERE) BEXREBHE
RECXMHRE 7 EEEZRENINEER
BRET) B MR FEIE o

We involved our internal valuation specialists to
evaluate the valuation methodologies used by
management and tested the main assumptions
(including expected future cash flows, discount
rates and useful lives, where relevant) against
historical trends and market data.
BEFERRARMEERRFEEEEMERANGE
E - UREBEELBERTHHBEHEERR (8
EREPRKBERE  MBRXRAMERFS - il
B EITRIE -

In addition, we further assessed the adequacy of
the disclosures of business combinations in the
consolidated financial statements.

A - BEFE T T EBEHREE M BRE
BENFTDM -

2016 FF3 | HARRROARDF

101



102

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERE

Key audit matters (Continued)

REEREE (&)

Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ELETERRUMNEEREERER

Related disclosures are included in note 33
“Acquisition of subsidiaries” to the consolidated
financial statements.

MR EE RSN G e BRI 33 [ W EHE
nalle

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill amounted to
RMB103,176,000 as at 31 December 2016 and was
allocated to the corresponding subsidiaries acquired
as each of these acquired subsidiaries is the only
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
R2016%F12A31H - AEMEEEAARRE
103,176,0007T * W E N EEFTKEOHEBHE A
A WWEARAEBNZENBARRENKEE S
FROBRRETENNE-RSELEN (R
ELEEA]) -

In accordance with IFRSs, management of the
Group is required to annually perform the
impairment test for goodwill. The impairment test is
largely based on management’s estimates of future
results of each CGU to which goodwill is allocated
and involves various assumptions and judgements.
REBFRMHEREER - BSREEEEBASFE
TEERENR - BEAAERARE EENERE
EH KHENSREEEBMRREENMDE
W% M &R M A -

Related disclosures are included in note 15
“Goodwill” to the consolidated financial statements.

HEARBEERSN G BHRERME15 [HE] -

Our audit procedures included, among others,
involving our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the assumptions and methodologies
used by the management, mainly gas price and sale
volumes, budgeted gross margin, the discount rate
and the long-term growth rate beyond the five-year
period.

BEENEREFER (EHER) ZIRARNGBESR
R ESFHEEEEMERANRERNT S £2
AHARAREBLHE  REENX - BRXEH
FrEHRERER -

We reviewed and assessed the forecasts used with
respect to future revenues and operating results
by comparing the forecasts with the historical
performance of the respective CGU and the
business development plan. We also assessed the
adequacy of the Group’s disclosures of goodwill in
the consolidated financial statements.
ZEEARANASReEFEUNBERELE
BERATBEITHR  BRRBARKLEEENT
AETEELE - BT EEEHER
FEPMBRRBEENTOE -
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Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do

SO8
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

31 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

cEEmkEMZEKER

Year ended 31 December 2016

HZE20165F12 A31H ILFE
2016 2015
20165 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR¥T T ARETTT
REVENUE WA 5 740,895 795,625
Cost of sales £ & Ak AN (531,554) (595,220)
Gross profit S 209,341 200,405
Other income and gains HAab g A R Es 5 22,419 33,222
Selling and distribution costs $HE KD A AN (10,459) (4,016)
Administrative expenses THRAX (48,288) (40,077)
Other expenses H 5 sz (1,309 (3,055)
Finance costs R & R A 6 (4,524) (5,817)
Share of profits of associates DARE N B A 1,543 4,677
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R AT E T 7 168,723 185,339
Income tax expense PS5 2 10 (44,906) (46,700)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERF 123,817 138,639
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR DTFEFEMFEERA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent ISYNCIE/ZS N 120,681 138,639
Non-controlling interests FEFERR SR 3,136 -
123,817 138,639
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE DR FEMFEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR EEKR A
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent HBARHEA A 120,681 138,639
Non-controlling interests FEFERS M 21 3,136 -
123,817 138,639
EARNINGS PER SHARE BARERREE AEWN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BREF
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic E= N
— For profit for the year (RMB) — FRRA (ARE) 12 0.14 0.18
Diluted #8
— For profit for the year (RMB) — FERHM (ARE) 12 0.14 0.18
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

31 December 2016
2016%F12H31H

2016 2015
20165 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AR¥ET T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - RE REE 13 597,324 576,378
Prepaid land lease payments Ta Rt 3 & FRIE 14 90,613 44,936
Goodwill PEES 15 103,176 -
Intangible assets m AR 16 71,278 963
Investments in associates KRB &N B HIRE 17 77,328 79,868
Deferred tax assets EERIAE B 18 31,026 27,937
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 19 3,116 62,765
973,861 792,847
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories VEN— 20 8,413 7,292
Amounts due from construction FEWGER AR R FIE
contract customers 21 60,913 60,648
Trade and bills receivables BRE SRR EE 22 53,762 42,380
Prepayments, deposits and other BRRIE - ek
receivables H Ath fE Y5k IE 19 40,554 11,135
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 23 112,000 =
Amounts due from other PR L EL A [ 58 O RRIB
related parties 24 2,185 -
Pledged deposits EEAFR 25 - 5,379
Cash and cash equivalents RELRBEESEEY 25 400,359 445,389
678,186 572,223
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables eI 8 5 8RR 26 65,294 58,782
Other payables and accruals Hip et IB N fEsT & A 27 53,605 46,634
Advances from customers AR P HIE 143,287 153,301
Interest-bearing bank and other S EETREMMER
borrowings 29 35,780 -
Deferred income FEIEUA 28 17,557 15,053
Tax payable e 53R 19,239 18,857
334,762 292,627
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 343,424 279,596
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAES
LIABILITIES 1,317,285 1,072,443
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBEMRRE

31 December 2016

2016412 A31H

2016 2015
20165 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Deferred income EEUTA 28 92,738 82,293
Interest-bearing bank loans sTERITER 29 60,000 60,000
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIAE & 18 20,799 =
173,537 142,293
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,143,748 930,150
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of FRAER ABEERS
the parent
Issued capital B EITAR AR 30 6,858 6,544
Reserves M 32 1,098,153 923,606
1,105,011 930,150
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M 2 38,737 -
TOTAL EQUITY LSRR 1,143,748 930,150
Su Aping Zhu Yaying
& pa] 2 REpH
Director Director
EBZE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

Year ended 31 December 2016

EHZE2016F12A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BAREAARE
Share Statutory Non-
Issued Share  option  Merger  Capital  reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve reserve fund ~ profits Total interests equity
BEf7 Rt BhR# HE FER
kA& &R i A% BARE  BRE  REW it R fER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
note 30 note31  note32  note32  note32
30 Wi M WD M
At 1 January 2015 H01551A18 % o433 35906 45487 174122 461270 - 4170
Issue of shares LU 6,446 366,262 - - - - - M N1/
Share issue expenses RiEGRX - (25019 - - - - - (25009 - (2519
Transfer of share premium RiEEER - 309,675 = - (309,675) = = = = =
Profit and total comprehensive ~ EEEFIRZANEEE
income for the year = - - - - - 138,639 138,639 - 138,639
Final 2014 dividends BERREZ20145
declared and paid KBRS - - = = = - (18177)  (18177) - (18177)
Equity-settled share option INEREENBRET
arrangements - - 909 - - - - 909 = 909
Transfer from retained profits ~ EBARZAH = = = = - 1405 (14,056) = = =
At31 December 2015and  H2015%12A318 R
1 January 2016 20161718 6,544 650,738 909 (74343) 6,231 59,543 280528 930,150 - 930,150
Issue of shares Blkh 314 79,658 - - - - - 7997 - 7997
Share issue expenses OEGETT - (3,066 - - - - - (3,066) - (3,066)
Profit and total comprehensive  EEAF k2 EME A%
income for the year - - - - - - 120,681 120,681 3,13 123,817
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERELR (W)
(note 33) - - - - - - - - 35,601 35,601
Final 2015 dividends BERREZ20155
declared and paid RERE - - - - - - (2809)  (28,09) - (2809
Equity-settled share option HEREEY
arrangements BRERs - - 5,366 - - - - 5,366 - 5,366
Transfer from retained profits ~ EEGRZ A - - - - - 133 1337 - - -
At31 December 2016 H2016512A31 683 T 65 (43 61T TISN 396 LIGONT 373 1143748

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — *
of RMB1,098,153,000 (2015: RMB923,606,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2016

HZE20165F12 A31H ILFE
2016 2015
20165 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Y 5 ARBTT ARET T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHFBRERE

ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BR 3% A A 168,723 185,339
Adjustments for: KTHAE
Depreciation e 7 29,731 26,882
Amortisation of prepaid land Faft £ 3030 & FRIAEE

lease payments 7 2,245 1,309
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEEH 7 749 61
Impairment of trade receivables FEUE B ERFURE 7 1,323 2,730
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWZE - HEM

plant and equipment HEIEE M EE 7 1 55
Gain on disposal of prepaid land HERMN L HEE

lease payments IR Y as 7 - (5,657)
Amortisation of deferred income i LN 5! 28 (16,110) (14,531)
Foreign exchange gain HINE I 5 (4,901) (408)
Bank interest income HRAT A S A 5 (7,995) (11,802)
Interest income from AR ERE 2 FBWA

available-for-sale investments 5 (4,958) —
Finance costs B E R A 6 4,524 5,817
Equity-settled share option expenses — LA#E 2 45 & ) BB AR 7 X 5,366 909
Share of profits of associates R X B EY g A (1,543) (4,677)

177,155 186,027

(Increase)/decrease in trade and EUE SR &

bills receivables S8 (Em) R (6,951) 11,365
Increase in amounts due from EW R & RE P FRIE

construction contract customers b i (265) (23,203)
Increase in prepayments, FRfRRIA - Re R HM

deposits and other receivables JE KUK IE $E AN (14,149) (1,074)
Increase in inventories FEIE N (775) (1,478)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due  JEUNE fbFg:E /5 7518

from other related parties (#hn) (2,185) 173
Increase in trade payables FERTE 5 BRFRIE N 2,041 16,377
Decrease in other payables and H b e 5RIE &

accruals fEEt & AR (46) (1,440)
(Decrease)/increase in advances FEWEFFIB

from customers CRA), /180 (10,381) 9,206
Increase in deferred income IE JE U A 3840 29,059 13,490
Cash generated from operations KEEBREERS 173,503 209,443
Interest received B WA 2 9,596 9,936
Tax paid EfNHIA (49,966) (56,666)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM REZHME

OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEREFHE 133,133 162,713
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE20165F12A31HILEE

2016 2015
2016F 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ek AR®T T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBFREBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant B E¥W% « BE &
and equipment 1A B (52,733) (62,966)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME BEX&
property, plant and equipment FAEIE B P15 5IE 1 23
Purchase of prepaid land lease BEEN T HHEHRIE
payments (11,147) =
Proceeds from disposal of HEFEN LR ERIE
prepaid land lease payments P15 5008 - 14,242
Tax paid for disposal of prepaid land H&HEN A E
lease payments RIER)E IR - (4,664)
Purchase of intangible assets HEBFLEE (303) (1,024)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y B P 8 2 ) 33 (97,981) -
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHHERE
investments (302,000) =
Proceeds from disposal of available- H&EA £ HEREFE
for-sale investments FRIE 190,000 -
Interests received from available-for- B WA H &R E B F] S
sale investments 5 4,958 -
Prepayments for a proposed et Al d SER NP/
acquisition - (60,000)
Dividends received from associates = UHit & A BB & 4,083 3,715
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN REZFBHA
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REnEFHE (265,122) (110,674)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING  BEFEHFERESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PG FRIA 79,972 372,728
Share issue expenses P&t BT (3,066) (19,364)
Decrease/(increase) in EEBEFOR D (3 m)
pledged deposits 5,379 (866)
Interest received from B E ERFFE RS
pledged deposits 131 134
Dividends paid EfIRE (28,092) (18,177)
Interest paid EAALE (4,546) (5,944)
Repayment of interest-bearing BETBRITER
bank loans (13,500) (60,000)
Proceeds from interest-bearing FHRIRITEREHIE
bank loans 43,548 -
Decrease in amounts due to P AT 5L A [ 58 7 R IERR
other related parties - (946)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM BMEFHHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REREBFH 79,826 267,565
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HERRESSEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RA), /BB (52,163) 319,604
Cash and cash equivalents at FORERREEEY
beginning of year 445,389 125,377
Effect of exchange rate changes, net  [EXREF)z 2550 7,133 408
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S£XRHNBSRESZEY
END OF YEAR 400,359 445,389
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Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate and Group Information

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2013
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands.

The registered office address of the Company is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding.

The principal business activities of the Group during
the year included the distribution and sale of piped
natural gas, operating compressed natural gas (“CNG”)
refuelling station business, the provision of natural
gas transmission, and acting as the main contractor
of construction and installation of gas pipelines in
Mainland China.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the

Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 11 March 2015.

B 75 ¥ R B

Year ended 31 December 2016

HZE20165F12 A31H ILFE
TtEREEER

HEIMRBRODABERAR (TARF]) R
BREFSEAREF2ERFEAN2013
F7RA4BEHRSHEEMK I SERR
BREMERA -

AN R Al & it # F R ik AClifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands °

ARAINEBRHRIREER

FAXRKENEIEEZRERERTEAM
MERHEEBARAAR  REEBHERA
R(TEHFERXAR]) MRUEER - 124
AARBE - FRERMLEMRAEE
B EEABR -

AATIRMHEB2015FE3 811 BEES
BHALSHAERAA ([BZA]) *
R T e
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Notes to Financial Statements

114

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

BRI

Year ended 31 December 2016

HZE20165F12A31 B ILFE

1. Corporate And Group Information 1. tEREEER (&)
(Continued)

BENMBARNER
ARREEMBRRNFEBHOT

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered  equity attributable to
Name business share capital the Company Principal activities
EmL/ BRITEE/ KAFEM
A% dfREE R AN BENEI TEXH
Direct  Indirect
Bi Bk

China Suchuang Energy Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
Co., (Hong Kong) Ltd. BB 10,0007 7T REER
(“Suchuang Hong Kong”)

hEEAIER (B8)

BB ([#e1EE])

Suchuang Gas (Shanghai) PRC/ RMB300,000,000 100 = Investment holding
Co., Ltd.*/** Mainland China ARE BEER
(“Suchuang Shanghai”) B A3, 300,000,0007T

#FEIMR (L8) ARAR
(T%8l L&)

Taicang Natural Gas PRC/ RMB188,000,000 = 100 Distribution and
Company Limited*/** Mainland China AR sale of natural gas,
(“Taicang Natural Gas”) R R A 3 188,000,0007C provision of natural

ARMARRERATF
(TRBXRAR])

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Corporate And Group Information

Notes to Financial Statements

M HE R M
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

1. EEREEER (&)

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

BENBARNER (&)
ARBEEMBRABNFEWT - (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered

Percentage of
equity attributable to

Name business share capital the Company Principal activities
SRR BRITEE/ FAFELM
A% dMREE R AR BB TEEK
Direct  Indirect
B Bk

Kunshan Anda Natural PRC/ RMB2,000,000 = 80 Distribution and sale of
Gas Development Co., Ltd.  Mainland China ARHE natural gas
(“Anda Natural Gas”)** B A 3t 2,000,0007C AR HERAR

RINRERARERARAA
(TZRERAR])

Suzhou Zhongyu Energy PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction and
Development Co., Ltd.*/**  Mainland China AR operation of natural gas
(“Suzhou Zhongyu”) R A3, 10,000,0007C filling stations

FMPFRRERERAR BRREERRRIMAI
(T&MFF])

Sichuan Guangyuan PRC/ RMB20,000,000 = 51 Operation of natural gas
Licheng Gas Co., Ltd. Mainland China ARHE filling stations
(“Licheng Gas") */** B A 20,000,0007C BERARMAI

mIETERMREREEATF
(T2RRMR])

k%

The statutory financial statements were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

The English names of these subsidiaries represent the best
efforts made by management of the Company to translate
their Chinese names as they do not have official English
names registered in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC").

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had direct and
indirect interests in its subsidiaries, all of which are
private limited liability companies (or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially similar
characteristics to a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong).

*%

EEFBRMRIG AL BB LK HENE
TSP ak 20k BIBR AR L fh A R A% o

R EARSEFIE ([FE ) M &y kY
BRARILBIEAR LM HZEAA
MRXEZBDMARBERERNBZ
FRARNPNERBEEH -

R2016%12A318 » A" AR H & KM
BEEAENKBAR  2FHELAR
REMRAA (3 R EFBEZEINEMMA
Y A EBHEERBEIMAIMFLAR
AIABARE SR o
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE20165F12A31 B ILFE

2.1 fRBEXE

2.1 Basis of Preparation

116

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise all standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International
Accounting Standards (“lASs”) and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Committee
that remain in effect, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016

% T TS IRR TOARIE AT 98 A 35 ) B iR B
BHEER ([BEEREFBHREER ] (2
mEERerERESEe ([BRETER
BEe|) itENmA LR REE) &
RErERE M ENERES

ZH| (TR ER]) MEBRER
EERBUNTER RGN KERE
MR o WIS R TIIRIBIE L AN H FRUA
wmE - BRAFRAEIN  RFHHRE
AARFREMBARNINGEEEAR
B ATARE] 27 FBEEEHEZ

BEREETA -

meRE

AV ERREEBEARRIREKB AR
(B IAEE]) #=2016F12A31H
IEFERNBEEHRE - B AREARR
HEEEEIMEEHENER (218
EHENLER) EXASERERERR
EPETZ AR E E R A £ 0 3R A R bR sk
R WaeAMEEHREREENE
ZoReE (ARBEF A EAREERE
REREEREHRNEBREE) - &
REAEBHEFIREHROITHIE -



2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

Notes to Financial Statements

M HE R M
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

2.1 WBLE%E (4F)

REEE (&)
EARFEERAMEEEINREHR
BF BIRZERBALERNE - NEER
AHEEEHREHRBERE RS
BFREHBEERER 83

(a) HEZWEHREMEZERE AN
GRS

(b) RIBEEMAENLEZAERERN &

(c) AERENRERLBERERE

B /B8 2 B e B 5 R T4 BN X B AR [R]
E’Jiﬁziﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬂl%iﬁ% g Ffﬁ%

NCIEVESERSRAN SESCEE b Jgis
REAR  YHEEREZEHEE R
RIAESRA AR -

Ba R EMEER SRS EKED R B
MRAEER REIEE A MR ER
B g S| BT S BALERR - FTA
SERNHEERAMG  BE - W F
XMAREBARNRBERSARNE
ERANEA KRB RFEHE -

e 35 B R B RS £ SCP st = TR 42 I A
EN-EAZEHREL AREEE
FAAERTIEFIREHR - WEKE
2 IRV P B A B A R B AR
AR HNE °
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE20165F12A31HILEE

2.1

P2

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying

the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to

IFRS 11
IFRS 14
Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to

IAS 16 and IAS 38

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Disclosure Initiative
Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation
Amendments to
IAS 16 and HKAS 41
Amendments to
IAS 27
Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Amendments to
a number of IFRSs

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements

M HE R M
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 Bt BHERNEHRIKE (F)

Disclosures (Continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS B R B A el 5 Y2 B EE 1 05 « BURRBA 7

28, amendments to IFRS 11, IFRS 14, amendments to MELERIFE1257 KBRS 2R 52857

IAS 16 and IAS 41, amendments to IAS 27, and certain BMEST AN ~ BB 75 TR & 2 B 1155 89

amendments included in the Annual Improvements BETA « BRI TSRS 2RI ZE 1457

2012-2014 Cycle, which are not relevant to the et R E 165 MER e ERIZE41

preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the SREETA - B ERIE275RaNE

nature and the impact of the amendments are described RN RR2012F Z2014F 18 B 89 F /& 24

below: TR S RIREANE BRI SRR

WE TR - SEFTHHE kT BN
T«

(@ Amendments to IAS 1 include narrow-focus (a) BIFEHENEIRNETASE
improvements in respect of the presentation and HEP G REANI|EE EESHE BT
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments HERNE - ZFBEEE
clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in IAS 1; (i) RastERFE1HRANEKXR
MARE
(ii) that specific line items in the statement of (i) BamEkEPBIRARANEE
profit or loss and the statement of financial IHEA T

position may be disaggregated;

(iii) that entities have flexibility as to the order (i) ERMEE27 B @mKM T
in which they present the notes to financial IR BRI - &

statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income (iv) EAEZEARND(BHE A
of associates and joint ventures accounted for AkEEtENHEM 2 IR
using the equity method must be presented in VWEERSRIERERZY
aggregate as a single line item, and classified WEEREXKITGEREND
between those items that will or will not be BEBRRNZERARETS
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. ¥ o

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the AN - ZEIERTE BRI R K

requirements that apply when additional subtotals LIBHERANZH2EIN T EAD

are presented in the statement of financial HIE - REBEI T EHAKERE
position and the statement of profit or loss. The BHREREEEMERLE -

amendments have had no significant impact on the

Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE20165F12A31 B ILFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the
principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As
a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances
to amortise intangible assets. The amendments
are applied prospectively. The amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group as the Group has not
used a revenue-based method for the calculation

of depreciation of its non-current assets.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle issued in
September 2014 sets out amendments to a number
of IFRSs. Details of the amendments are as follows:

e IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations: Clarifies
that changes to a plan of sale or a plan
of distribution to owners should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. Accordingly, there is no change in the
application of the requirements in IFRS 5.
The amendments also clarify that changing
the disposal method does not change the date
of classification of the non-current assets or
disposal group held for sale. The amendments
are applied prospectively. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the
Group did not have any change in the plan
of sale or disposal method in respect of the
disposal group held for sale during the year.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016

22 B BRNSBREE (8)

(b)

R R E 165k MR &%
A 38R MIEFT BB 5 28
F165k KBRS ERE38HAR
B AP RMEEER (K&
E2—E10) FTEEMLEFRZE
X MIREREAEEMEEN
KOEF = o Bt - WEET B AR
WEMHE - BEMEE - MERE
HEEERNB R TANEHEELE
E o ZEBITRERKEA - AR
RNEBWEE AR S AT EEIER
PEEMNTE  HZFBiIIrey
RNEBA I IS AR S sk B E L (A

22 488
= °

201449 A 2 17 2012F £2014
4F 28] R Yy 4F JE 2 38 S — Lk B R B 7
WEERETT TIER] o BRIFE1B M
—F :

o BIRMEREELEHRAFF
HEHRBEEREKIEE
X BB THIHEREIHM
PAEH D BT 8100 E BT e
WA R EEE - MEMF
RRETEINTEE - Fitt - BER
B 75 ¥ &5 AE R B 555 &Y B 3K
BREERBELERL - BF]
RINEE  EREENTETE
RERAFEIFRDEENRE
EHENP BB - ZFEBFTR
BARBER - ZFEBITHAE
EYEEE  HASAREANE
ERERFEFENIERBEE
MEEMNHEEFTEIREEN
R AR E o



Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

2.3 B AR {B 1o AR 4 R A0 B PR B 3 3
s |

A=A

AEBRARARZFHHEHREIARHAAT

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and

revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9
Amendments to
IFRS 10 and

IAS 28
IFRS 15

Amendments to
IFRS 15

IFRS 16
Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22

Classification and
Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4

Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases’

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses’

Transfer of Investment
Property?

Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration?

Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other

included in Annual
Improvements 2014-
2016 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements 2014-
2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 28
included in Annual
Improvements 2014-
2016 Cycle

Entities’

First-time Adoption of
International Financial

Reporting Standards?

Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures?
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of
a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet the employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and the accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account
for vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled
share-based payments also applies to cash-settled
share-based payments. The amendments introduce an
exception so that a share-based payment transaction
with net share settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax
obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified, with
the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions
of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements
for classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9
from 1 January 2018. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the standard upon adoption and expects
that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have an impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. No
mandatory effective date yet determined but is available
for adoption. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed
by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and
joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for application now.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRSs. In April 2016,
the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to address
the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus
agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of
applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt IFRS
15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the

impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15
Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees —
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At
the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property in IAS 40.
The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect
the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019
and is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon
adoption.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International 2.3 B FE M 1B 18 Kk A R AT B R B 3% R

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will
result in additional disclosure to be provided in the
financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.

Amendments to IAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured
at fair value, although they also have a broader
application for other situations. The amendments
clarify that an entity, when assessing whether taxable
profits will be available against which it can utilise
a deductible temporary difference, needs to consider
whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the reversal
of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance on how an entity
should determine future taxable profits and explain the
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying
amount. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2017.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment

losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in profit or loss. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint

ventures.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for

Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on

bargain purchase.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or

groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed
of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than deferred tax assets, inventories, construction
contract assets, financial assets and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 TESTHEME (&)

(Continued)
Related parties BE AL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: EAALHTE A MERAB A EE R
AL
(@) the party is a person or close member of that (@) BEAATATMALTSS AT
person’s family and that person THEEREB
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; (i) BRSBTS LR
il 4
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BAREEHEEERTES 5
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel (iii) ARNEESANEEEGAFIHE
of the Group or of a parent of the Group. ZEEAB o
or B4
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b) EEALTAEEERAFE THEM
conditions applies: B
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the (i) ZEREAREBAR—SBEHN
same group; ERA
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of (i) ZERBRS —HEBNBER
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or AlkEErE (Im—HEE
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); okSo/NEI IR NI AEEST
BAR7])
(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEEBHAER—F=FMN4
third party; B
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity (ivy —HERAE=-FEENGE
and the other entity is an associate of the ¥ ME—EBRZFE=SH
third entity; ERNEBEAR
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) gﬁf%$%ﬁ§ﬁi$%ﬁ%
for the benefit of employees of either the ENERREENRR B
Group or an entity related to the Group; BARAE 2
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(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognised such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.
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(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Buildings BF

Gas pipelines MREE

Plant and machinery T 5 Tk 2%

Furniture, fixtures and Rfh - KER
office equipment i NE

Motor vehicles B

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Construction in progress represents gas station
structures, machinery, gas pipelines and other property,
plant and equipment under construction which is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Software copyrights

Purchased software copyrights are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
ten years.

Operating rights

Operating rights for city pipeline network are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
twenty-eight years.
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(Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,

but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments. When all financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in other
expenses.
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(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)
When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that
asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss.
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(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been

transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to

profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are

recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration or extent to which the fair value of an

investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through the
statement of profit or loss if the subsequent increase in
fair value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,

as loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank

borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or

expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Construction contracts

The balances of construction contracts represent the
net amount of construction costs incurred to date and
recognised profits (less recognised losses), less progress

billings and provision for foreseeable contract losses.

Construction contract costs are valued at actual cost,
and comprise direct materials, direct labour costs,
construction machinery costs, other direct costs and
construction overheads. For an individual contract
whose costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses) exceed progress billings, the
gross amount due from customers for contract work
in inventories is presented as amounts due from
construction contract customers. For an individual
contract whose progress billings exceed costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits (less recognised losses),
the gross amount due to customers for contract work in
advance from customers is presented as advances from

customers.

The Group estimates total contract costs based on
actual circumstances for each contract. Provision for
foreseeable contract losses will be recognised in profit
or loss where total estimated contract costs exceed total

contract revenue.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when

acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.
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(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income to match the grant on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

from construction contracts, on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction contracts”
above;

from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 TEEEFREE (&)
(Continued)
Share-based payments LR BEENAR
ARrBie—EERETE - EERY
REBEXBRNEMERNAERSHE
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ATENKE ([REAGERS]) °

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success E4T
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the R BN -
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 27 October 2015 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the Black-Scholes model, further details of

20151027 A EER E M EES
ETRABEIZHRAR - H2ERT
HEOAFEMmMTE - A FERINER
BRIERAR N — SFRTEXEE - B
B — DB E R R M3 -

which are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised BRAGEER HEA - E R E LN
in employee benefit expense, together with a 5 - E%)&&/Yﬁlﬁk fER =R HA R

MNMEBRBAM PR - £5HE B8R
ui&%ﬁﬂ*ﬁﬁwﬂxm,n%?&%ﬁ’ﬂ?@ﬁﬁ
X RRFEBAE D AR
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting B EeRBNRATAESENRER
it o EE BRI NER RS RO IRESE
AR T8 O HA 47 BR HA R R 3R ) RET I S &

estimate of the number of equity instruments that will £

corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions

are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for

period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which

the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best

ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 20% to 22% of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016

LU0 BEEMN R ()

WA A B Rt - IR R E R
BHEISRE - R AR ER (B
RENSAEELES AT HHIERB
fER {0 (e 2208 FASZ - 1 BB RERR
A - B RBRBCEHENER I
R B REE RS ER - RINATER
Pt - AL SHERR) KRB E ARE
REWEE -

SEERANE - RITERRENEE
MIE - RRSERINAD B o

Hittfg S &5

BikzitE

7R 5 B 1 B P 4t 5E D T BB 8 R O (B
BA2 8 7T R ATE B H) P SRR IR
ZFH 8 - ZEWB R RARFH KA
20%ZE22%A F RBEREFHEI LK o #
RILRRPRRAREFEREERBAZ A
SFABzEA -



2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefits

As stipulated by PRC regulations, subsidiaries in
Mainland China participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme. All formal employees are entitled
to an annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the
average basic salary amount of their last employment
at their retirement date. Subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to make contributions to the local social
security bureau at rates of 20% to 22% of the average
basic salaries of the employees under the employment
of subsidiaries in Mainland China to whom the defined
contribution retirement plan is applicable. Subsidiaries
in Mainland China have no obligations for the payment
of pension benefits beyond the annual contributions to
the local social security bureau as set out above.

Accommodation benefits

According to the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
each of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
is required to make contributions, which are in
proportion to the salaries and wages of the employees,
to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre. There are
no further obligations on the part of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China, except for the contributions to the

accommodation fund.
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(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they

are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the Group’s and the Company’s
functional currency because the Group’s principal
operations are carried out in Mainland China. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

160

Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of
dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue
withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends by certain subsidiaries according to the
relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is
subject to judgement on the plan of the distribution of
dividends.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial period, are described

below.

(i)

(ii)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations, or competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. The useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
note 2 to the financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables

The provision policy for impairment of trade
receivables is based on ongoing evaluation of
the collectability and ageing analysis of the
outstanding receivables and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
those receivables, including the creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of the customers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances might be required. The
carrying amount of trade receivables as at
31 December 2016 was RMB53,512,000 (31
December 2015: RMB34,742,000). Further
details are contained in note 22 to the financial
statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management
considers that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary tax differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax in the periods in which such
estimates have been changed. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016 was RMB31,026,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB27,937,000), details of which are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements.

Estimation of the amortisation period of connection
fees recorded as deferred income

The Group receives fees from customers in advance
in exchange for the connection of gas pipelines to
the urban natural gas pipeline network. These fees
are received in advance and gradually amortised.
The Group determines the estimated amortisation
period of ten years for its revenue recognition.
This estimate is based on the Group’s historical
experience of the actual service period and the
strength of the Group’s business relationship
with each individual customer. It could differ
significantly based on the customer’s profile,
expected term of the relationship and the strength
of the customer’s business relationship established
with the Group. Generally, amortisation is
calculated on the straight-line basis for ten years.
The carrying amount of deferred income carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016 was RMB94,056,000
(31 December 2015: RMB84,405,000), details
of which are set out in note 28 to the financial

statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(v) Impairment of goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2016 was RMB103,176,000 (2015: Nil). Further
details are given in note 15.

Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment which is natural gas
operation. Since this is the only reportable operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment
analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

Geographical information is not presented since all
of the Group’s revenue from external customers is
generated in Mainland China and all of the non-current
assets of the Group are located in Mainland China. The
non-current asset information is based on the location
of the assets and excludes financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No information about major customers is presented as
no revenue from a single customer accounted for 10%
or more to the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Directors have only little information about
whether a group of entities are under common control;
and therefore such assessment is made to the directors’
best knowledge. Especially, such assessment is not
made for those entities which might solely be under
the ultimate common control of the government after
taking into account the economic integration among
such entities in the economic environment with a large
number of state-owned entities in Mainland China.
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. WA~ Ht A R K&
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods WAREER MM BERFE (KR
sold after allowances for returns, trade discounts B - BN EKSBHRTNINEEE
and various types of government surcharges, where (W@EA))  REReBERBE RE
applicable; and an appropriate proportion of contract REHm & RS (HRIEED - EXH
revenue of construction contracts and service contracts, LI FTHInE) o

net of value-added tax, business tax and government

surcharges.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and REBHUWA « MU A RS DTS
gains is as follows: SR
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Revenue PN
Sale of natural gas HERAR 615,439 668,099
Construction and connection EREEARREE
of gas pipelines 119,503 121,785
Transmission of natural gas BIRKAR 7,267 8,644
Others Hity 4,190 3,657
746,399 802,185
Less: Government surcharges B B E (5,504) (6,560)
740,895 795,625
Other income and gains HAn g A R iz
Bank interest income RITH B HA 7,995 11,802
Interests from available-for-sale AHHERE 2B
investments 4,958 -
Foreign exchange gain BE 3 U a 3,229 6,204
Government grants BT 8 B 6,197 9,545
Gain on disposal of prepaid land S FE R T A8 BRI A
lease payments - 5,657
Others HAitb 40 14
22,419 33,222
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BE A
RERKANDATHIIT :

6. Finance Costs 6.
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

2016 2015
20165 2015%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Interest on interest-bearing bank loans BN FAFRNBEEEDN
wholly repayable within five years SFRRITEROFE 4,344 5,266
Others Hib 180 551
4,524 5,817
7. Profit before Tax 7. BR®ADZF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AREBHBRBI SRR IENE /(G
(crediting): A)
2016 2015
20165 20155
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Cost of inventories sold HEFEAR 490,544 561,979
Employee benefit expense EERAFX
(excluding Directors’ remuneration as (T BIEM T8 FTE A
set out in note 8): EE=W<)
Wages and salaries TITENH® 21,719 15,648
Equity-settled share option expenses VATE 25 45 5 A BB AR RE B =2 2,941 591
Pension scheme contributions RN FHEIHER 1,963 1,495
Social security contributions and HeEREERRESEN
accommodation benefits 1,908 1,855
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETIN & 2,350 2,100
Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease  H &8t + it FE FIE
payments (note 5) Was (BtsEs) - (5,657)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEDE BEK
plant and equipment ®EBEE R 1 55
Foreign exchange gain (note 5) BE H e (PRES) (3,229) (6,204)
Depreciation (note 13) FrE (f=E13) 29,731 26,882
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FET + 300 & RKIE
payments (note 14) wiH (Misk14) 2,245 1,309
Amortisation of intangible B EERE (M16)
assets (note 16) 749 61
Impairment of trade receivables EUE B ERFURE 1,323 2,730
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

8. EERFETHAENME

REETRE - BB RBEAIFE383(1)
@)~ (b) » ROEARAR (REES
MEER) ROIE2H - REFANE
EREFBTHRABNMEIOT

as follows:
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
Fees Bwe 450 390
Other emoluments: Hutblz
Salaries, allowances and e RUREYH =
benefits in kind 5,204 5,738
Equity-settled share option expenses UARE 25 45 S B0 BB AR AR A 2 2,425 318
7,629 6,056
8,079 6,446

During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.

There were no emolument paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join the Group, or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office

during the year.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016

HZE2015F12A318 IEFE » BRIEA
NEIRBRETE - ETESZRESM
AEBIRHARBERBERE - HMsF
BHRYBHREM I 1H - BRED
ATFEREBHANBERRTER B
REH BEEE - Mat ARFE B ®
EYNSEPREE LIEETMESNIFER
ﬁq o

FAAEERERESENEMEH
- ERRSI INAKREE SR INAREE
& e SRBY S IE R RE R (E o



Notes to Financial Statements

M HE R M
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EBERFIEMTHAEBNME (&)
Remuneration (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive RERNZN T EBILIERITESH
directors during the year were as follows: B|ET -
2016 20165

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expenses Total
LUIEREEN

we B IR R X st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BERLEE 150 54 204
Mr. He Junjie &4 150 54 204
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PEfEo8 e A4 150 54 204
450 162 612

2015 20154

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expenses Total
VATE 25 45 5 6

we BRI st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT ARETT

Mr. Zhou Qingzu AERLE 130 9 139
Mr. He Junjie HE A4 130 9 139
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PE(RR A& 130 9 139
390 27 417
There were no other emoluments payable to the RERN @ BERNBUIENTES

independent non-executive directors during the R EAMEE (20155 : &) o

year (2015: Nil).
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERFETHAENME ()
Remuneration (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) BITEERIIFHITES
directors
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits ~ Discretionary  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
e 24 NEREEN e
He  RENAE BEEL  BREERX HE [ &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETE ARETR
2016 2016F
Executive directors: YrEs:
- Mr. Su Aping - EWELE - 1,742 - 592 - 2,334
- Ms. Zhu Yaying - Roint - 1,182 - 539 - 1,721
- Mr. Du Shaozhou - iHAAkE - 1,180 - 539 - 1,719
- Ms. SuYi -HEut - 890 - 539 - 1,429
- 4,994 - 2,209 - 7,203
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
- Mr. Xu Lei —HELE - 150 - 54 - 204
- Mr. Zhuang Jianhao Ly i - 60 - - - 60
- 5,204 - 2,263 - 7,467
2015 W015F
Executive directors: HTES:
- Mr. Su Aping o (CRS: - 2,407 - 100 - 2,507
- Ms. Zhu Yaying - REERT - 1,823 - 91 - 1914
- Mr. Du Shaozhou —itRALE - 1378 - 91 - 1,469
- 5,608 - 2 - 5,890
Non-executive director: FHTES:
- Mr. Xu Lei -FEEE - 130 - 9 - 139
- 5,738 - 291 - 6,029
There was no arrangement under which a Director RER - WERTMATM R - AR
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration EEMEXRERETMAME -

during the year.
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M HE R M
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. TEREHFMMES
The five highest paid employees during the year FA hE&EaTHES (BENEE
included four directors (2015: three directors), £ (Q015F : =REF)) WeFEH
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 REXHEES - £ - BT~ —% (2015
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the F ML) WEARRESTHEEZTH
remaining one (2015: two) highest paid employee who AEBHZEHINEEMSHFBELT ¢
is neither a director nor chief executive of the Company
are as follows:
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Salaries, allowances and e EUMEREYHR
benefits in kind 3,481 3,509
Equity-settled share option expenses  AMEzS 4 E M B IRAER S 856 236
4,337 3,745
The number of non-director highest paid employees EESSEMEENMENFUTA
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is AT
as follows:
2016 2015
20165 20155
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 21,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000  1,500,001/&7L22,000,0007 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7L E2,500,000/8 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000  2,500,001/#7T23,000,000/% 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ C23,500,000/% 70 - -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7L £ 4,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/ 7L24,500,0007 70 - -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ C25,000,0007% 70 - -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000  5,000,001/#7C%5,500,000/4 70 1 -
1 2
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MR
Year ended 31 December 2016
EHZE20165F12A31HILEE

10.

Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2015, share
options were granted to non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 31. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director and non-
chief executive highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join the Group, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and

operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax

in that jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits derived from or
earned in Hong Kong during the year.

The provision for Mainland China current income tax is
based on the statutory rate of 25% (2015: 25%) of the
assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
as determined in accordance with the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law which was approved and became
effective on 1 January 2008 (the “New Corporate
Income Tax Law”), except for Licheng Gas, a subsidiary
acquired by the Group during the year, which is taxed
at preferential rate of 15%.
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10. Income Tax (Continued)
The major components of income tax expense are as

10. FR5H (&)
FERBXNIEBHRIIMT -

follows:

2016 2015
20165 2015%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFTT
Current tax: BUEATRIA -
Income tax in the PRC for the year FANFRBEFTFH 47,981 47,331
Adjustments in respect of BB TR AN
current tax of previous periods B ER T 18 78 B 260 578
Deferred tax (note 18) REBTE (FzE18) (3,335) (1,209)
Total tax charge for the year FARIBES H 44,906 46,700

HAREBEARGIREREHMERRE
i FTFE Bl AR A E R R 5T E M BR B AT

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries M E B IR B X BRI B R KA E A
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax THR ST ERT ¢
rate is as follows:
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Profit before tax R A BT A 168,723 185,339
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFTHE 2 HIE 42,181 46,335
Lower tax rate for a specific entity FEBEBZBEREK (667) =
Income not subject to tax BARBZ WA - (755)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT R X 232 446
Tax losses not recognised RERIEEE 3,257 1,236
Adjustments in respect of BB HE AR
current tax of previous periods BIERT 18 58 % 260 578
Profits attributable to associates NS i (357) (1,140)
Total tax charge recognised B iR IR R X 48R 44,906 46,700
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HZE20165F12A31 B ILFE

10.

11.

12.

Income Tax (Continued)

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting
to RMB606,000 (2015: RMB1,787,000) is included
in “Share of profits of associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Dividends

On 31 March 2017, the board of directors of the
Company resolved to propose a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 of RMB0.028
per ordinary share (2015: RMB0.034), subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

10. A58 (&)

11.

i N B HY FE (G 118 3 A R %606,000
70 (20154 : AR #1,787,0007T) © B
EREGEAEEREMEZERERFTH
[ BB DN BIHSEF] ] o

BRE

B2017F3A318 R AR EEZ L&
REZREEHE2016F12A8318 IH4F
EREREEGR T AR AR0.0287T
(2015%F : AR¥0.03470) © HAFRKR
RRARFEERRBAFAS LHER
AEE o

2016 2015
2016%F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Proposed final - RMB0.028 AABBE —
(2015: RMB0.034) FREBBRAKR0.0287T
per ordinary share (20155 : AR¥0.0347T) 24,162 28,092

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of The Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 844,730,773
(2015: 780,691,890) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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12. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary 12. B AREZEREZTEARLER
Equity Holders of The Parent (Continued) 27 (&)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per FRERNEFER JHZ A TN EEST
share are based on: :

i}

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Earnings 2
Profit attributable to ordinary equity et ESRERRFE
holders of the parent, used in the basic S REE@AEZE A
earnings per share calculation JEAE & A 120,681 138,639

Number of shares

RHEE
2016 2015
2016 20155
Shares IR
Weighted average number of ordinary  FR{EEt EGARERZF|HY
shares in issue during the year FAEBITEERK
used in the basic earnings IntEFE 8
per share calculation 844,730,773 780,691,890
Effect of dilution — weighted average e g — TNk
number of ordinary shares: FEE
Share options g g 20,000,000 3,561,644

864,730,773 784,253,534
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. 9% - BERRE

174

Furniture,
fixtures
Gas  Plantand  and office Motor Construction
Buildings ~pipelines  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
B ZER
BT MREE BEREE HOERE RE  HBIR @
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARET:
Cost: A
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A18 177,369 405,422 37,462 3,033 8,057 46,741 678,084
Additions RE 2,325 - 191 546 237 35,311 38,610
Transfers b = 2,936 2,695 = = (5,631) =
Disposals HE - = (30) (453) (602) = (1,085)
At 31 December 2015 120155124318 &
and 1 January 2016 2016F1 718 179,694 408,358 40,318 3,126 7,692 76,421 715,609
Additions AE 2,068 - 99 299 709 36,022 39,197
Acquisition of KEHB AR
subsidiaries (note 33)  (Ff#33) 3,774 4,433 2,884 33 295 63 11,482
Transfers [zbd 2,000 31,713 141 41 = (33,895) =
Disposals HE = (8) = 8) = = (16)
At 31 December 2016 7201612 831H 187,536 444 496 43,44 3,491 8,696 78,611 766,272
Accumulated RFE
depreciation:
At 1 January 2015 #201551 418 15,922 81,959 12,132 862 2,481 - 113,356
Charge for the year ~— FRHX 5,576 16,846 3,201 523 736 - 26,882
Disposals HE - - (28) (431) (548) - (1,007)
At 31 December 2015 #2015F12A318 &
and 1 January 2016 2016F1A18 21,498 98,805 15,305 954 2,669 - 139,231
Charge for the year FRRY 5,620 19,019 3,684 605 803 = 29,731
Disposals ek = (7) = (7) = = (14)
At 31 December 2016 722016124318 27,118 117,817 18,989 1,552 3,472 - 168,948
Net carrying amount:  BRIEF(E
At 31 December 2015 72015412 A31H 158,196 309,553 25,013 2,172 5,023 76,421 576,378
At 31 December 2016 #2016F12A31H 160,418 326,679 24,453 1,939 5,224 78,611 597,324
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

14.

At 31

buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately

December 2016, certain of the Group’s

RMB124,035,000 (2015: RMB127,177,000) were
pledged to secure interest-bearing bank loans granted

to the Group (note 29).

13.

Notes to Financial Statements

M HE R M
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

M- BERXE (&)
R2016F12A318 » AEBR®EFE
# B AR #124,035,0007T (20154 :
AR¥127,177,0007T) & T F &
EH - UABRTAEENG SRITER
REER (H5E29) ©

Prepaid Land Lease Payments 14. B L HERE
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWT T ARBTFT
Cost: AR
At beginning of year F7) 52,056 56,548
Additions NE 11,147 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) WM B A F) (FiIEE33) 38,249 -
Disposals during the year FALE - (4,492)
At end of year FR 101,452 52,056
Accumulated amortisation: E-Sg 5
At beginning of year F4 5,813 5,075
Amortisation during the year F B 2,245 1,309
Disposals during the year FALE - (571)
At end of year FR 8,058 5,813
Net carrying amount at end of year FAREREFE 93,394 46,243
Current portion, included in BNERER1y - B FETAZRIE
prepayments, deposits and ®’e MHE MW RIE
other receivables (2,781) (1,307)
Non-current portion JEBNHA =1 90,613 44,936

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s prepaid

land lease payments with an aggregate net carrying
amount of RMB4,323,000 (2015: RMB4,423,000) were

pledged to banks to secure the borrowings granted to

the Group (note 29).

M20165F12H31H - AEERKREF
B A AR®4,3230005T (20154 : A
K #4,423,0007T) B0&E TEMN L HHE
ENERER TASEEFRNIRITER
(fzE29) °
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Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12A31BIEFE
15. Goodwill 15. B8
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARBTTT
Cost: AN
At 1 January R1ATE - =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) WHEH B~ R (MiEE33) 103,176 -
At 31 December W12 A31H 103,176 =
Accumulated impairment: R5HHEE :
At 1 January and at 31 December W1A1TEXR12A31H - -
Net book value: BRERE -
At 31 December W12 A31H 103,176 =
Impairment testing of goodwill 5k RN EES
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is MR EBEHMRENEES DS
allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) that are HeEESMm ([ReELEEM]) (FBH
expected to benefit from that business combinations. HEERBRZEBAO) - iEERE
Management considers each subsidiary acquired AEME EEERAMREINEART
represents a separate CGU for the purpose of goodwill RBHREEFEEN -

impairment testing.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of PTREEHRCELEMNHENREE
the CGUs is as follows: W

2016 2015

20165 2015%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTTT

Licheng Gas BREME 51,723 -
Anda Natural Gas LERAR 51,453 -
103,176 -
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15. Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined
from value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to selling prices and direct costs during the year.
Management estimates discount rates of 13.7% using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGUs. Changes in selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate
of 3%.

Notes to Financial Statements

M HE R M
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

15. & (&)

BmEREANR (&)
ReELBUMNAIRESEDIZERE
B ETAEE - I EERAEENER
REREFANPRE ERXRBHE
BEREEXRANESHRHE -  EEEIAKR
MRS EEHCERENMISEEEM
R B 2 RS OB AT L R A RTREER X
R13.7% > EEREERANEE TIIA
BEBIIREMSERARESNBHSE
£ AFZRNBASREERMGEFHER
T39% HEE -
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16. Intangible Assets

16. BEEE

Operating
rights Software Total
KR B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Costs: AN :
At 1 January 2015 7201551 H1H - - =
Additions NG — 1,024 1,024
At 31 December 2015 and 20156128318
1 January 2016 201651 A1H - 1,024 1,024
Additions =T - 303 303
Acquisition of subsidiaries WHEH B A A
(note 33) (FfF3E33) 70,760 1 70,761
At 31 December 2016 2016512 H31H 70,760 1,328 72,088
Accumulated amortisation: STl .
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 H1H - - -
Provided during the year FREE - 61 61
At 31 December 2015 and 2015512 H31H
1 January 2016 ¥2016%F1A1H - 61 61
Provided during the year F B 626 123 749
At 31 December 2016 72016512 A31H 626 184 810
Net book value: BRMEFE
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31H - 963 963
At 31 December 2016 M2016%12A31H 70,134 1,144 71,278
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Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12A31HILFE

17. Investments in Associates

17. REFE QR RNRE

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 77,328 79,868
(a) Particulars of the associates are as follows: (@) HBERRNFBOT
Percentage of
MiEADY,
Nominal value  Place of
of paid-up/  registration and Voting  Ownership
Name of company registered capital  operations power interest  Principal activity
B4R/
NCIE EMRANEE EMREE0H REE  mAEER IEXH
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun RMB117,650,000  PRC/Mainland 49% 49%  Sale of gas products,
Suchuang Gas Co., Ltd.* ARE China and pipeline
(“Kunlun Suchuang Gas”) 117,650,000 HE /HERH construction and
FMRRBERESFEME maintenance
BRAR ([BEm&aIME]) HEMRAEM
FRIMEEE
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun RMB50,000,000  PRC/Mainland 40% 40%  Manufacture and
Suchuang Natural Gas ARH China sale of compressed
Usage Co., Ltd.* 50,000,000t  HE /HERM natural gas
(“Kunlun Suchuang Usage”) it R HE R
MR AME RFRIRAR AR

MABRAR
(TEm&aIFA])

* EREMBBREHAREEBLKE
51 A0 = 75 P sk 22 ok B R AR A% o
REAREEZ - RERATLIEN
RNBREHSE  ZERAMH
BEAEBRHBX -

The statutory financial statements were not audited
by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. The
English translations of these company names are
for reference only. The official names of these
companies are in Chinese.

M2016%F K2015512831H - Bt
ENRWESABE -

(b) The associates had no contingent liabilities as at (b)
31 December 2016 and 2015.

(0 REERFNHBEATGEMLE
BBRZ 5D BRI 24 RS 6
-

(c) The Group’s outstanding balances and transactions
with the associates during the year are disclosed in
note 24 and note 36 respectively.
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17. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(d)

The Group’s investments in associates are

considered to be individually material to the

Group. The following table illustrates the

summarised financial information of the Group’s

associates:

Kunlun Suchuang Gas

17. REFE QR NRE (&)
(d) ANEERBEQRRIRERR S
AEEERMEBEKN - NREM
AEBBENRNTBEERRR -

2016 2015

2016%F 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBT T

Non-current assets EREEE 45,768 92,294
Current assets mENEE 80,590 35,849

Current liabilities TmEARE (6,518) (6,682)
Net assets BEFE 119,840 121,461
Ownership interest (%) P REHE 22(%) 49 49
58,722 59,516

Impact of adjustments R E (1,888) (2,004)
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 56,834 57,512
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17. Investments in Associates (Continued) 17. R E A RNIRE (&)
(d) (Continued) d) (&)
Kunlun Suchuang Gas (Continued) Em#EIRR ()
Kunlun Suchuang Gas distributed dividends to REZE2016F12A31BILFE B
its shareholders amounting to RMB4,274,000 mERAIA & A E AR R AE H R Bk
in the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: S ARE4 274,0007T (20154
RMB4,886,000). The Group’s share of the dividend AR #4,886,0007T) © ANEEE D1k
distribution amounted to RMB2,094,000 (2015: & B mkE XA ARE2,094,0007T

RMB2,394,000).

(20154 : AE#¥2,394,0007T) °

2016 2015

2016%F 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Revenue WA 88,436 112,730

Profit for the year FEm T 2,891 5,036
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEKE

for the year - _
Total comprehensive income FE2EKHEHE

for the year 2,891 5,036

Ownership interest (%) P A R HE (%) 49 49

Share of results DIGEE 1,417 2,468
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Year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A31ALLFE
17. Investments in Associates (Continued) 17. R E A RNIRE (&)
(d) (Continued) d) (&)
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em&ELIF A
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Non-current assets EREEE 13,667 47,637
Current assets mENE E 38,743 11,020
Current liabilities mEEE (1,175) (2,767)
Net assets BESFE 51,235 55,890
Ownership interest (%) P HEHE SR (%) 40 40
Share of net assets DREEFE 20,494 22,356
Kunlun Suchuang Usage distributed dividends REZE2016F12A31RILFE B
to its shareholders amounting to RMB4,970,000 mER el A A E MR E L IR E 5k
in the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: & #H A K #4,970,0007T (20154 :
RMB3,302,000). The Group’s share of the dividend 3,302,000) - AEB DGR E DK
distribution amounted to RMB1,988,000 (2015: A A K #1,988,0007T (20154 :
RMB1,321,000). 1,321,000) °
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Revenue WA 51,088 79,310
Profit for the year FEHF 315 5,523
Other comprehensive income FEAME2ERKE
for the year - =
Total comprehensive income FEL2EWZEETE
for the year 315 5,523
Ownership interest (%) FT B HERE 25 (%) 40 40
Share of results DIGEE 126 2,209
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18. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

M HE R M
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

18. LR B

RER - BRERBEERAEZ A
T

Deferred tax assets BEEBIEEE
Allowance
for Accruals
Deferred doubtful and
income receivables provisions Total
ERRE B RAR
ELEWA RERE B wat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBF T ARBF T ARBF T
Gross deferred tax assets at 7201514 1H
1 January 2015 HRAE R 1R
BERHE 24,597 125 2,006 26,728
Deferred tax credited/ FRFFA S
(charged) to profit or loss (0 B) Bm
during the year (note 10) RYIE RERS 18
(F4zE10) (260) 602 867 1,209
Gross deferred tax assets at 720154
31 December 2015 and 12A318 &
1 January 2016 2016F1A1H
BRI IE
BERS 24,337 727 2,873 27,937
Deferred tax credited/ FERFTA S
(charged) to profit or loss  (3BRE) B2
during the year (note 10) R I8
(FiEE10) 3,237 131 (279) 3,089
At 31 December 2016 2016128318 27,574 858 2,594 31,026

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the following:

WHER AN SIAERNREFIAEE

2016 2015

20165 20155

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT ARBTFT

Tax losses not recognised AR IEE B 13,028 4,944
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18. Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making and they are not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available in the
foreseeable future against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities

18 IEFER R ()
ELERBEE (&)
HRZEBERASKSEHEENNEQ
Al RFAHIA A BRI AT GEE L R
Pom A HR B - MY B AFE
BRERELEHIREE °

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of

subsidiaries
WERE AR RES
Z RV ERR
RMB’000
ARBTF T
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 20151 H1H ~ 2015512 A31H
1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 20161 A1 BRELHIBA &
1 January 2016 Fk -
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FAHNR BB ELERIE
during the year (note 10) (MtzE10) (246)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) YeEEHT A B (M15E33) 21,045
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 2016512 A31HH)
31 December 2016 EEHIR B EARRE 20,799

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.
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18.

19.

Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, no deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised for withholding taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of a subsidiary of the Group
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
Directors, it is not probable that this subsidiary will
distribute earnings arising from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2016 in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with the
investment in the subsidiary in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB41.9 million as at 31
December 2016 (2015 : RMB30.6 million).
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18. IR H ()

EEMIEEE (8)
R2016%F12A31H » W ERAEBER
P B 7 1 B 7 B B B A BB AN B SR EE
BAFMEENBENHBERELCHIES
E-BEERA ZWBRARIRTRER
KA BE 9 K2008F1 A 1H £20164F
12A31TBHE® AT - R20165F12A4
318 - BIEERF H Ak E A 76
MEREEEBESRABOARKL1.9
BB (2015F : AR¥30.6B&7T)
MARRBELHIERE -

Prepayments, Deposits and Other 19. AR ~ HE R EMERKIE
Receivables

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFTT
Prepayments B FIR 20,130 8,208
Deposits and other receivables BE R E M EWFIR 23,540 5,692
Prepayments for the acquisition Y B Ak i B0 TR FRIA - 60,000
43,670 73,900

Classified as: DER
Current mE 40,554 11,135
Non-current IERE 3,116 62,765
43,670 73,900

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

BNFIE - e MEMERFR R EE
o B EEEERE -

BE L& EABHSRRE - 25t A
bR £ RS B BT HIN SR AR
SRR AR o

2016 FF3 | HARRROARDF

185



Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE20165F12A31 B ILFE

20. Inventories 20. B
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Construction materials ERR MR 7,365 6,400
Natural gas RAR 1,048 892
8,413 7,292
21. Amounts Due from Construction Contract 21. EWERXRESREFAE
Customers
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Arising from construction of ERAAREE
natural gas pipelines EFXNER 60,913 60,648
22. Trade and Bills Receivables 22. EWESRRARERE
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR 56,944 37,651
Less: Impairment B ORUE (3,432) (2,909)
53,512 34,742
Bills receivable eI IR 250 7,638
53,762 42,380
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Year ended 31 December 2016
HZ=2016F 12318 IEFE
22. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued) 22. BWEZRIARERE (&)
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are BRETHRPEBHFIEIN  AEEE
mainly on credit except for certain new customers BREEFNEBERERPRS - FHXH
where payment in advance is required. The average FEEHNTFS58E180R - REEHEK
trade credit period ranges from 5 days to 180 days. BEEWRIEEISREET . IRE18
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its [EIne F Bt sl WiE iR BE e Bl 45 64 -
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are BRGEERER B ERK -
reviewed regularly and actively monitored by senior
management to minimise credit risk.
Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and EWE ZERLERRERAR SR
non-interest-bearing.
Aged analysis by invoice date REZHBRNERER DN
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the R EQH R NBEER - RERNE
end of the year, based on the invoice date and net of WE ZERAMRROTLT ¢
provisions, is as follows:
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
Within 90 days 90H 33,467 14,652
91 days to 180 days 91HZ180H 460 612
181 days to 360 days 181HZ360H 6,016 3,615
Over 360 days HBiE360H 13,569 15,863
53,512 34,742
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22. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued) 22. EWESRRRERE (&)
Trade receivables not individually nor I A B R ENERE S
collectively impaired BRX
An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not WEERIRER R RRENEKE
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired SEZMEEROITIT -

is as follows:

2016 2015
20165 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Neither past due nor impaired I 8 EA ORI (B 21,001 8,981
Past due but not impaired: E2EHERBE :
Less than 90 days D90 H 19,065 9,898
Over 90 days @90 R 13,446 15,863
53,512 34,742
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired 3 % 760 HA SR (B Y 8 WOk T B K 25 B
relate to a large number of diversified customers for WEEACHEN D BEFER -
whom there was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate = # HA{B R (B A FE Uq Fh I8 B A T B K
to a number of independent customers that have a good EEMARNTER ZEENBIEF
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, B - BIEBAKS B2 AHAEM
the Directors believe that no impairment allowance sy pAs s G B2 RS
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has EWEEBEAEH - B RS EBE
not been a significant change in credit quality and the 3B AT e E o

balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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22.

23.

Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
Trade receivables that are impaired

The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired at the
end of the year and the movements in the provision for
impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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22. BB ZRAREE (&)

ERENEWE S R
AEERERNDRERKE SRR N
FEWE AR KRR E R EEB T

2016 2015
2016%F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

Movements in allowance account: BRIERNES .
At beginning and end of year REY R FR 2,909 499
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 2 HEREEEE (H:E7) 1,323 2,730
Amount written off as uncollectible 88 A A AT U O] B FOE - (320)
Impairment losses reversed B B 1R (800) -
3,432 2,909

The impaired trade receivables relate to individual
customers that were in financial difficulties or were
in default in payments and the receivables are not
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these

B R (B &9 FE W 5 AR 5K B8 TE R B I TR 2
i R ERRERIE P kAT Y [E
BRI - N"EEWERZFEER
RETMERRIEREMEEMRE
i

balances.
Available-for-sale Investments 23. A HHERE
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT

Unlisted debt investment, at fair value

FELEMEBRE - BAFE

112,000 -

The investments are structured deposit products issued
by Shanghai Pudong Development Bank and Ping
An Bank. As at 31 December 2016, the investment
amounts were RMB62,000,000 and RMB50,000,000,
respectively. The principals of these structured deposit
products are guaranteed and the expected return yields
rate from 2.6% to 3.0% per annum upon maturity.

RERERBBRBITRFLRITEST
MEBIETRER - R20165F12A31
A &RELES R A/AR®62,000,000
TR AR¥50,000,0007T ° ZE LB M
GFREMNASEEER  REHED
TEHAF B R EN F2.6%ZE3.0% ©
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24. Balances with Related Parties 24. BELRAE W4 &R
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Amounts due from other related parties  FEURE #th B E 5 7K 18

Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#RaliR 1,412 -
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service BRI BRZE )T B AR TS
Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Suling BRAT]
Automobile Service”) (TERMERZE TR 1) 773 -
2,185 -
25. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged 25 RERRESEFYREERER
Deposits
2016 2015
2016 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTA 6% 400,359 450,768
Less: Pledged short-term deposits B BRI AT K - (5,379)
Cash and cash equivalents BENIREEEY 400,359 445,389
Denominated in RMB A REE 201,099 439,290
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE 175,982 10,499
Denominated in HK$ N TTaHE 23,278 979
400,359 450,768
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based RITHESRE B RITEFRANRGEEUE
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and ME - RITEFREERERTIERE
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks ERFEZEBIBIEMELNCEANR
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts T -HRERBEEBEYRDEBAERL
of the cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits BEAEHEEATEERS

approximate to their fair values.
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25.

26.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged
Deposits (Continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.
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25. BERACEEYREERAERK
(%)
EEARBIEERLBRBEMES -
AT - RE B COMNE B B R DI
R(HEE - EERMNEBTERE) A%
B 7 B I R AR AT S R VIR TT
HARBLBAEMER -

Trade Payables 26. BN EZ RN
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTIT
Trade payables FEE 8RR 65,294 58,782

An aged analysis of the outstanding trade payables as

at the end of the year, based on the invoice date, is as BRNHBRER DT o -
follows:
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Within 90 days 90H A 51,084 52,263
91 to 180 days 91HZ=180H 3,200 2,431
181 to 365 days 181H=2365H 3,823 1,757
1 to 2 years 1224 7,165 2,318
Over 2 years 2 LA £ 22 13
65,294 58,782
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENEZERR TR - —HZEN180

normally settled within 180 days.

BAEME -
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27. Other Payables and Accruals

28

27. it BN AR BT ER

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Payroll and welfare payables FEAS 5 & KR A& T 6,853 6,592
Accruals FEFT &R 3,460 3,482
Other tax payables H At R IR 4,783 4,287
Other payables H A FE < 5K 38,509 32,273
53,605 46,634
Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and H B R IE S A . B RARE
repayable on demand. SEAEIE o
Deferred Income 28. BT A
Government Connection
grants fees Total
BT 6 R BEAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT ARBFT AREFTT
At 1 January 2015 R2015%F1H1H 9,897 88,490 98,387
Additions during the year FARE 3,600 9,890 13,490
Released to profit or loss BB R (556) (13,975) (14,531)
At 31 December 2015 and 72015412 A318 &

1 January 2016 20165F1H1H 12,941 84,405 97,346
Additions during the year FARE 4,051 25,008 29,059
Released to profit or loss BAETER (753) (15,357) (16,110)
At 31 December 2016 M20165F12 A31H 16,239 94,056 110,295
Analysed into: BRUTREDN
Current ikl 882 16,675 17,557
Non-current R 15,357 77,381 92,738

16,239 94,056 110,295

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016



28.

29.

Deferred Income (Continued)

Connection fees represent the fees from customers in

advance in exchange for the connection of gas pipelines

to the urban natural gas pipeline network. These fees

are received in advance and revenue is recognised over

their expected useful lives of ten years.

Asset related government grants are recognised over

the expected useful lives of those gas pipeline assets of

twenty years.
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28. IEIEW A (&)
BABDEAAESREUE ARG EE
ERETAAREEBEMASNER -
ZEER ALK - A BEETE
BT P F HA+ R o

HR AN EE IR EMRRE

2%
BEERRAERFH - TF®RA -

Interest-bearing Bank Loans 29. FFERITER
2016 2015
20165 20155
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFTT
Bank loans, unsecured EINFIRITE R 35,780 =
Bank loans, secured AERMIBRITER 60,000 60,000
95,780 60,000
Bank loans bear interest at rates per AT LA €8 B F 7=
annum in the range of FTERIRITER 2.87%-5.39% 6.77%
Repayable within one year AR —FRNEER 35,780 -
Repayable in the second year ARNE_FEER 10,000 -
Repayable in the third to fifth years, ARBE=FEFNLF
inclusive EBE (BEERME) 50,000 60,000
95,780 60,000
Analysed into: BRUTRIEDH
Current E 35,780 -
Non-current FERED 60,000 60,000
Non-current IERE 95,780 60,000

The Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are

denominated in RMB and HKD.

AEENRBITERRAREEAET
SIfE -
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HZE2016F12A31BIEFE

29. Interest-bearing Bank Loans (Continued) 29. ;H ERITER (F)
The Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are secured by AEBMF RRITERTIAREREREE
the pledges of the following assets with carrying values B TR TEEEERR :

at the end of the year as follows:

2016 2015
2016%F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARET T
Pledge of assets: BEHEE
Prepaid land lease payments Faft i &E5KIA (i) 4,323 4,423
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB K (i) 124,035 127,177
Note: BiisE
(i) The interest-bearing bank loans amounting to (i) H2016%F12A31H A AR%60,000,000
RMB60,000,000 (2015: RMB60,000,000) as at 31 7T (20154 © A & #60,000,0007T) #J
December 2016 were jointly secured by Group’s prepaid AHRRITERDAASENEN A
land lease payments and property, plant and equipment. EFIEAR I -« BRE KRR o
30. Issued Capital 30. ERTHRAE
Shares %)
Nominal Nominal
Number of value of value
shares  HK$0.01 each RMB
BREE AR
Bing B 0.01787C HE
Authorised: EE
At 31 December 2015 and M2015F12A318 K&
31 December 2016 2016128318 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 39,378,500
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30. Issued Capital (Continued) 30. EBITRAE (&)

Shares (Continued)

i (&)

Nominal Nominal
Number of value of value
Notes shares  HK$0.01 each RMB
SREE AR
(o ROEE 0.01/87T HE
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE :
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1H18 12,399,256 123,993 97,758
Capitalisation issue of shares BARCBITRD 587,600,744 5,876,007 4,654,385
Issue of new shares BITEIR (i) 200,000,000 2,000,000 1,584,200
Issue of shares under the over-  1BiZHREERL IR #E

allotment option BITRRD (ii) 26,236,000 262,360 207,763
At 31 December 2015 and 2015128318 %

1 January 2016 201651 A1H 826,236,000 8,262,360 6,544,106
Issue of new shares BITHR (iii) 36,688,000 366,880 313,616
At 31 December 2016 12016512 831H 862,924,000 8,629,240 6,857,722
Notes: FAE -

(i)

(if)

(iii)

In connection with the Company’s Global Offering on
the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2015, 200,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a
subscription price of HK$2.08 per share for a total
cash consideration, before deducting expenses related
to issue of shares, of HK$416,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB329,513,000).

On 10 April 2015, 26,236,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued by partial exercise of
the over-allotment option at a price of HK$2.08 per
share for a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$54,570,880 (equivalent to approximately
RMB43,214,680).

On 29 June 2016, the Company issued 32,288,000
shares at the subscription price of HK$2.55 per share and
completed the placing of 4,400,000 shares at the placing
price of HK$2.55 per share.

(i)

(ii)

(i)

MARAEBIMETHNEZREE
MmE ' R2015F3811H ' EXRRE
8 & (%2.08/8 jT ¥ 17200,000,000/%
FROIBIHNETER BREAR
BCRNBREBROHBEITHNRAR A
416,000,000/ 7t (IBEE R H AR K
329,513,0007T) °

MR2015F4 8108 © B & f%2.08
78 T 3 18 B0 {0 17 15 B KA B AR M B 1T
26,236,0008% & A%0.017% JT &Y I @
f% - #3R & R (E K 454,570,880/ T
(FBERHARYE43,214,6807T) °

R20165F6 8298 » KR AL REE
f%2.557% JT % 1732,288,0008% %
D WIABLEEER2.558 T el E
4,400,000 /%15 °
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31. Share Option Scheme 31. BR#ETE

196

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors and
other employees of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 27 October 2015 and was amended on 29
January 2016, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 8 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent to, upon their exercise, 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, which should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant share options.
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the

Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders” meetings.
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31. B AESTE (4])

BRELTEEHESETE - ENEE
RIAT 2 &BE ()RR ARG R R R
Rz BB P 2 W (B ¢ (i) AR B
DREERL AR AER S A EBR
P2 SFHRTE - R(ii) AR 2 R A2 Y
EfE °

B A TR A ER AR R A
RAGREZER -

FARBE LTS R ARTTE 2B RN

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year: T
2016 2015
20165 20154

Weighted Weighted
average  Number average  Number
exercise of  exercise of
price options price options
hnEF 13 BRE IEFH BB R
TEE #A 1TfEfE %A

HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
FERET FH BERAET T
At 1 January R1HA1R 2.034 20,000 = =
Granted during the year RERBEF D - - 2.034 20,000
At 31 December 128318 2.034 20,000 2.034 20,000
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 31. B AESHEl (&)

198

Pursuant to the Scheme which was adopted on 16
February 2015, the Company granted share options
to certain directors and employees (the “Grantees”)
of the Group on 27 October 2015 (the “First Grant”).
However, due to consideration of the Company’s
merger and acquisition plan, the Company agreed with
the Grantees on 2 November 2015 to cancel the plan
for the present and promised to grant new awards as a
replacement of the First Grant in the near future. On 29
January 2016, the Company re-granted share options
to these Grantees (the “Second Grant”) following all
clauses of the cancelled awards with updated exercise
price by reference to the latest five days’ market price,
with a vesting period ranging from 28 February 2017
to 28 February 2021. Management is of the opinion
that the newly granted awards fulfil the criteria to be
designated as replacement awards according to IFRS 2.
Thus, the Company recognised the cost of the original
award as if it had not been modified (i.e. at the original
grant date fair value, spread over the original vesting
period, and subject to the original vesting conditions).
In addition, the incremental cost due to the change of
fair value of the award will be spread over the period
from the date of modification until the vesting date of
the modified award.
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 31. B AESHEl (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share R EARERITEBRENITEER
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting TEHARAT -

period are as follows:

First Grant
BRE
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
BiES A 1TEE 1T EAME
000 HK$ per share
F SRET

27-10-2015 to 26-10-2023

20,000 2.034 2015510527 H%E2023F10H26H
Second Grant
E KR
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
Bl ERAR 171E(E 1710 BAfA
000 HK$ per share
T BB

29-01-2016 to 28-01-2024

20,000 2.00 201651 H29H £20245F1H28H
The fair value of the share options granted in 20158 HHBREZATER
2015 was HK$16,549,000 (HK$0.83 each) (2015: 16,549,0007% 7t (& §%0.8378 7T) (2015
HK$16,549,000), of which the Group recognised a F 116,549,000/ L) * HAPAAKEBE R
share option expense of HK$6,260,206 (equivalent to B E20165F12A31H L FERARBK
approximately RMB5,366,000) (2015: HK$1,129,000) 7 326,260,206 70 (BHERADDAR
during the year ended 31 December 2016. #5,366,0007T) (20154 : 1,129,000
BT e
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 31. B AESHEl (&)

200

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

7 - AR H ORI 0 A TER
LA % AREE D% — S E
BB - P BRI I ) 1
Kt o TR S B R F d8A
EH

First Grant Second Grant

BARH FIREH

Share price (HK$ per share) B (BRET) 2.02 2.00
Exercise price (HK$ per share) 1TEE (5ET) 2.034 2.00
Dividend yield (%) 12K (%) 1.33 1.30
Volatility (%) KENE (%) 41.55 39.49
Risk-free interest rate (%) 48 [ P K1) 3R (%) 1.64 1.89
Expected life of option (year) TEERIE R S o (F) 8 8
Exercise multiple ITEREE 3.342 3.342

for directors and
2.86 for employees
3342 (B%F) &

for directors and
2.86 for employees
3342 (BE) &

2.86 (EE) 2.86 ({EE)

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of reporting period, the Company had
20,000,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 20,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
premium of HK$39,800,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to end of the reporting period, on 24
January 2017, a total of 20,000,000 share option were
additionally granted to certain of the directors and
employees in the respect of their services to the Group
in the forthcoming year. These share options vest on 28
February 2018 and have an exercise price of HK$2.28
and an exercise period ranging from 28 February 2018
to 28 February 2022.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 40,000,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately
4.43% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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RIEIR - RIBEZTE  AQFFAE
20,000,00017 & AR 1T 1F 2 B8 IR #E © 14
ZERMKRITE BREEREITE
BARAIRBERNELR  BEET
20,000,000% A5 A )28 N 8 A% X BE AN
% 17 % /839,800,000 7T (A& Bk 2E1T
) o

RS RE - BTEEREBR2017
F1A24BERBEERFRARAEFEREN
BR 7% 5 17 & &% 8 R # & $£20,000,000
- % %5 B8 I # K2018F2 A28R &%
£ TEEAESIR2.28F T 0 (TEEIMR
H2018%F2 280 i £202292H28H
Jt °

RZETERREM AT KAQT]
MR % st £ T8 T % 540,000,00017 B A%
W R ARRRIRZ BB EITROH
4.43% o



32. Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents those reserve arose from
the reorganisation for the purpose of listing. Details of
the movements in the merger reserve are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain
entities within the Group are required to allocate a
certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined
by their boards of directors, of their profit after tax in
accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve
fund (the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of the

registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of
liquidation and, subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations, can be used to offset
accumulated losses or be capitalised as issued capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the articles
of association, a subsidiary registered in the PRC as a
domestic company is required to appropriate 10% of
its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years) to the statutory surplus reserve. After the
balance of such reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s
capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion
of the company. The statutory surplus reserve can be
utilised to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital
after such usages.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve pertains to the benefit derived by the
Group from receiving related party loans with interest
rates below the market rate.
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32. & &

AEERFANRBESEREZH TN
RAEDZEHRANZY -

B Ot 1
BHtEEEAS LM ENMETERMRE

RS - ARBHEDEER
SIS R EBE -
EEEES

RIEFBERARIINEGBE R RMERE
B AEEETHNETERANESS
AEZRFEAREF RIS RS T 2D
BBR R T CRDR10%) BIEE R
EHe (DEERHEe])  EEazMEEED
MAX AR HI50% A LE

EERMBEE S TADIK - HEHRBRIT
R AR AR B R o BDE AR AT EUE TR AT
RERERAEBERABRAEARCHT
BRARER S

RBEEERRAZREREL - EHEH
AMAREARINKBE AR AR L4
FME10% (KEEBEFEN RFTEE
%) BETRBEE RZREEOER
EEZERBELRNS50%% - AR AR
BIEHEME—TER - EERBREE
AAERERFTBEIIEE - A - B
B LIl gt - ZEERBRREBENLE
BARBNTLOREERD25% o

EAE 1
BT RARBIRIER TS X E
M ERERG— ERE T BN E £/ R

o

Bl

2016 FF3 | HARRROARDF

201



202

Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE20165F12A31 B ILFE

32.

33.

Reserves (Continued)

Distributable reserve

For dividend purposes, the amounts which the PRC
companies can legally distribute by way of a dividend
are determined by reference to the distributable profits
as reflected in their PRC statutory financial statements
which are prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP.
These profits differ from those that are reflected in this
report which is prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
profits after tax of the PRC companies can be
distributed as dividends after the appropriation to the
SRF as set out above.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries

(i) Acquisition of subsidiaries accounted for as
business combinations
In March 2016, Taicang Natural Gas, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired 51% of the equity interests in Licheng
Gas, at a total consideration of RMB75,000,000.
The acquisition was undertaken to help the Group
to step into the CNG market in Sichuan province,
which is a region with good growth potential in
southwest China, and broaden the revenue sources
of the Group.

In October 2016, Suchuang Shanghai, an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired 60% and 20% of the equity
interests in Anda Natural Gas from different
original shareholders, at a total consideration of
RMB104,400,000. The acquisition was undertaken
to help the Group to expand its piped natural gas
business coverage to an area outside Taicang City
and further strengthen the Group’s natural gas
business in Jiangsu province.

The Group has elected to measure the
non-controlling interests in the subsidiary acquired
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquired subsidiary’s identifiable net assets.
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75,000,0007C ° E1TZKIEEEE
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% - WIHRAASBERARIR

2016510 * A ARIEEEE
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33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 33. WM B A A (&)
(i) Acquisition of subsidiaries accounted for as (i) BREBESHHNWEKE LT
business combination (Continued) (48)
The provisional fair values of the identifiable assets FER - RUES B E BT U EE MY B A A
and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries during Mo R EERBENETEAFE
the year as at the date of acquisition were as T
follows:

Fair value
recognised on

acquisition
UL
NS
Notes RMB’000
{5 AREFT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE 13 11,482
Prepaid land lease prepayments Faft i & KIA 14 38,249
Intangible assets BVEE 16 70,761
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 7,019
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR 5y 7,54
Prepayments, deposits and other FARNFRE - BE Rk
receivables H {th fE UK IR 15,879
Inventories & 346
Trade payables JERT B 5 RRK (4, 471)
Advance from customers T E P R 367)
Other payables and accruals Hi B R ERE A (6 175)
Tax payable IR (2,107)
Interest-bearing loans FSTEER (3,500)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAB B 18 (21,045)
Total identifiable net assets at fair values* ¥ZAF(ETE 2 A% 5
R LR 111,825
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M A (35,601)
Total net assets acquired PS5 B EE R 76,224
Goodwill on acquisition R B i E A RO P 15 103,176
179,400
Satisfied by: AT HAZ A
Cash R 165,000
Cash consideration payable JENIRERME 14,400
179,400
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33. KB B A | (4&)
(i) BREBSHHOBIBHEBAR

33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)
(i) Acquisition of subsidiaries accounted for as

204

business combination (Continued)

*  The assessments of the fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Anda
Natural Gas are still undergoing and
the information of the fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities is provisional.
The finalised information will be disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The fair value of the acquired trade receivables
and other receivables as at the date of acquisition
approximate to their gross contractual amounts.
None of these receivables are expected to be
uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of
RMB592,000 for the acquisitions. These transaction
costs have been expensed and are included
in other expenses in the consolidated income

statement.

The goodwill of RMB103,176,000 recognised
above is due to the new market in Sichuan and
Jiangsu province entered by the Group to develop
its CNG refuelling station business and further
strengthen its piped natural gas business. The
above factor is neither separable nor contractual
and therefore the goodwill does not meet the
criteria for recognition as intangible assets under
IAS 38 Intangible Assets. Goodwill recognised
is not expected to be deductible for income tax

purposes.
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33. KB B A | (4&)

33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii) An analysis of the cash flows in respect
of the acquisitions of subsidiaries is as
follows:

(i) FEAWBEHBARNRESRE
DT

RMB’000
AR¥EFTT
Cash consideration HERE (165,000)
Cash consideration already paid in RURIEEENREESNRE
the prior year 60,000
Cash and bank balances acquired PTEER & RERTT 4 ER 7,019
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AAREERBABREREN
included in cash flows from RekBeFBYRLFE
investing activities (97,981)
Transaction costs of the acquisitions AL BB RN REN
included in cash flows from Wi 32 5 AR
operating activities (592)
(98,573)

Since the acquisition, the acquired subsidiaries
contributed RMB54,628,000 to the Group’s
revenue and net profit of RMB8,632,000 to
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2016.

B U AR - RELE20165F12H31H
IEFE - TEERB AR AREERA
BEfARYS54,628,0007T © B AGE R
FIERAAEF A R ¥8,632,0007T ©

Had the combinations taken place at the

WMEHRENET  AEEHZE2016
F12A318 EFERA KL T HE 5
B B AR #844,671,0007T & A R ¥
144,695,0007C °

beginning of the year, the revenue of the
Group and the net profit of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 would have
been RMB844,671,000 and RMB144,695,000
respectively.
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34. Operating Lease Arrangements 34. REHERH

(a) As lessor (a) EAHFEA

The Group leases certain parts of its buildings REBRERKEHELZHHEEEE
under operating lease arrangements, with leases FHETFIHG - HEMRSBH—Zh
negotiated for terms ranging from one to nine FEREZ - BT —MBINERAS
years. The terms of the leases generally also T HRES o

require tenants to pay security deposits.

At the end of the year, the Group had total future 7N 2= BB S B EL AR B 5T <7 9 R AT B
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable 4l 4 28 5 4 A 4 S 1| A ) o B FE UK
operating leases with its tenants falling due as SEMAESRBMEENT :
follows:
2016 2015
20165 20155
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETIT
Within one year —FR 2,401 1,945
In the second to fifth years, BE_EZFERF
inclusive (BEERME) 5,211 2,866
After five years & 2,622 =
10,234 4,811
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34. KEMERH (F)

(b) #EBEMHA
AEERBEERERHRELE
FRAZMERAE - BB
—E=ETE -

34. Operating Lease Arrangements (Continued)
(b) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties
and motor vehicles under operating lease
arrangements, with negotiated terms ranging from
one to three years.

At the end of the year, the Group had total future AREERETNATRNCLHENSE

REHO R R FEHE KA

operating leases falling due as follows: T

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

2016 2015
2016 20155
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Within one year —F R 1,360 -
In the second to third years, inclusive -2 =4
(BHREEMT) 1,311 -
2,671 -
35. Capital Commitments 35. EAEIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at MRER > REBNEAREAENT
the end of the year:
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Contracted, but not provided for: EFTAIER B 1 -
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ B K 11,198 -
Approved, but not contracted for: EFEHAGRETH)
Property, Plant and equipment UER B - 98,834
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36. Related Party Transactions
(@) Name and relationship

36. BERRS
(a) BREKRER

Name of related party

BB B

Relationship with the Group
RN 5R (B B %

Kunlun Suchuang Gas
Em&almm

Kunlun Suchuang Usage
E @& el F A

Suchuang Group
=S

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods Transportation

Co., Ltd. (“Dangerous Goods Transportation”)
RKegalehmERARAR ([BRmE%H )

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service

FRMNERZE T AR TS

Taicang Suchuang Property Development
Co., Ltd. (“Suchuang Property”)
AR#HEFEHERZEERAR ([#HEIFHHE])
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Associated company

NG

Associated company

BEAR

Company controlled by certain
directors of the Company

ARRETESZHH QA

Company controlled by certain
directors of the Company

ARRETEFEHH QA

Company controlled by certain
directors of the Company

ARABETEEZFNAR

Company controlled by certain
directors of the Company

ARAETEFRHOAR
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36. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 36. BEARXS (&)

(b) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed (b) RENR - BRBF B R % E M 2015 Frig
Elszwthherefirr[ the. financital ‘stTtiments, che Gl’O.l:[IIE) BHIZ D RN - NEE MRS
a e following ma erla. ransactions wi FHEAS ST :
related parties during the year:
2016 2015
20165 20155
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETRT
Associates: N
Transmission and sale of X RHE
natural gas to AR T
Kunlun Suchuang Gas E mar el (i) 12,955 1,043
Kunlun Suchuang Usage E m &Rl A (i) 39 1,043
12,994 2,086
Purchase of natural gas from B R 2 AR AR
Kunlun Suchuang Gas EmEraliR (i) 20,414 26,900
Rental income 2 A
Kunlun Suchuang Gas B m kBl R (iii)/(1) 587 583
Kunlun Suchuang Usage B m a8l A A (iii)/(1) 689 724
1,276 1,307
Others: HAt
Rental income 2 WA
Suchuang Group FS-lf=S (iii)/(2) 330 347
Purchase of goods from B U T2 AR B
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service &R/ #x 2 /T8 AR (v) 526 268
Purchase of properties from BU TR EFREY%E
Suchuang Property Bl 5 3 EE (ii)/(vii) - 2,000
Motor vehicle rental service AU T2 ] FE
provided by ITEHE R
Dangerous Goods Transportation — f&f i@ (vi) 556 =
Trademark fee B1EE
Suchuang Group eSS (iv) - -
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36. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 36. BEARXS (&)

210

(b) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed (b) HER - BB TRER K201 Fr ik
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group BENR S REESIN - ANEE HEEE
had the following material transactions with FREARSWT : (&)
related parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes: P E -

(i)  The above transactions were conducted in accordance
with the terms and conditions mutually agreed by both
parties.

(i) The Group entered into an agreement with Suchuang
Property to purchase certain properties located in Taicang
for a total consideration of RMB2,000,000 in 2015. The
consideration was determined and agreed by the two
parties by reference to the market value.

(iii) Rental income represents considerations received for
the rental of office premises to the Group’s associates
and the fellow subsidiaries. The Directors confirmed
that the annual rentals payable under the relevant rent
agreements had been agreed by both parties.

(iv) The Group entered into a trademark licensing agreement
with Suchuang Group on 1 August 2014 (the “Trademark
Licensing Agreement”), pursuant to which Suchuang
Group agreed to grant to Taicang Natural Gas and
Suzhou Zhongyu the right to use its trademarks in the
PRC for a nominal consideration of RMB1.00.

(v)  The Directors consider that motor vehicle fuels are
provided by Suzhou Suling Automobile Service on
normal commercial terms.

(vi) The Group entered into agreements with Dangerous
Goods Transportation to rent certain motor vehicle. The
Directors confirmed that the annual rentals payable
under the relevant agreements had been agreed by both
parties.

(vii) The Directors confirmed that these related party
transactions were one-off transactions and terminated
already.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

B 5 THRR X 5 & 75 LR 15 E e 15
RRARIETT ©

20154 » ANQ A BER A B Hh EET 7
—DHEABBEMRAENS THWE
@R (E A ARY2,000,0007T ° ZHR(E
THEFERXEMBEREERBE -
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36. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(c)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s balances with other related
parties at the end of the year are disclosed in note

24 to the financial statements.
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36. BERRS (&)

(c)

HRREN AREEEER

6% B B HL {th B 2 05 I R R A R Y
FHIE BRI IRAME24

Compensation of key management personnel of (d) REBMEEEIEE A B AR
the Group
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Basic salaries and other benefits BERF & REMET 7,304 4,922
Pension scheme contributions RIS FT SR 81 61
Equity-settled share option expenses AT 25 %5 2 1 B8 A% HE R 2 1,578 358
Total compensation paid to ENT2EEEASR
key management personnel B SR BN 42 RE 8,963 5,341

Further details of directors’ emoluments are

included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items
(b)(iii)/(2), (b)(iv), b(v) and (b)(vi) above also
constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which
are exempted from the disclosure requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As Kunlun
Suchuang Gas and Kunlun Suchuang Usage are not
connected persons according to the Listing Rules,
the related party transactions in respect of items
(b)(i) and (b)(iii)/(1) do not constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

BERESHFMAF B HIIR T
HWRMIEES -

32 (b)(ii)/(2) ~ (b)(iv) ~ (b)(v) &
(b)(vi)IER & X B INEK LT
BRABZUAZER TN FEBER
5 HEIHRREST EMHRAET4A
EETHRBEHRAT - REBELTR
Al Em#AIMN R Kk EmEE T
A IEBEEALT - At (b)) &
(b)(iii)/(1)BMEES R 5 THEK L
MRANEFUAERENFEBER
% °
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37. Financial Instruments by Category 37. REREINEM TR
The table below is an analysis of the carrying amounts TRIINERZERNE SNSRI AN
of financial instruments by category as at the end of the BREEDHT
year:
2016 20165
Financial assets ERMEE
Available-for-
Loans and sale financial
receivables assets Total
EXR AHEHE
P& SR B CRMEE Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Trade and bills receivables EWE HHERRERE 53,762 = 53,762
Financial assets included in FTATER FIE -
prepayments, deposits and mE REAME
other receivables WHIEN S RMEE 35,216 = 35,216
Amounts due from other JFE M5 EL b 3 5 3R 0R
related parties 2,185 = 2,185
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - 112,000 112,000
Cash and cash equivalents RBERBEEEY 400,359 = 400,359
491,522 112,000 603,522
Financial liabilities SRas
Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
BREBHEAATTE
Hemas
RMB’000
ARBTFIT
Trade payables FEH 8 5 5IE 65,294
Financial liabilities included in other FTAE A I R
payables and accruals A ERNESRAR 38,509
Interest-bearing bank loans STRIRITER
(including current and (B FEBNEA K JE BN EAEE )
non-current portion) 95,780
199,583
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(Continued)

37. Financial Instruments by Category

The table below is an analysis of the carrying amounts

of financial instruments by category as at the end of the

year: (continued)
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37. RERE s NEM T A (&)

TRINFERZEREDONER T AN

FREEST © ()

2015 20155
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-
Loans and sale financial
receivables assets Total
EXR AHEHE
PE W SR SRMEE e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Trade and bills receivables FEWE ZERR LR 42,380 = 42,380
Financial assets included in FTATERFKIE -
prepayments, deposits and B REME
other receivables WHRIBR S E E 8,547 = 8,547
Pledged deposits EHERFR 5,379 - 5,379
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESESED 445,389 = 445,389
501,695 - 501,695
Financial liabilities £z 3=N
Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
REHEHATTE
Hemas
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Trade payables JENE 5518 58,782
Financial liabilities included in other FTAE A R IE R
payables and accruals B ERANEREE 32,273
Interest-bearing bank loans SERITER 60,000
151,055
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3. ERMT AN ERATFEER

38. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of

214

Financial Instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current
market conditions regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments

approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, available-for-sale investments, trade and
bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments as at 31 December
2016.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank loans have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The fair values of
the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank loans
at the end of the reporting period approximated to their
corresponding carrying amounts.
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38. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 3. 2T AAFERAFEER
Financial Instruments (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEERBER ()
Assets measured at fair value: B FEGTENEE -

Fair value measurement using

significant observable inputs

(Level 2)
RAEXTEETSEAE
SFEMAFE (F=R)
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTTT
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 112,000 =
Liabilities measured at fair value: B FEGTTEMNEE -
The Group did not have any financial liabilities RER » NEBWEEMIERAFEFE
measured at fair value at the end of the year. NEREaE -
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EENFEEE -
The Group did not have any financial assets for which RER  "EFBVEESIMNEHED
fair values are disclosed at the end of the year. TEOEMEE -
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: ERENTELEE -

Fair value measurement using
significant observable inputs
(Level 2)
RAEARTEETSWAETEN
DNFE (F=R)

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETF T ARBT T
Interest-bearing bank loans SFRIRITER
(non-current portion) (FEENHAER () 60,000 60,000
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39. KEMEENBEERBE

39. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
include cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade and bills receivables, and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as interest-bearing
bank borrowings, deposits and other receivables, and
other payables and accruals. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not
hold or issue derivative financial instruments either for
hedging or for trading purposes. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of the risks which
are summarised below:

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to its interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest
rate risk. With all other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit after tax and equity are affected through
the impact on floating rate borrowings as follows:

AEENTIZeRMITATEZEBRERER
REEZRELNREMASFEY B
EREFER  BRREZIERREFERNANE
NESER - AEBETABRTHE
5 e REAMRKGIRA R E bR
FEMEHERAFHEMEREERER
B HARSeMIANTIZANRER
AEENKEREES °

AEESET AN LA ERERSF
KE - INERR  EERRMRSHE
TR - ARBEYEFEXNBETESY
HAEERAENITAEERIA -EFES
REZRKZTEESHAROBER - B
AR

e
AEBEFEHHNTHISNEEEHEREE
HEG BRITERREMIERER - N
SEWEMNBITE SR T A% P EF X
[\l - A EMA ZEEZRGERFTEE
BRAT  RFREEELANFEMER
S B ERT RS R R EAR R R BN
T

Increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax and equity
BB EBRNRREE M, ORD)

2016 2015

2016%F 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREFTT

Increase by 25 basis points I hn25(EE B (185) (113)
Decrease by 25 basis points 25 (EE B 185 113
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39. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China
and the majority of transactions are conducted in
RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. The Group has not hedged its
foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the year to a reasonably possible change in
the US$ exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit after tax and equity.

Notes to Financial Statements

M HE R M
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

9. B EBEENEERBEK (&)

SNES [ B
AREBENRBLRPBEAN - SN
RHHNARBHET - RKEBOAEED

BERABBTURARKTIE -
SR H NS TE SRR o

AREEIW

TRINEMBEMAERZER I
RERT » REBERBE S M R
FREETIE RS I 7] 5K By 1) UK
& o

Increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax and equity

BB RN R REEN CRD)
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
RMB/US$ AR¥  ER
Strengthened 5% FE5% 8,799 394
Weakened 5% B2 E5% (8,799) (394)
Credit risk EERE

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis;
therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, the
composition of which is disclosed in note 37, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

$'¥@1§§ﬁi$ BRERGEAIZENSE
FETRS - HBRASEHNBER - 1A
BIZEERFIETRINEFP KAERB
EERERFE - AEEE It K
SEeREERERAERNBER - BHE
A A ZRRER I TEAX ©

rEEEMmemEE (HAKDHEER
MEE37) MEERBRAEARXSZHFHED
MEL  xeBEBREASERZELTAENKE
mfE -
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39. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 39. B AREENBEFERBER (&)
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) FERR (&)

Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes in EEAKE  (TESUNE R EZEE MY
economic, industrial or geographic factors similarly RGEFHBELEHEUNTE  BES
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit SHERRBRRALEENEHEERRM
exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total SHBEXN  FelREhEERR -

credit exposure.

Liquidity risk MENE £ Bk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEERAREERSESFTETAR
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers REELRRAORER - L TAEEEH
the maturity of both its financial instruments and tRMTAREMEE (NEKE SRR

financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and MERE) MEHA AR E EEEERN

projected cash flows from operations. TEHHEERE -

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEEMBEERERFERRITENR &
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of BoREMEEE RN 2 HgETE -
bank loans. In addition, banking facilities have been AN REBE D EITIRITRHENEREZ
put in place for contingency purposes. ZF e

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities RER - REERBTHRMEBN D
as at the end of the year, based on the contractual TREBEIHABENT

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

On Within Within  More than
demand 1year 2tob5 years 5 years Total
BEX 1R 285%FR SHEHRE EH

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR AR%®TR AR®TR AR®TR

At 31 December 2016 201651283180

Trade payables ENE SRR - 65,294 - - 65,294
Financial liabilities AT AR ERTRIE K
included in other B ERN
payables and accruals ERAR 38,509 - - - 38,509
Interest-bearing bank FEHRITER
loans - 39,249 63,666 - 102,915
38509 104,543 63,666 - 206,718
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39. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 39. B AREENBEFERBER (&)
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) nEEE R (&)
On Within Within ~ More than
demand 1 year 2to5 years 5 years Total
BEX 1A 2E5%R SENRE a5t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2015 A2015E12831H

Trade payables ENAE SRR - 58,782 - - 58,782
Financial liabilities AT ARt ERTRIE K

included in other [EETE AR

payables and Eay=l

accruals 32,273 = - - 32,273
Interest-bearing bank  FFEHRITER

loans - 4,070 68,6600 - 72,730

32,273 62,852 68,6600 - 163,785

The amount included above for financial guarantee N EMBERERABENSEARSE
contracts is the maximum amount the Group could be B EREL T BEES AR e BRE
required to settle under the arrangement for the full PHEERCELTHEENSES S - 1B
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the BRERGHNTER  ~XEERE - BIE
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at LTHHERZESBAREETK -

the end of the year, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement.
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39. B EREENERERBX (&)

39. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the

year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by capital. The Group’s
net debt consists of interest-bearing bank loans, less
cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents total

equity.
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39.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

At the end of the year, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, but are not
limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and
financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group
has a reasonable level of capital to support its business.
The net debt to equity ratios at the end of the years are

as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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9. B EBEENEERBEK (&)

E€EE (#)

RER  AEBERBER BB HE
@I REFRIBRANEAKTE - AH
HEREE - AEEMRANERRR
B (BARN) A RKRAERER
KA R B 75 B B B 4k B B SR BV BE 7
HRBIRITHMEEFTNEIEKF - XA
EEETEIR@METE (MARE) - K
BARAEEAFHSEKFNERAIFHFH
EHEE -  RERNFEHH LR
W

2016 2015
2016%F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBT T
Interest-bearing bank loans SFERITER 95,780 60,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W IRENIREEED (400,359) (445,389)
Net debt FES (304,579) (385,389)
Total equity oL 1,143,748 930,150
Net debt to equity ratio FE B L X N/A T3 N/A T iE A
40. Events after the Reporting Period 40. EHEREE

On 24 January 2017, 20,000,000 share options were
granted to certain directors and employees of the
Company, as further detailed in note 31 to the financial

statements.

On 10 March 2017, the Company completed the
placing of 40,000,000 shares at the placing price of
HK$2.20.

M2017F1 8248 » KARIEAETE
ENREX 120,000,000 BEBAHE - F
Z A BEN SRR FE3T ©

20173 A108 7R A]58AX40,000,000
RSB E - BEREEA2.2008 7T ©
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41. Statement of Financial Position of the 41. D B B B AR R &=
Company
Information about the statement of financial position AR BRIRE RN IEAR A RBEE
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BT -
follows:
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e NN 51 -
Investment in subsidiaries RETBRARIMIZE 2,008 8
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Cash and cash equivalents B FRE&EBY 212,800 107,102
Prepayments, deposits and other BfRIE - e K
receivables H {th fE Y5k I8 276 =
Amount due from subsidiaries A NG ECE] 537,460 559,653
750,536 666,755
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Interest-bearing bank loans FERITER 35,780 -
Other payables H A FE A~ FRIE 3,668 5,472
NET CURRENT ASSETS BEREBEE 711,088 661,283
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBEME
LIABILITIES 713,147 661,291
Net assets BESE 713,147 661,291
EQUITY =
Issued capital BTN 6,858 6,544
Reserves (note) s (M) 706,289 654,747
Total equity i 713,147 661,291

222 Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2016



Notes to Financial Statements

M HE R M
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12831HIEFE

41. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (Continued)
Note:

41. A AT W AR R R (F)
B EE -
AATRGEEERET

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Retained
profits/
Share Share option Capital (accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve loss) equity
fBkE REEFR
R4 R 1E e EXRE (RIHER) BEEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT AREKTT ARETT ARET:R
At 1 January 2015 R201561 /18 = - 310,607 (1,049) 309,558
Profit for the year FRE R = = - 21,394 21,394
Issue of shares BT 366,282 = = 366,282
Share issue expenses BRID BT (25,219) - - - (25,219)
Transfer of share premium A&7 s (B e 309,675 = (309,675) = =
Dividends declared and paid EERRKERE = = = (18,177) (18,177)
Equity-settled share option
arrangements PR E e RIE 2 - 909 = = 909
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31H 650,738 909 932 2,168 654,747
Profit for the year FRRA = - - (2,324) (2,324)
Issue of shares Bk 79,658 = = = 79,658
Share issue expenses AR5 TR (3,066) = = = (3,066)
Dividends declared and paid BEERMRERE = = = (28,092) (28,092)
Equity-settled share option DR EE R
arrangements FBIRER Y = 5,366 = 5,366
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 727,330 6,275 932 (28,248) 706,289

RRBERREREARRRD R FER
HARR AR BBERNRTEMEITH
BROEENEE

The Company’s capital surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the Company over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.

BhREFREEFCREERRITENE
BiEsT BN A TE - FHBEFELHEEY
BWKRMEE3 - BABBRRETE -
ZETRRERERMDEER: 56%
BRI MR RISEERER

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
the share option scheme granted which are yet to be
exercised. Please refer to note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements for details. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when

the related options are exercised, or be transferred to A e
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.
42. Approval of the Financial Statements 42. B ERR AR

SRR ELAEETZN2017F3 318
HEAE M IR B o

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2017.
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Financial Summary

Y

RESULTS E -
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20164 20154 20144 20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETE AR®Tn ARET:H
Revenue N 740,895 795,625 785,592 663,663 522,980
Cost of sales HEKA (531,554) (595,220) (595,566) (463,588) (371,874)
Gross profit 7 209,341 200,405 190,026 200,075 151,106
Other income and gains Hi A R 22,419 33,222 9,959 4,521 2,795
Selling and distribution costs SHER DM (10,459) (4,016) (4,788) (2,796) (2,794)
Administrative expenses TEB (48,288) (40,077) (27,183) (20,923) (8,581)
Other expenses B (1,309 (3,055) M (305) (997)
Finance costs BB (4,524) (5,817) (19,023) (42,267) (52,231)
Share of profits and losses of:  AEATAFEE :
A joint venture —[EaghE - - _ _ 3)
Associates /NG 1,543 4,677 4,948 3,285 4,879
Profit before tax BRB AR 168,723 185,339 153,938 141,590 94,174
Income tax expense PR RRE (44,906) (46,700) (37,578) (35,098) (23,163)
Profit for the year/period FE/HERR 123,817 138,639 116,360 106,492 71,011
Profit for the year/period UTEFEEEE /
attributable to: HEER
Owners of the parent BRREEA 120,681 138,639 116,360 106,703 71,025
Non-controlling interests JEIERR LS 3,136 = = 211) (14)
123,817 138,639 116,360 106,492 71,011
ASSET, LIABILITIES AND BE - 8ER
TOTAL EQUITY i gkl
Total assets BELE 1,652,047 1,365,070 967,274 1,130,203 1,440,253
Total liabilities Elrate 508,299 434,920 506,004 858,593 1,054,403
Total equity B 1,143,748 930,150 461,270 271,610 385,850
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